
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

JANUARY 02, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

CHURCH STREET SCHOOL AUDITORIUM 

445 NORTH CHURCH STREET 

AGENDA 

INVOCATION:                                  COUNCIL MEMBER ROSIE JONES 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL MEMBER CHAD MIMS 

CALL TO ORDER:                            COUNCIL PRESIDENT TRAVIS BEARD 

 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

APPEALS 

CITIZEN HEARING 

(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

- 1 -



ACTION AGENDA 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

1.      IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 19, 2023 MEETING 

2.      IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

     TRAVIS BEARD 

     LYNN BRYAN 

     CHAD MIMS 

3.      IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 

4.       IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF BID #2023-053FD 5500 SERIES PRIME    

MOVER PICKUP TRUCK BR 

5.       IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – MULTIFAMILY 

(TABLED AT NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MEETING) TN 

6.      IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS (TABLED AT 

NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MEETING) TN 

7.      IN THE MATTER OF CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD BID NO. 2023-

022PW - CW 

8.      IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAIN 

REPLACEMENT BID NO. 2023-060PW CW 

9.      IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 

REPLACEMENT BID NO. 2023-059PW CW 

10.     IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO REJECT BID # 2023-052WL – WEST JACKSON 

STREET (MADISON TO FRONT) OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND RELOCATION 

OF ELECTRIC UTILITIES AND/OR STREET LIGHTING FACILITIES JT  

11.     IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER # 1 FOR THE CENTRAL 

PUMPING STATION MODIFICATIONS (BID NO. 2023-040WL) JT  

(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- 2 -



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

DATE December 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 19, 2023 MEETING 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

- 3 -

Item # 1.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL MINUTES CITY OF TUPELO 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

DECEMBER 19, 2023 

Be it remembered that a regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council was held in the Church Street 

School auditorium on Tuesday, December 19, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. with the following in attendance: 

Council Members Chad Mims, Lynn Bryan, Travis Beard, Nettie Davis, Buddy Palmer, Janet Gaston 

and Rosie Jones; Ben Logan, City Attorney, and Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council.  Council Member 

Bryan led the invocation. Will Thomas, Boy Scout Troop #12, the pledge of allegiance. 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the agenda and 

agenda order, as presented. 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

Members of Boy Scout Troop #12 were recognized. Those present were Will Perry, Will Thomas,  

Cohen Watson, Walker Tate and Isaiah Barber. Leader Duke Loden was also present. 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

Council Member Nettie Davis wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a prosperous New Year.  

Council Member Travis Beard mentioned that Nettie Davis participated in a public radio announcement. 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

Mayor Todd Jordan mentioned that the Tupelo Christmas Parade was a great success with an estimated 

19,000 people attending the event. The Cadence arena has had a busy time with the Globetrotters and 

the Mississippi State University games using the facilities. Members of the Development Services 

Department recently attended a 5-day class in Mobile, Alabama and received certifications. Those 

certified were Jennifer Roberson, Sandy Shumaker, Troy Peck, Tanner Newman, Zach Vanstory and 

Penny Jolly. In closing, he wished everyone a very Merry Christmas! 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DEMOLITIONS  

A hearing was held on demolitions for the following properties, with property owners speaking, as 

indicated: 

- 4 -

Item # 1.



1849 McCullough Blvd - Leanna, resident of Pontotoc, who received the notice of hearing 

205 Bowen - Kara Lee Armstrong - daughter of homeowner 

555 Magazine Street - none 

IN THE MATTER OF RFQ 20232-048DS - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2025-2040 - REQUEST 

TO CERTIFY AND APPROVE THE RESPONSE FROM GOODWIN MILLS CAYWOOD 

(GMC) TO THE DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES' REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 

WITH GMC SUBSEQUENT TO RATIFICATION 

Requests for qualifications (RFQ) were received by the City of Tupelo for consulting services on the 

2025-2040 Comprehensive Plan in Bid # 2023-048DS. All submissions were reviewed and scored. This 

item was placed on the Study Agenda and on December 5, 2023, moved to the Action Agenda. 

Development Services Director Tanner Newman now requests that the Council approve the RFQ 

submitted by Goodwin Mills Caywood (GMC) and authorize the mayor to negotiate and execute a 

contract with GMC, subject to subsequent ratification by the City Council. Council Member Bryan 

moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to award the RFQ to GMC and to authorize the mayor to 

negotiate and execute a contract to be ratified at a later time.  The vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX A 

IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 5, 2023  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve the minutes of the 

December 5, 2023, Regular Council meeting. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY  

 

Bills were reviewed at 4:30 p.m. by Council Members Beard, Gaston, Davis and Palmer. Council 

Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve the payment of the checks, 

bills, claims and utility adjustments.  The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX B 

IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the advertising and 

promotional items, as follows: 

 

ICC      $1,000    ICC 75th Diamond Anniversary Gala Sponsorship 

Lee County Courier $375  Christmas Ad 

The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX C 

IN THE MATTER OF MOU WITH DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE (HOUSE BILL 603 

SECTION 28 (nu) FUNDING TO MATCH FEDERAL FUNDS TO IMPROVE RAILROAD  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston to approve, pursuant to House 

Bill 603 Section 28 (nu) at lines 2125 – 2128, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 

Mississippi Department of Finance and Administration and the City of Tupelo for the match of federal 

- 5 -

Item # 1.



or other funds for the construction of railroad improvements for public safety and economic 

development. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX D 

IN THE MATTER OF MOU WITH DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE (HOUSE BILL 603 

SECTION 28 (iu) FUNDING TO IMPROVE BALLARD PARK  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve, pursuant to House Bill 

603 section 28 (iu) at lines 1699-1702, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 

Mississippi Department of Finance and Administration and the City of Tupelo for the improvements to 

Ballard Park, including, but not limited to, inclusive playground equipment for special needs children. 

The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX E  

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MS 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND THE CITY OF TUPELO AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE MAYOR TO SIGN SAID AGREEMENT – PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS  

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve an agreement between 

the MS Department of Public Safety and the City of Tupelo - Project Safe Neighborhoods and to 

authorize the mayor to sign said agreement. The city has been awarded a grant in the amount of 

$34,610.00 for 6 neighborhood watch cameras. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX F 

IN THE MATTER OF MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK TRAINING 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to accept the Municipal Court 

Clerk Training Certificate for Municipal Court Clerk, Rhonda L. Cole, and spread it on the municipal 

minutes. The vote was unanimous in favor.  Mrs. Cole attended the 2022 Mississippi Municipal Court 

Clerk’s Continuing Education Course, September 20-22, 2023. Under Mississippi code Sec. 21-23-12, a 

training certificate of the Municipal Court Clerk is required to be made part of the permanent records of 

the City Council. A copy of the training certificate for Clerk Cole is attached to these minutes and made 

part hereof as APPENDIX G. 

IN THE MATTER OF PROPERTIES FOR DEMOLITION  

 

DDS Director Tanner Newman requested that the Council consider the adjudication of each property on 

the public hearing demolition list that have been found to be in such a condition to be a menace to the 

public health, safety and welfare of the community and in need of cleaning by demolition as authorized 

by Miss. Code § 21-19-11 (1972 as amended). Each property was separately considered and found to be 

in such a condition to be a menace to the public health, safety and welfare of the community and in need 

of cleaning by demolition. The properties are: 

 

205 Bowen (Stephen D. Lee) (Parcel # 077Q-36-025-00) 

555 Magazine Street (Parcel # 089P-31-070-00) 

1849 McCullough Boulevard (Parcel # 076K-23-073-00) 

 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, that each property on the 

demolition list be found to be in such a condition to be a menace to the public health, safety and welfare 

- 6 -

Item # 1.



of the community and in need of cleaning by demolition as authorized by Miss. Code § 21-19-11 (1972 

as amended). The vote was unanimous in favor of approval of the demolitions. APPENDIX H 

IN THE MATTER OF LIEN RESOLUTIONS FOR UNPAID LOT MOWING INVOICES   

 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve Resolutions Assessing 

Judgment Liens Against Real Property for the Costs Associated with Lot Mowing in Accordance with 

Miss. Code Annotated § 21-19-11, for the following properties:  

 

Parcel                      Location 

077Q-36-219-00      202 Enoch Avenue 

101B-02-130-00      418 Lakeview 

 

The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX I 

IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT TA 23-01 – MULTIFAMILY, 

CONGREGATE LIVING AND SHELTERS (TABLED AT NOVEMBER 7, 2023, MEETING)  

This item remained on the table except for provisions of TA 23-01 (01) – Definitions - below. 

IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT TA23-01 (1) – CHAPTER 2 – 

DEFINITIONS DEFINING AND IDENTIFYING DIFFERENT TYPES OF RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AND BUILDINGS   

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to take this item off the table. 

The vote was unanimous in favor.  

 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve an Ordinance 

Amending Development Code Chapter 2: Definitions Defining and Identifying Different Types of 

Residential Development and Buildings TA23-01(1). The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX J 

IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS (TABLED AT 

NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MEETING) 

This item was left on the table. 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID 2023-057PW FOR BRIDGE NUMBER 202 

REPLACEMENT ON WEST MAIN STREET AND AUTHORIZATION OF MAYOR TO SIGN 

ON BEHALF OF THE CITY  

The city advertised and received bids for Bid #2023-57PW – Bridge # 202 Replacement on West Main 

Street. Multiple bids were received with the lowest and best bid being from Ste-Bil Grading, Inc., in the 

amount of $1,736,041.75. Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to 

award the bid to Ste-Bil Grading, Inc., and to authorize the mayor to sign the necessary documents to be 

subsequently ratified by the City Council. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX K 

 

- 7 -

Item # 1.



IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MAJOR THOROUGHFARE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 13, 2023  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to accept the minutes of the 

Major Thoroughfare Committee of November 13, 2023. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX 

L 

IN THE MATTER OF BID #2023-058PD – EXPLORERS AND DURANGO   

Bids were received for Bid #2023-58PD – Six (6) Ford Explorers and One (1) Dodge Durango. One bid 

was received from Cannon Motors. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member 

Gaston, to find the properly advertised, single bid as commercially reasonable, and to award the bid to 

Cannon Motors in the amount of $ 336,505.52. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX M 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER F-1 FINAL 

CLOSEOUT FOR GUM TREE PARK DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ARPA 2023-029PW  

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve change order # F-1 

final closeout for ARPA Bid # 2023-029PW - Gum Tree Park Drainage improvements. The change 

order decreases the cost by $3,379.00 for a total of $410,736.00. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX N 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES OF OCTOBER 

16, 2023  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the Cadence Bank 

Arena minutes of October 16, 2023.  The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX O 

IN THE MATTER OF BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF JULY 2022 – DECEMBER 2022   

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve writing off to the bad 

debt file the list of Water and Light Collections accounts. The total bad debt amount represents 0.11% of 

the total revenue for the period of July 2022 through December 2022. Efforts will continue to be made 

to collect these accounts even though they have been transferred to this accounting classification. The 

vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX P 

IN THE MATTER OF AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF 2,500 FEET OF # 2/0 

UNDERGROUND PRIMARY WIRE  

TWL Director Johnny Timmons requested the Council approve the emergency purchase of 2,500 feet of 

#20 underground primary wire. The lowest quote submitted by T & C Specialty Distributors, Inc. is 

$19.67 per foot, for a total of $49,175.00. The emergency purchase is necessary because of the lead time 

of 20 weeks to replenish the currently low, on-hand inventory of underground primary wire and the 

inability to obtain a fixed price due to cost adjustments associated with escalating material prices at the 

time of shipment. 

 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to find as necessary for the 

- 8 -

Item # 1.



reasons cited above and approve the emergency purchase. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX Q 

IN THE MATTER OF AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF TWELVE (12) 25 kVA PADMOUNT 

TRANSFORMERS  

TWL Director Johnny Timmons requested the Council approve the emergency purchase of twelve (12) 

25 kVA padmount transformers. The lowest quote submitted by Arkansas Electric Cooperatives, Inc., is 

$3,089.00 each, for a total of $37,068.00. The emergency purchase is necessary because of the lead time 

of three months to replenish the currently low, on-hand inventory of transformers and the inability to 

obtain a fixed price due to cost adjustments associated with escalating material prices at the time of 

shipment. 

 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to find as necessary for the 

reasons cited above and approve the emergency purchase. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX R 

IN THE MATTER OF AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF FIFTEEN (15) 25 kVA 

CONVENTIONAL TRANSFORMERS  

TWL Director Johnny Timmons requested the Council approve the emergency purchase of fifteen (15) 

25 kVA conventional transformers. The lowest quote submitted by Border States Electric is $1,591.00 

each, for a total of $23,865.00. The emergency purchase is necessary because of the lead time of 12 

months to replenish the currently low, on-hand inventory of transformers and the inability to obtain a 

fixed price due to cost adjustments associated with escalating material prices at the time of shipment. 

 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to find as necessary for the 

reasons cited above and approve the emergency purchase. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX S 

IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW OF THE RESPONSES TO RFP 23-055PW AND TO AWARD 

A CONTRACT FOR DEBRIS REMOVAL SERVICES TO THE MOST RESPONSIBLE 

OFFEROR WHOSE PROPOSAL IS MOST ADVANTAGEOUS TO THE CITY OF TUPELO 

AS DETERMINED BY THE EVALUATION CRITERIA CONTAINED IN THE RFP, AND 

SUCH CONTRACT SHALL BE EXECUTED BY THE MAYOR AND SUBJECT TO 

SUBSEQUENT RATIFICATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL  

This item was tabled. 

IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW OF THE RESPONSES TO RFP 23-056PW AND TO AWARD 

A CONTRACT FOR DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES TO THE MOST RESPONSIBLE 

OFFEROR WHOSE PROPOSAL IS MOST ADVANTAGEOUS TO THE CITY OF TUPELO 

AS DETERMINED BY THE EVALUATION CRITERIA CONTAINED IN THE RFP, AND 

SUCH CONTRACT SHALL BE EXECUTED BY THE MAYOR AND SUBJECT TO 

SUBSEQUENT RATIFICATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL  

To more quickly respond to emergency conditions which may occur during the upcoming year, the city 

sought proposals for pre-placement of a debris monitoring services contract in accordance with the terms 

- 9 -

Item # 1.



of the RFP and as allowed by all applicable State of Mississippi procurement requirements and the 

provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.320. All proposals were reviewed and scored. The selection committee 

recommended DebrisTech as the most responsible and advantageous offeror. Council Member Bryan 

moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the attached Resolution certifying the responses 

to RFP 23-056PW for debris monitoring assistance, declaring that it would be most advantageous to the 

City of Tupelo to award a 12-month contract for debris monitoring services to DebrisTech as the most 

responsible offeror and authorizing the mayor to enter into said contract, subject to subsequent 

ratification by the city council. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX T 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council at this time, Council Member Palmer 

moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to adjourn the meeting at 6:26 PM. The vote was 

unanimous in favor. 

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Travis Beard, Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

 

       APPROVED 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Date 

 

 

 

 

  

 

- 10 -

Item # 1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, City Clerk/CFO 

DATE December 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

- 11 -

Item # 2.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE January 2, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 
  

 

Request:  

There are no items for approval at this time.  

 

ITEMS: 

None 

 

 

 

- 12 -

Item # 3.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Brad Robinson, Fire Chief 

DATE December 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF BID #2023-053FD 5500 SERIES 

PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK BR 
  

 

Request:  

Approval of bid # 2023-053FD Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck. Only one bid was received – 

from Cannon Motors in the amount of $104,000.00. City of Tupelo Fire Department will pay 

$1,500 and Homeland Security will pay the remainder.  

 

- 13 -

Item # 4.



Start Date / Time

End Date / Time

Company Bid Amount ($ | USD) Bidding Time Delivery Lead Time

Cannon Motors  $              104,000.00 
10:02:29 AM 

US/Central
160-190 days

BID SUMMARY

Dec 12, 2023 10:00 AM US/Central

Dec 12, 2023 10:30 AM US/Central

BID # 2023-053FD

5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK

CITY OF TUPELO

- 14 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   1 

 
 

REQUEST FOR  
*Un-Priced Technical Proposals* 

To provide 
 

5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck 
for Fire Department Homeland Security Task Force 

BID # 2023-053FD 
 

A Reverse Auction Event For 
The City of Tupelo, Mississippi 

 
 

     
 
 
 

BID MANAGEMENT CONTACT: 
PH Bidding Group 

Cory Dewett 
cory@phbidding.com 

662-407-0193 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Publication Dates: November 15, 2023 & November 22, 2023 
Un-Priced Responses Due: December 13, 2023, at 2:00 PM 
Reverse Auction: December 15, 2023, at 2:00 PM 
 
 

- 15 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   2 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR PROPOSALS   
 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Tupelo will receive un-priced technical proposals to prequalify vendors 
for: 

 
5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck 

for Fire Department Homeland Security Task Force 
Bid # 2023-053FD 

 
Deadline for receipt of un-priced technical proposals is December 13, 2023 at 2:00 PM, local time. Un-Priced 
propsals, including Specification Response Form and all other documents, shall be submitted electronically at 
www.tupelomsbids.com. 
 
Pursuant to MS Code 31-7-13 and House Bill 1109, this commodity will be procured through a multi-step 
procurement process, including a Reverse Auction.  In Phase One, un-priced technical proposals are evaluated 
for potential acceptability based upon pre-determined criteria.  In Phase Two, only those bidders whose technical 
proposals are determined acceptable shall be invited to provide priced bids for consideration. The City of Tupelo 
encourages vendor participation in this multi-step process.  Complete instructions are provided in the 
specifications package.   
 
Specifications and detailed instructions regarding the bid process may be obtained by visiting the website 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  Specification response forms, along with all other required information detailed in the 
bid instructions should be submitted no later than 2:00 PM on December 13, 2023, per the detailed bid 
instructions.  Un-priced Specification Response submissions will be evaluated, and vendors meeting the required 
specifications will be invited to participate in the Electronic Reverse Auction process on December 15, 2023 
at 10:00 AM. Approved vendors will be given detailed instructions regarding the reverse auction.  The City of 
Tupelo reserves the right to extend the auction date if necessary, to complete the pre-qualification process. 
Pricing will only be accepted from qualified bidders during the reverse auction process. For any questions relating 
to the electronic submittal or reverse auction process, please call PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193. 
 
The City of Tupelo is an equal opportunity employer and hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure 
that, in any contract entered unto pursuant to this advertisement, minority business enterprises will be afforded 
full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds 
of race, color, sex, age, disability or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
The City of Tupelo reserves the right to reject any and or all bids, waive technicalities, informalities or irregularities 
in the bids received, solicit new bids or to choose that bid which is deemed to be in the best interest of the City 
of Tupelo. 
  

Traci Dillard 
      Purchasing Agent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Publishing Dates: November 15, 2023 & November 22, 2023 
 
 
 
 

- 16 -

Item # 4.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   3 

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS 
 

5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck 
Bid # 2023-053FD 

 
I. General Bidder Requirements/Information 

The City of Tupelo is looking to purchase a 5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck. The City of 
Tupelo will accept un-priced proposals for pre-qualification until December 13, 2023, at 2:00 PM, local 
time. The un-priced specification responses may be submitted electronically at www.tupelomsbids.com.  
The responses will be evaluated, and vendors meeting the required specifications will be invited to 
participate in the online reverse auction process on December 15, 2023, at 2:00 PM, local time.  All un-
priced proposals must be equal in performance and quality to the specifications. 

 
1. The City of Tupelo reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any informalities in the bid, 

or award the bid to whomsoever they may choose. 
2. The specifications, as stated, are minimum requirements and may be exceeded by the bidder.  

Additional consideration may be given for exceeding the minimum requirements and all bids will be 
evaluated against the specifications set forth in this bid package. 

3. A manufacturer’s part or item numbers may be shown only to describe the item and to determine the 
level of acceptable quality.  Other manufacturer’s “equal” items may be bid.  The acceptance of 
“equal” items lies with the City of Tupelo whose decision shall be final.  All items shall be delivered 
FOB to the location specified on the purchase request in Tupelo, Mississippi. 

4. All bid prices shall be net, FOB destination, with transportation charges prepaid by vendor. 
5. Delivery will be a consideration in the awarding of this bid. 
6. The burden of proof of specifications is the responsibility of the bidder. 
7. The City of Tupelo will reject any and all bids that include an escalation charge or clause (including 

fuel surcharges). 
 

II. OTHER 
 THIS IS A MULTI-STEP PROCUREMENT PROJECT TO BE COMPLETED IN TWO SEPARATE 
 PHASES. 
 

• Phase One is the solicitation and receipt of unpriced technical proposals for consideration.  Deadline 
for receipt of technical proposals December 13, 2023, at 2:00 PM CST. 

 

• Phase Two is the Reverse Auction Event in which bidders will provide priced bids for the items 
requested, based upon their approved technical proposal.  If your un-priced technical proposal is 
approved as acceptable, you will be invited to enter the Reverse Auction Event and given detailed 
instructions by PH Bidding Group.  The reverse auction will begin on December 15, 2023, at 2:00 PM 
CST. PH Bidding Group can be contacted at 662-407-0193 or via email at cory@phbidding.com 

 
III. SUBMISSION OF UN-PRICED TECHNICAL PROPOSALS 

 There are several documents to submit in order to be considered for invitation to participate in the 
 Reverse Auction and possible award on this product.  Proposals shall contain all documentation as listed 
 in the instructions to bidders. 
 

It is understood that bidders who submit proposals have read, understood and accepted these 
specifications as written, and by submitting a proposal, agree to meet the specifications as written.  
Proposal modifications, alterations or corrections received after the closing time specified shall not be 
considered.  Proposals must remain valid for a minimum of sixty (60) days from the opening date. City of 
Tupelo is a Tax-Exempt Government Entity. 

 
 

- 17 -

Item # 4.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   4 

 To be considered, un-priced technical proposals must be signed by an owner or authorized officer or 
 manager of the bidding company.  It is the bidder’s responsibility to ensure timely and complete proposals 
 are received with all required documentation included.  Late and/or incomplete proposals will not be 
 considered. 
 
 If you are selected to receive an invitation to provide priced bids, complete instructions for 
 submitting priced bids shall be provided in the invitation.  
 

IV. QUESTIONS 
 Failure to examine any specifications and instructions will be at the bidder’s risk.  All procedural and 
 technical questions, or if the attached specifications are incomplete, not clear, or not standardized, shall 
 be made in writing, and addressed to the following: 
 

General questions regarding this request and questions concerning the technical specifications should 
be directed to Traci Dillard, Purchasing Agent, at the City of Tupelo Purchasing Department, 400 N 
Front St, Tupelo, MS 38804. The phone number is 662-841-6498.  Email:  traci.dillard@tupeloms.gov 

 
 For questions regarding obtaining bid documents or regarding the online reverse auction process, 
 prospective bidders may contact PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193 or cory@planhouseprinting.com.  

 
 No oral explanations by any member of the City of Tupelo nor City of Tupelo staff will be binding.  
 Receipt of addenda must be acknowledged in writing.  Submitting vendors shall be responsible  for 
 ensuring that they have received any and all addenda. 

 
V. INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELCTRONIC SUBMISSIONS 

 
The following information applies to all proposals.  The documents listed below must be included in your 
un-priced response. The preferred method for receiving responses is via electronic submission at 
www.tupelomsbids.com. 

 
UN-PRICED PROPOSAL SUBMISSION BY ELECTRONIC MEANS: 

 Log-in at www.tupelomsbids.com and perform the following steps: 
A. Scan in all required documentation as a pdf file. 
B. On the left side of the webpage, click on “Public bids”. 
C. Click on the appropriate bid that you will be participating in. 
D. Click on the “Submit Bid” tab. 

1. Fill in your profile information (or check for accuracy if auto-populated).   
2. Under the “FDF Attachments section” Drag and drop your pdf file into the box as outlined or 

click on the “click here” link inside the submission box to find your file. 
3. Under the “Review and Verify” section, click the box agreeing to the terms and conditions. 
4. Click “Submit” when you are ready to submit your file. 
5. You will receive confirmation when your response has been submitted. If you do not receive 

a response, your submission has not been received. If you have questions about whether the 
response was received, you can contact cory@phbidding.com or call 662-407-0193. 

E. One submitted and the solicitation period has ended, The City of Tupelo will review all 
solicitations, and all approved bidders will be able to take part in the reverse auction process once 
it begins.  Note:  The reverse auction will take place at https://phbidding.procureport.com. 
Separate registration for usage to the reverse auction site is required.  If you are approved to 
participate in the reverse auction, detailed instructions will be sent to you.  

F. The bid submission can be redacted at any time prior to the bid opening time. 
 
 
 
 
 

- 18 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@planhouseprinting.com
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
mailto:cory@phbidding.com
https://phbidding.procureport.com/


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   5 

  The following items should be included in the electronic submission: 
1. Submission Cover Letter (Form A) 
2. Completed Response Form (Form B) 
3. Product Brochures 
4. Warranty Information 
5. PH Bidding Supplier Agreement 
6. Any other information the vendor would like for the City of Tupelo to consider. 

 
 

Any questions regarding the website, response submissions, or reverse auction process can be 
directed to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193 or cory@phbidding.com. 
 

VI. PROPOSAL OPENING 

Proposal openings, whether electronic or traditional paper method, shall be conducted any time after 
they are received. From that point forward, proposals will be considered under advisement. Hinds 
Community College may conduct written or oral discussions with potential bidders.  

 
Pricing will only be accepted through the Reverse Auction process by vendors that are approved 

through the multi-step process. Un-priced proposal openings shall be conducted any time after they are 

received. From that point forward, un-priced proposals will be considered under advisement.  Hinds 

Community College may conduct written or oral discussions with potential bidders. Hinds Community 

College reserves the right to determine responsive offers or proposals, waive minor informalities in the 

process, to reject any and all offers or proposals, and to invite priced bids from those companies 

believed most advantageous to Hinds Community College. 

 
It is understood that bidders who submit proposals have read, understood and accepted these 

specifications as written, and by submitting a proposal, agree to meet the specifications as written. 

Proposal modifications, alterations or corrections received after the closing time specified shall not be 

considered. Proposals must remain valid for a minimum of 60 days from the opening date. Hinds 

Community College is a Tax-Exempt Government Entity. 

If you are selected to receive an invitation to provide priced bids, complete instructions for 

participation in the reverse auction and submitting priced bids shall be provided in the 

invitation.  

 
VII. REVERSE AUCTION 

Vendors submitting their unpriced proposals before the bid deadline and meeting the minimum 
specifications will be invited to participate in the Online Reverse Auction. The reverse auction will begin 
on December 15, 2023 at 10:00 AM CST. Full instructions regarding registering for the reverse auction 
will be included in the invitation.  

 
The Online Reverse Auction is an auction event in which bidders submit pricing in a decreasing 
manner. In PH Bidding Reverse Auctions, all bidders will be able to see their ranking in the bid process 
and will have the opportunity to lower their bid as often as possible if they see fit.  

 
The reverse auction will be set for an initial 30-minute time slot. Bidders can begin entering their bid 
price and delivery time once the bid has started. Vendors will not be able to see other vendors’ pricing. 
Each vendor will be able to see their bid ranking once their bid is entered. If you are the lowest bidder 
when your bid is entered, you will see a (1) beside your bid. If you have the second lowest bid, you will 
see a (2) beside your bid, (3) for third, etc. If you enter your bid and are ranked 1st, you will need to 
continue watching to ensure that no bids have been entered that are lower than your bid amount. If a 
bid is entered that is lower than your bid, you will have an opportunity to enter a lower bid amount.  

- 19 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   6 

There is an anti-sniping feature as part of this bid. Any bids submitted within the last 3 minutes of the 
bid will extend the bid time by an additional 3-minute extension and will continue until 3 minutes have 
gone by without a bid. At that point, the auction will end. 

  
There is no benefit to waiting until the last minute to enter your bid during the reverse auction. You will 
not be able to see other bids during the auction, only your bid ranking. If you are in first place in bidding 
and your bid changes to (2), (3), etc., that means that someone has entered a bid that is lower than 
your bid. At that time, you can change your bid price if you would like. 

 
**PH Bidding Group makes no recommendations on choosing the awarded vendor. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 20 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   7 

*FORM A* 
 

Submission Cover Letter for 
Un-priced Technical Proposals 

 
5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck  

for the Fire Department Homeland Security Task Forces 
Bid # 2023-053FD 

 

 
The undersigned proposes to provide equipment as per the specifications provided by the City of Tupelo and 
the subsequent proposal from the bidder named below: 
 
If, after reviewing all vendor submissions, the City of Tupelo decides to invite 
______________________________ (your company name) to submit priced bids, we agree to participate in the 
reverse auction, which will take place on December 13, 2023, at 2:00 PM.  We understand that detailed 
instructions regarding the reverse auction process will be emailed to all approved vendors. 
 
It is understood that we have only one opportunity to submit an un-priced technical proposal.  We affirm that we 
have read and understood this request for un-priced technical proposals and understand that Phase Two must 
be completed before the items are awarded.  We understand that any missing information or documents required 
by the BID may be cause for rejection of the proposal. 
 
We acknowledge that the City of Tupelo has the sole discretion and authority to determine whether our proposed 
commodity meets the specifications issued and if it will meet the requirements and needs of the City of Tupelo. 
We understand that the City of Tupelo may or may not invite our participation in Phase Two (REVERSE 
AUCTION – Priced Bids) of this procurement.  
 
We agree to abide by the terms and conditions of the PH Bidding Group Supplier agreement and understand 
that any questions regarding the agreement or the bid process should be directed to 662-407-0193 or 
cory@phbidding.com. 
 
If we are invited by the City of Tupelo to participate in Phase Two (REVERESE AUCTION – Priced Bids) of this 
procurement, the invitation should be directed to: 
 
Printed Name _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Title ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Company Name _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Email _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Phone ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J. Steven Hand

Fleet Sales Director

Cannon Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram

shand@nobodybeatsacannondeal.com

662-453-4211 extension 3415

- 21 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   8 

*FORM B* 
 

SPECIFICATION RESPONSE FORM 
 

5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck 
 for the Fire Department Homeland Security Task Forces 

Bid # 2023-053FD 
 

The undersigned proposes to furnish a 5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck, which meets the specifications 
provided. The undersigned certifies that the minimum specifications, terms, and conditions contained in this 
BID have been considered and understood. By submitting a response, I/We do certify that the commodities 
offered do meet the specifications contained in this Invitation to Bid.  
 

Please check ‘✔’ each line item – confirming specifications listed will be met. 

5500 Series Prime Mover Pickup Truck 

ITEM MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
ACKNOWLEDGE 

VARIANCE 
YES NO 

Mechanical 

5500 CREW CAB CHASSIS 4X4 (197.4 in WB - 
CA of 84 in) 

  
 

6.7L I6 Cummins Turbo Diesel Engine    

6-Spd Auto Aisin AS69RC HD Trans    

Bright White Clear Coat    

Monotone Paint    

HD Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat    

52 & 22 Gallon Dual Fuel Tanks    

Elec Shift-On-The-Fly Transfer Case    

Heavy Duty Front Suspension Group    

Max Tow Package    

Interior 

Cargo and CHMSL Lamp    

Rear Folding Seat    

40/20/40 Split Bench Seat    

Exterior 

Black/Diesel Gray    

Front Fog Lamps    

LED Tail Lamps    

Chrome Appearance Group    

Heavy Duty Snow Plow Prep Group    

 
Safety and 
Security 

 

Trailer Brake Control    

ParkView Rear Back-up Camera    

ParkSense Rear Park Assist System    

Additions 

225/70R19.5G Off Road Tires    

Full Size Spare Tire    

Chrome Tubular Side Steps    

Front License Plate Bracket    

Remote Keyless Entry    

Manufacture’s Statement of Origin    

Manual DPF Regeneration 
 
 

  

 

       X
         X
X

X
X

   X
X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X

X

- 22 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   9 

GENERAL BIDDER’S REQUIREMENTS  

Delivery - The successful bidder will deliver fully assembled 
vehicles to Tupelo Fire Department at 71 Troy St, Tupelo, MS 
38804. The Bidder is to notify the City of Tupelo of any delays in 
delivery extending beyond two (2) weeks from the Final 
Anticipated Delivery Date stated in this document. Failure to 
coordinate major delays in delivery with the City of Tupelo 
designated personnel shall release the City of Tupelo of this 
purchase order contract.  

   

All items must be as specified or approved equal by the City of 
Tupelo.  

   

Specification Response Form Complete Document Checklist and Bid Requirement Acknowledgment 
Please include all below documents in order for your Specification Response Form to be considered: 

ITEM 
ACKNOWLEDGE 

VARIANCE 
YES NO 

Equipment Specifications Included    

Written Warranty Information/Service Information Included:    

PH Bidding Supplier Agreement Included. Checking this box 
acknowledges that you understand your responsibilities under the 
PH Bidding Supplier Agreement. 

   

If your product meets specifications and you are approved to 
participate in the reverse auction, you will be given full details 
regarding participation in the reverse auction. 

   

 

If you will require technical assistance for the submission of the specification response or the reverse 
auction process, this will require you to either contact PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193 or 
cory@phbidding.com at least one day prior to the specification response deadline or the reverse auction 
date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X

X

X
x

x

x

- 23 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   10 

BIDDER INFORMATION 
 

 
 

Company _______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Physical Address _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Billing Address _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

City________________________________ State ___________   Zip _____________________ 

 

 

Phone ________________________ Email _________________________________________ 

 

 

Authorized Agent Name ____________________________________________ 

 

 

Title ____________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Signature ________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cannon Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram

69860 Hwy 82 West Greenwood, MS 38930

69900 Hwy 82 West 

Greenwood MS 38930

662-453-4211 ext 3415 shand@nobodybeatsacannondeal.com

J. Steven Hand

Fleet Sales Director

- 24 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   11 

 
 

Supplier Agreement 

 
INTENT AND CONTACT  

 

This document shall detail the conditions upon which a supplier, contractor, vendor or other individual, 

business or corporation seeking to do business with any client who has contracted, whether verbally, by 

resolution or any other means with PH Bidding Group for the use of its reverse auction platform shall be 

allowed to utilize the PH Bidding Group Reverse Auction Platform located at 

https://phbidding.procureport.com/. Only through completion of this document and unconditional agreement to 

this agreement in its entirety will you or your assigns, agents or employees or other designees be allowed to 

utilize this platform to submit pricing to the client(s) of PH Bidding Group.   

 

This Agreement contains provisions for an administrative fee, discussed in Section 16. 

   

PH Bidding Group hereby agrees to all sections contained within which outline its obligations and 

responsibilities.  

 

PH Bidding Group Contact information is:   

PH Bidding Group   

605 West Main Street  

Tupelo, MS 38804  

662.407.0193  

cory@phbidding.com  

 

TERMS OF USE   

 

Reverse Auction and Strategic Procurement Software – One Time Use Agreement for Suppliers Only  

 

If you have difficulty in completing this document, email us at cory@phbidding.com or call us direct at 

662.407.0193. 

  

By participating in the reverse auction procurement process initiated by PH Bidding Group and its strategic 

partner(s), you agree that you have accepted this agreement in its entirety, without exception, and that you, 

your representatives, and assigns agree to the following terms, statements and conditions: 

 

Definitions:  

 

“PH Bidding Group” shall mean the provider of a Reverse Auction Event Platform used in conjunction with 

Buyers to negotiate pricing on desired service, goods, or information.  

 

“You”, “Supplier” or “Suppliers” shall mean anyone signing this agreement that will use or direct the use of 

PH Bidding Group’ Reverse Auction Event Platform for the purpose of selling services, goods or information to 

Buyers who retain the services of PH Bidding Group.  

- 25 -

Item # 4.

https://phbidding.procureport.com/
mailto:cory@phbidding.com
mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   12 

“Buyer” shall mean any client or customer of PH Bidding Group who chooses or has chosen in the past to 

procure through the use of a Reverse Auction Event Platform or information provided by or in conjunction with 

PH Bidding Group.  

 

“Reverse Auction Event Platform” shall mean the platform accessed within or from or in conjunction with the 

website address at https://phbidding.procureport.com/ , which is used by various Buyers to procure services, 

goods or information.  

 

1.) All information related to bids, projects, specifications, and terms of sale to potential clients of PH Bidding 

Group are based on information received directly from the client, and not necessarily approved by PH 

Bidding Group.  PH Bidding Group makes no warranty concerning information approved by its clients for 

use in reverse auction events.  

 

2.) PH Bidding Group cannot and will not be held liable for delays in reverse auction events, server failures 

or changes in scheduling for reverse auction events.   

 
3.) You acknowledge that PH Bidding Group is merely the conduit through which pricing is achieved for the 

benefit of our clients, and not an endorsement of our clients’ creditworthiness, ability to perform upon a 

contract or agreement, nor the proper use of materials, equipment or any other service or goods 

purchased through the use of our reverse auction software.  PH Bidding Group shall not be held liable 

clients’ failure to perform or award upon a given reverse auction event.  All agreements that arise 

between suppliers and buyers are then the sole responsibility of those two parties, wherein PH Bidding 

Group shall be indemnified.  

 
4.) This agreement shall be good for a one-time use of PH Bidding Group’s reverse auction strategic 

procurement solution.  Only through acceptance of this agreement are you permitted to utilize the bidding 

platform.  In the event that you violate any of the terms of any part of this agreement, PH Bidding Group 

may, in its sole and absolute discretion, terminate your ability to access the platform. In the event that PH 

Bidding Group terminates your access to the reverse auction software for any reason, neither you nor 

your assigns, affiliates, employers, employees or subsidiaries or beneficiaries shall have a claim against 

PH Bidding Group, its employees, assigns or beneficiaries.   

 
5.) PH Bidding Group shall provide basic training and basic instruction (if requested) concerning the 

operation of the supplier side functions of its reverse auction software, which is operated entirely online.  

Supplier shall be solely responsible for his or her attendance to this training.  PH Bidding Group shall 

make reasonable efforts to accommodate training to Supplier’s schedule, but Supplier acknowledges that 

he or she is ultimately solely responsible for attendance.  Supplier agrees not to attempt to reverse 

engineer, model or copy this software.  

 
6.) It shall be the supplier’s responsibility to comply fully with the terms and conditions set forth by clients of 

PH Bidding Group, and to ensure that supplier conduct falls within state purchasing laws.  

 
7.) It shall be the sole and absolute responsibility of the Supplier to meet all deadlines for specification 

responses and sample presentations or the attending of any pre-bid conferences or any other functions 

as may be required from time to time by either PH Bidding Group or the Buyer.  Failure to meet any of 

these deadlines or appointments does not entitle the supplier to an extension of the deadline or a delay 

in the scheduled date of the reverse auction event.   

 
 
 
 
 

- 26 -

Item # 4.

https://phbidding.procureport.com/


 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   13 

8.) Supplier shall also be solely responsible for his own access to the Internet. If Supplier has no access to 

the Internet and is unable to locate access on his own, PH Bidding Group may, at its sole and absolute 

discretion, assist Supplier in locating sufficient Internet access for the purposes of participating in a 

contemplated Reverse Auction Event.  Supplier also agrees that he is solely responsible for using his 

access to the Internet in a responsible manner in conjunction with this Reverse Auction Event so as not 

to intentionally interfere with another Supplier’s access to the Reverse Auction Event.  

 
9.) It shall be the sole and absolute responsibility of the supplier to ensure that it meets all state and federal 

regulations with respect to product offerings and its ability to offer such items or services.  

 
10.) Suppliers agree that any and all information they provide shall be accurate and truthful.  PH Bidding 

Group shall take reasonable precautions deemed necessary in its sole and absolute discretion to protect 

and safeguard that information but shall not be held liable in the event of a breach of that security.  PH 

Bidding Group does not guarantee either the validity of your information or the safety of the information 

you provide.  In the event your information becomes compromised, PH Bidding Group will issue you a 

new password.  

 
11.) Supplier agrees that he has no right to transfer this one-time use license.  

 
12.) Supplier agrees that he shall have no claim against PH Bidding Group for any virus that may infect the 

hardware or software of the supplier as a direct or indirect result from the use or perceived use of PH 

Bidding Group’ reverse auction software.  

 
13.) Supplier agrees that his sole remedy in the event that supplier determines he dislikes the reverse auction 

process or service is to stop using the service.  

 
14.) Supplier agrees that he will neither share nor leak his password to the service for the purpose of allowing 

competitors of PH Bidding Group to view the reverse auction process or allow unauthorized persons to 

view a Reverse Auction Event for the purpose of providing information to other unauthorized users, 

regardless of intent or consequence.  In the event of a breach of this section of the agreement, PH 

Bidding Group may, in its sole and absolute discretion, remove access to the Reverse Auction Event or 

any other portion of Internet based material from the Supplier.  

 
15.) Supplier agrees that in the event of an Internet or server failure on the side of PH Bidding Group, 

arrangements may be made by PH Bidding Group in conjunction with the buyer for an alternate date for 

the Reverse Auction Event.  Suppliers shall have no claim against PH Bidding Group, its employees, 

assigns or beneficiaries.  

 
16.) An investment of time and financial resources is necessary for the continued operation of Reverse 

Auction Events run on PH Bidding Group platform.  Therefore, a transaction fee based solely upon the 

final awarded purchase price shall be charged to the supplier.  This transaction fee shall be self-

assessed by the Supplier, who, by participating or reviewing or viewing PH Bidding Group’ Reverse 

Auction Platform, website or information prepared by or in conjunction with PH Bidding Group, 

acknowledges receipt of service from PH Bidding Group regardless of the means of the final 

arrangement of pricing, whether through PH Bidding Group’s Reverse Auction Event or other direct 

negotiations or bids.  Supplier agrees that if he or she at any time has used the Reverse Auction platform 

or any portion or part of the software or Internet platform or website or information provided by or 

prepared by or in conjunction with PH Bidding Group for purposes of a contemplated bid, the fees 

described within this agreement as being due to PH Bidding Group shall be due in full in accordance with 

normal billing procedures set forth herein and are fully earned by PH Bidding Group.   

 

 

 
- 27 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   14 

Fees shall be self-assessed by the winning Supplier in the following amount and shall apply to all bids:  

 

4% of the total contract price, including all service agreements, extended warranties and equipment.  

 

Fees shall be paid to PH Bidding Group in the following manner:  

 

All fees, in full, shall be due to PH Bidding Group within 15 calendar days of payment by the purchasing entity 

to the winning vendor for equipment, materials or other items by the Buyer.  Partial payments shall not be 

accepted, and payments which are not received within 60 calendar days shall immediately accrue interest at 

the rate of 2% monthly plus a recurring monthly service fee of $50.  Supplier agrees that after 90 (ninety) days 

of non-payment, Supplier shall be considered in default of this agreement by PH Bidding Group and subject to 

all necessary and legal means of collection of this debt.  In addition, Supplier agrees to pay all fees and lost 

monies required to collect Suppliers debt to PH Bidding Group.  Jurisdiction for all collection efforts shall be 

Tupelo, Mississippi exclusively.  

 

Suppliers should ensure that their total bid includes all fees due to PH Bidding Group.  Supplier agrees that it is 

his sole and absolute responsibility to include fees due PH Bidding Group with all submitted bids.  

Supplier agrees that any and all future orders or transactions arising from the use of PH Bidding Group’ 

Reverse Auction Event Platform shall be subject to the fees listed above and payable based upon the same 

guidelines.  Future orders and transactions shall include but not be limited to, accessories, modifications, or 

aftermarket equipment. 

 

17.)  By participating in this Reverse Auction Event or by viewing materials associated with this Reverse 

Auction Event, Supplier agrees not to attempt circumvention or contemplate circumvention or enter into 

any agreement that would circumvent this agreement in any way, whether intentional or unintentional 

which results or may result in avoiding fees due to PH Bidding Group or negotiating directly with Buyer or 

avoids or attempts to avoid the Reverse Auction Event.  These circumvention techniques could include 

but shall in no way be limited to verbal agreements, bids written on paper delivered by any means or 

electronic communications, signals, or other means of communication.  

 

18.) Supplier agrees that all content provided by PH Bidding Group is considered the sole property of PH 

Bidding Group.  Unauthorized sharing or use of these materials and content is prohibited.  Supplier 

agrees that he will use this content solely for the purpose of participating in a Reverse Auction Event in 

good faith.  

 
19.) PH Bidding Group may alter this agreement at any time.  Notice shall be given to Supplier within 24 

hours of PH Bidding Group’s alteration of this agreement if currently in force either by email, the posting 

of specific related information within the bid package located within the Reverse Auction Bid platform that 

will be used by Supplier to gather information on this specific bid, or by certified mail.  PH Bidding Group 

is hereby informing Supplier that our preferred method of notification is by using the Adobe Acrobat 

protected document format (FDF), delivered by email.    

 
20.) This Agreement and all rights of the parties associated with it shall be governed by the laws as set forth 

within the State of Mississippi.  Jurisdiction relating to any matters arising from the use of this agreement 

shall be the City of Tupelo, Mississippi.  If any portion of this agreement is found to be unenforceable, 

whether due to illegality or misappropriation, the remainder of this agreement and its enforceability shall 

survive in full and shall be in no way affected.  This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties.  No other verbal representations, examples, or correspondence, whether electronic, verbal or 

written, shall survive the signing of this agreement.  

 

 

 

 
- 28 -

Item # 4.



 

2023-053FD CITY OF TUPELO- 5500 SERIES PRIME MOVER PICKUP TRUCK                   15 

Acceptance - This agreement is hereby accepted in its entirety, without exception.  I assert under penalty of 

law, I am the authorized signatory for the following organization, company, group or individual:  

 

Organization, Company, or Individual represented:  _________________________________________ 

 

Authorized Representative (Printed Name):   _________________________________________ 

 

Title of Authorized Representative:   _________________________________________ 

 

 

BILLING INFORMATION: 

 

Email Address:      __________________________________________ 

 

Physical Address:    __________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address (if different):   __________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________ 

   

Office Phone:     __________________________________________  

 

Mobile Phone:     __________________________________________  

 

 

 

Signature: _______________________________________________    

 

Date: ____________________________________  

 

 

Return this Agreement, with your completed Bid Response Package to PH Bidding Group before the vendor 

response deadline outlined in the bid advertisement or bid documents.  You may scan and submit this 

agreement with your bid response to the applicable bid management site or you may email the completed, 

signed pages to cory@phbidding.com. For questions regarding this agreement or the bid item(s), you may 

contact PH Bidding at 662-407-0193. 

 

 
If you will require technical assistance for the submission of the specification response or the reverse 
auction process, this will require you to contact PH Bidding Group at either 662-407-0193 or 
cory@phbidding.com at least one day prior to the specification response deadline or the reverse auction 
date. 

 

 

 

Cannon Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram

J. Steven Hand

Fleet Sales Director

shand@nobodybeatsacannondeal.com

69860 Hwy 82 West

Greenwood, MS 38930

69900 Hwy 82 W.  

Greenwood, MS 38930

662-453-4211 extension 3415

601-383-4263

11/17/2023

- 29 -

Item # 4.

mailto:cory@phbidding.com
mailto:cory@phbidding.com


 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, DDS Director 

DATE November 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – 

MULTIFAMILY (TABLED AT NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MEETING)TN 
  

 

Request:  

For discussion, review and approval.  

 

- 30 -

Item # 5.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, DDS Director 

DATE November 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS 

(TABLED AT NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MEETING)TN 
  

 

Request:  

For discussion, review and approval.  

 

- 31 -

Item # 6.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Public Works Director 

DATE December 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD BID 

NO. 2023-022PW - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request to approve Change Order No. 1 Endville Road Project No. 2023-022PW  

 

Additional work is required to address deficient base and subgrade conditions within the existing 

section of Endville Rd. The change order provides additional curb and gutter as required at an 

existing church parking lot per the property owner’s request. 

 

Original Contract Price - $1,202,489.20 

Contract Increased - $98,620.25 

Contract Total including Change Order - $1,301,109.45 

 

 

 

 

 

- 32 -

Item # 7.



- 33 -

Item # 7.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director of Public Works 

DATE December 21, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAIN 

REPLACEMENT BID NO. 2023-060PW - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request to approve the bid for the Mitchell Road Crossdrain Replacement Project. 

 

This work consists of the replacement of existing pipe culvert cross drains at three separate 

locations on Mitchell Road. 

 

9 bidders responded. 

 

We request to award the bid to lowest and best bidder – Townes Construction Company, Inc.  

 

Townes Construction Bid Amount $366,890.31 

 

Engineers estimate for the project is $525,960.00.  Difference of -$159,069.69. 

 

 

 

 

- 34 -

Item # 8.



- 35 -

Item # 8.



- 36 -

Item # 8.



- 37 -

Item # 8.



- 38 -

Item # 8.



- 39 -

Item # 8.



- 40 -

Item # 8.



- 41 -

Item # 8.



- 42 -

Item # 8.



- 43 -

Item # 8.



- 44 -

Item # 8.



- 45 -

Item # 8.



- 46 -

Item # 8.



- 47 -

Item # 8.



- 48 -

Item # 8.



- 49 -

Item # 8.



- 50 -

Item # 8.



- 51 -

Item # 8.



- 52 -

Item # 8.



ESI PROJECT NO.:            DATE: 
       T23-410                           November 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

AND 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
 

FOR THE 
 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
(BID # 2023-060PW) 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

- 53 -

Item # 8.



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
 

FOR THE 
 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 

MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 
 

MAYOR: 
TODD JORDAN 

 
CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER: 

DON LEWIS 
 

CITY ENGINEER: 
DENNIS BONDS 

 
CITY COUNCIL: 

NETTIE DAVIS, PRESIDENT 
CHAD MIMS 

LYNN BRYAN  
TRAVIS BEARD 

BUDDY PALMER 
JANET GASTON 

ROSIE JONES 
 
 
 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
BEN LOGAN 

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: 

KIM HANNA 
 
 

- 54 -

Item # 8.



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND ASSEMBLY OF SPECIFICATIONS 
MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 

Contract Documents and Assembly of Specifications       
Advertisement for Bids  
ARPA MANDATORY ADDENDUM 6-5-23        
Mandatory Provisions for all City of Tupelo Projects  
Information for Bidders         
Bid Proposal         
Bid Bond         
Payment Bond         
Performance Bond        
Agreement         
Certificate of Owner’s Attorney       
General Conditions        
Special Conditions        
Notice of Award        
Notice to Proceed        
Change Order   

 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 
Scope of Work 
Mobilization  
Maintenance of Traffic  
Clearing and Grubbing 
Earthwork 
Select Borrow Material 
Granular Material (Crushed Stone) 
Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control 
Permanent Erosion Control 
Bituminous Pavements 
Storm Drainage 
Minor Structure Concrete 
Rock Rip Rap 
Painted Traffic Markings 
Flowable Fill 
Record Drawings 

- 55 -

Item # 8.



MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

BID # 2023-060PW 
 
Sealed or electronic bids for the construction of MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS will be 
received by the City of Tupelo, Mississippi at City Hall, 71 East Troy St., 1st Floor Purchasing 
Office, Attn: Traci Dillard, until 10:00 A.M., on Thursday, December 21, 2023 and then publicly 
opened and read aloud at the Tupelo City Hall Conference Room B. Electronic bids will be 
received until the date and time via electronic online submission through www.tupelomsbids.com. 
 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications, may be viewed and/or purchased at 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  Any questions regarding the website or obtaining bid documents should 
be directed to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193. Contract Documents, including Drawings and 
Specifications, may also be examined at the Tupelo City Hall (address above) or at Engineering 
Solutions, Inc. located at 1324 N Veterans Tupelo, MS.  
 
This work consists of the replacement of existing pipe culvert cross drains at three separate 
locations on Mitchell Road. The work will include but is not limited to earthwork, storm drainage, 
base and pavement. Defined quantities to be bid are specified in the Contract Documents. 
 
Each bid submitted must be marked on the outside “Bid for MITCHELL ROAD 
CROSSDRAINS”.  Any bid in excess of $50,000 must contain on the outside of the envelope the 
contractor’s current certificate of responsibility number, and no bid shall be opened or considered 
unless this number appears on the outside of the envelope or unless a statement is included on the 
outside of the envelope indicating that the bid enclosed does not exceed $50,000. 
 
A satisfactory Bid Bond executed by the Bidder and an accepted Surety, a certified check, or bank 
draft payable to the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, on negotiable U.S. Government Bonds (at par 
value), shall be submitted with each bid in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the total bid. 
  
In the letting of public contracts, preference shall be given to resident contractors, and a 
nonresident bidder domiciled in a state having laws granting preference to local contractors shall be 
awarded Mississippi public contracts only on the same basis as the nonresident bidder’s state 
awards contracts to Mississippi contractors bidding under similar circumstances; and resident 
contractors actually domiciled in Mississippi, be they corporate, individuals, or partnerships, are to 
be granted preference over nonresidents in awarding of contracts in the same manner and to the 
same extent as provided by the laws of the state of domicile of the nonresident.  When a 
nonresident contractor submits a bid for a public project, he shall attach thereto a copy of his 
resident state’s current law pertaining to such state’s treatment of nonresident contractors.  
 
Minority and Woman Owned Business Enterprises are solicited to bid on this contract as prime 
contractors and are encouraged to make inquiries regarding potential subcontracting opportunities, 
equipment, material and/or supply needs. 
 
The City of Tupelo is an Equal Opportunity Employer, and hereby notifies all Bidders will be 
afforded the full opportunities to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, 
sexual preference, marital or veteran status, or any other legally protected status in consideration 
for an award. 
 - 56 -

Item # 8.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


Bids may be held up to 90 days from the date of opening for review of bids and qualifications of 
bidders prior to Contract award.  The City of Tupelo, MS reserves the right to reject any or all bids 
or to waive any informalities in the bidding. 
 
TODD JORDAN 
Kim Hanna, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
11-22-2023 and 11-29-2-23  

 

- 57 -

Item # 8.



American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Mandatory Addendum (6-5-2023) 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations and Executive Orders 
This is an acknowledgement that federal assistance from the US Department of Treasury 
under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) will be used to fund all or a portion of the 
contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 
orders, ARPA implementing regulations and any correlating regulations established by the 
Treasury Department, including but not limited to the following conditions: 
 
Equal Opportunity Clause 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
 
(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting 
officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or 
on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has 
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant 
or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which 
an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 
applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the 
compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not 
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 
formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or 
action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the 
contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to 
be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' 
representative of the contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary 
of Labor. 

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary 
of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and - 58 -

Item # 8.



accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of 
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of 
this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be 
canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be 
declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures 
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions 
may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

(8) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the 
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor 
or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing 
such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the 
event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the 
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in or is threatened with 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering 
agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect 
the interests of the United States. 
 

Minority and Women Business Enterprises 
This contract was procured by the OWNER taking affirmative steps to assure that women 
and minority businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, 
construction and services. Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the following, or when 
otherwise applicable:  
 
The requirements of Executive Orders 11625 and 12432 (concerning Minority Business 
Enterprise), and 12138 (concerning Women's Business Enterprise).  
 
Contractor hereby agrees to take affirmative steps to assure that women and minority 
businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction and 
services. Affirmative steps shall include the following: 
 

1) Including qualified women’s business enterprises and small and minority businesses on 
solicitation lists; 

2) Assuring that women’s enterprises and small and minority businesses are solicited 
whenever they are potential sources; 

3) When economically feasible, dividing total requirements into smaller tasks or 
quantities so as to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and 
women’s business enterprises; 

4) Where the requirement permits, establishing delivery schedules which will encourage 
participation by women’s business enterprises and small and minority business; 

5) Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the U.S. 
Office of Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; 
and for the purposes of these requirements, a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) is 

- 59 -

Item # 8.



defined as an enterprise that is at least 51 percent owned and controlled in its daily 
operation by members of the following groups: Black, Hispanic, Asian or Pacific 
Islander, American Indian, or Alaskan Natives. A Women Business Enterprise (WBE) 
is defined as an enterprise that is at least 51 percent owned and controlled in its daily 
operation by women. 

6)  If any subcontracts are to be let, requiring the prime Contractor to take the affirmative 
steps in a through e above. 

 
Entities and contractors were previously required to provide proof of compliance to 2 CFR  
200.321 by providing proof of submitting solicitation to the Mississippi Procurement  
Technical Assistance Program (MPTAP) and proof of targeted solicitation to DBE  
firms/vendors.Guidance from MDEQ dated May 1, 2023 requires awardees to show proof  
of compliance by one of the two methods, or both should they choose to. An email detailing  
the project should be sent to Agency Bid Bank agencybidbank@mississippi.org You  
should receive a confirmation to retain in order to demonstrate proof of compliance. 
 
Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act 
Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the 
requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference 
into this contract. 
 
Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause 
above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a 
clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 
The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower 
tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses. 
 
Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the 
contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 
5.12. 
 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
Contracts that are in excess of $100,000 and involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers must include provisions requiring compliance with the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act as follows: 

 
(1) Overtime requirements: No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 

contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics 
shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or 
she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such a workweek 
unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and 
one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in 
such a workweek. 

(2) Violation: liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation 
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, 
such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of 
work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or 
to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 
with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the 

- 60 -

Item # 8.

mailto:agencybidbank@mississippi.org


sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted 
to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The OWNER shall upon its 
own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department 
of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of 
work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted 
contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held 
by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 
satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring 
the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower-tier subcontracts. The prime 
contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower-tier 
subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 
Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued 

pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the OWNER and understands and agrees that the 

OWNER will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Treasury 
Department and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 
financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan Act funding. 

 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act 

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 
1251 et seq. 

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the OWNER and understands and 
agrees that the OWNER will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure 
notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate Environmental Protection 
Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan Act funds. 

 
Debarment and Suspension 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As 
such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor’s principals (defined at 2 
C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
 
The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and 
must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it 
enters into. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by OWNER. If it is later 

- 61 -

Item # 8.



determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 
3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to OWNER, the Federal Government may 
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 
 
Cities cannot award a contract to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the 
System for Award Management (SAM) listed at www.sam.gov. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 
Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or 
any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such 
disclosures are forwarded from tier-to-tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 
A Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification is attached to these supplemental general conditions and 
execution is required for this contract. 
 
Procurement of Recovered Materials 
In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 
recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired: 
Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance 
schedule; meeting contract performance requirements; or at a reasonable price. 
 
Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designated items, is available at 
EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, 
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 
 
The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the 
Solid Waste Disposal Act. 
 

Access to Records 
The Contractor agrees to provide OWNER and the Comptroller General of the United States, or 
any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 
 
The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever 
or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
 
OWNER and the Contractor acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to 
prohibit audits or internal reviews by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
No Obligation by Federal Government 
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting 
from the contract. 
 

- 62 -

Item # 8.

http://www.sam.gov/
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program


Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 
The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims 
and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract. 
 
Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment 
(Huawei and ZTE) 
Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: 

(1) Procure or obtain; 
(2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or 
(3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, 

services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a 
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any 
system. As described in Public Law 115–232, section 889, covered telecommunications 
equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or 
ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security 
surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video 
surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications 
Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology 
Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

(ii)Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using 
such equipment. 

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or 
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of 
the National Intelligence or the  Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 
reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 
the government of a covered foreign country. 

 
Publications 
Any publications produced with funds from this award must display the following language: “This 
project is being supported in whole or in part by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), federal 
award number [enter project FAIN] awarded to The City of Tupelo, Mississippi by the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury.” 
 
Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Contractor is encouraged to 
adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for your employees when operating 
company-owned, rented or personally owned vehicles. 
 

Reducing Text Messaging While Driving 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Contractor is encouraged to adopt 
and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving, and establish workplace safety policies 
to decrease accidents caused by distracted drivers. 

- 63 -

Item # 8.



 
BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING 

AMENDMENT 
 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funs to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal 
contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C.§ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose 
any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal 
award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will 
forward the certification (s) to the awarding agency. 
 

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 – CERTIFICATION REGARDING 
LOBBYING – REQUIRED FOR CONTRACTS OVER $100,000 

 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 

behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,  loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 
 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than - 64 -

Item # 8.



- 65 -

Item # 8.



Mandatory Addendum to 
All City of Tupelo Contracts 
October 28, 2022 

 
The City of Tupelo (TUPELO), despite any contrary provision contained in any contract 

to which TUPELO is a party, does not waive any rights, benefits, or prohibitions that may be 
provided under any law, statute(s), regulation(s), or policies. All provisions to the contrary in 
any contact to which TUPELO is a party are hereby null, void and deleted. Not intended to be 
an exhaustive list, the following are examples of such matters and shall be exceptions to any 
contrary provision(s) in any contract to which TUPELO is a party. 

 
1. TUPELO does not indemnify or hold harmless any party. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
2. TUPELO does not make any warranty. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
3. TUPELO does not waive any claim; past, present, or future. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
4. TUPELO does not waive its sovereign immunity. TUPELO shall only be 

responsible for liability resulting from the actions of its officers, agents, and 
employees acting within the course and scope of their official duties. 

Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-1, et seq. 
 

5. TUPELO does not waive its Constitutional Eleventh (11th) Amendment 
immunity. 

U.S. Const. Amend. XI. 
 

6. TUPELO does not agree to the application of laws of another state. 
U.S. Const. amend XI; Miss. Code Ann. 11-11-3; Miss. Code Ann. 11-45- 

1; City of Jackson v. Wallace, 196 So. 223 (1940) 
 

7. TUPELO does not limit the tort liability of another party to the amount of the 
contract or to any other set amount. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Hathorn (May 28, 1992); 
Miss. AG Op., Davis (March 3, 1993). 

 
8. TUPELO does not agree to waive warranties of merchantability, fitness for a 

particular purpose, or any common law warranties to which TUPELO is entitled. 
Miss. Const. Art 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 75-2-719; Miss. AG Op., 
Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

- 66 -

Item # 8.



9. TUPELO does not agree that a party may represent, prosecute or defend legal 
actions in the name of TUPELO. 

 
10. TUPELO may not and does not agree to the payment of attorney fees of a 

“prevailing party” unless specifically authorized by statute. E.g. Miss. Code 
Anno. § 31-7-309 (1972 as amended) payment of interest on outstanding invoice. 

Miss AG Op., Nowak, 2009 WL 367665 (Miss.A.G.). 
 

11. Provisions that limit the time for TUPELO to pursue legal actions are deleted and 
void. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 104; Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 
15-1-5; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin 
(Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
12. TUPELO does not agree to submit to binding arbitration. 

Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 
2002). 

 
13. TUPELO will make payments for all amounts owed under a contract agreement in 

accordance with state law. 
Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

 
14. TUPELO advises for all contracts entered into, the provisions of the contract 

which will contain the commodities purchased or the personal or professional 
services provided, the price to be paid, and the term of the contract shall not be 
deemed to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or financial information, 
and shall be available for examination, copying or reproduction. 

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (7). 
 

15. TUPELO must comply with Mississippi public records law. Records furnished to 
public bodies by third parties which contain trade secrets or confidential 
commercial or financial information shall not be subject to inspection, 
examination, copying or reproduction until notice to said third parties has been 
given, but such records shall be released within a reasonable period of time unless 
the said third parties shall have obtained a court order protecting such records as 
confidential. 

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (1). 
 

16. Data processing software obtained by TUPELO under a licensing agreement that 
prohibits its disclosure and which software is a trade secret as defined in Miss. 
Code Section 75-26-3, and data processing software produced by a public body 
which is sensitive must not be subject to inspection, copying or reproduction 
under Mississippi public records law. “Sensitive” means only those portions of 
data processing software, including the specifications and documentation, used to: 
(a) Collect, process, store, and retrieve information which is exempt; (b) Control 

- 67 -

Item # 8.



- 68 -

Item # 8.



 

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS 
 
 

 
1. RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS 
 
The City of Tupelo, Mississippi, (hereinafter called the “OWNER”), invites Bids on the forms attached 
hereto. Bids will be received by the OWNER at City Hall, 71 East Troy St., 1st Floor Purchasing Office, 
Attn: Traci Dillard until the time specified in the ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS, and then publicly opened 
and read aloud at the Tupelo City Hall Conference Room B. The envelope containing the Bids must be 
sealed and addressed to: CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, and designated as Bid for: MITCHELL ROAD 
CROSSDRAINS along with the additional required information as set forth in the Preparation of Bid 
section contained herein. 

 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications, may be viewed and/or purchased at 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  Any questions regarding the website or obtaining bid documents should be 
directed to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193. Contract Documents, including Drawings and 
Specifications, may also be examined at the Tupelo City Hall (address above) or at Engineering Solutions, 
Inc. located at 1324 N Veterans Tupelo, MS.  
 
Should a bidder choose to submit a bid electronically in place of a sealed bid, it may be submitted at 
www.tupelomsbids.com. Any questions regarding electronic bidding should be directed to PH Bidding 
Group at 662-407-0193. 
 
Each bid submitted must be marked on the outside “Bid for MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS”. Any 
bid in excess of $50,000 must contain on the outside of the envelope the contractor’s current certificate of 
responsibility number, and no bid shall be opened or considered unless this number appears on the outside 
of the envelope or unless a statement is included on the outside of the envelope indicating that the bid 
enclosed does not exceed $50,000. When bidders chose to submit bids electronically, the requirement for 
including a certificate of responsibility, or a statement that the bid enclosed does not exceed Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000.00), on the exterior of the bid envelope shall be deemed in compliance by including the 
same information as an attachment with the electronic bid submittal.  
 
The OWNER may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions 
hereof and may waive any informalities or reject any and all Bids. Any Bid may be withdrawn prior to the 
above-scheduled time for the opening of Bids or authorized postponement thereof.  Any Bid received after 
the time and date specified shall not be considered.  No Bidder may withdraw a Bid within ninety (90) days 
after the actual date of the opening thereof. 
 
When a non-resident contractor submits a Bid for a Mississippi public project, he shall attach thereto a copy 
of his resident State’s current law pertaining to such State’s treatment of non-resident contractors as 
required by House Bill Number 850, Chapter Number 527, Laws of 1988.  Bidders residing in the states 
having no contractor preference law shall so state in a letter on contractor’s letterhead attached to his bid. 
 
2.  PREPARATION OF BID 
 
Each bid must be submitted on the prescribed form. All blank spaces for Bid prices must be filled in (in ink 
or typewritten) and the foregoing certification must be fully completed when submitted.  Should the Bidder 
fail to correctly submit a Unit Price for Each item, his Bid will be classed as irregular.  Failure to properly 
sign Proposals shall disqualify same. 
 

- 69 -

Item # 8.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


 

Each Bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope bearing on the outside the name of the Bidder, his address, 
his Certificate of Responsibility Number, his State License Number, and the name of the Project for which 
the Bid is submitted.  If forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the Bid must be enclosed in 
another envelope addressed to the OWNER as specified herein. 
 
3.  REJECTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
Proposals may be rejected in the case of any omission, alterations of forms, additions or conditions not 
called for, unauthorized alternate Bids, incomplete Bids, erasures or irregularities of any kind. 
CONDITIONAL BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. Proposals in which the prices obviously are 
unbalanced may be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to waive any informalities or reject any and all 
bids. 
 
4.  TELEGRAPHIC MODIFICATION 
 
Any Bidder may modify his Bid by telegraphic communication at any time prior to the scheduled closing 
time for receipt of Bids, providing such telegraphic communication is received by the OWNER prior to the 
closing time, and provided further, the OWNER is satisfied that a written confirmation of the telegraphic 
modification over the signature of the Bidder was mailed prior to the closing time.  The telegraphic 
communication should not reveal the Bid Price, but should provide the addition or subtraction or other 
modification so that the final prices or terms will not be known by the OWNER until the sealed Bid is 
opened.  If written confirmation is not received within two (2) days from the closing time, no consideration 
will be given to the telegraphic modification. 
 
5.  METHOD BIDDING 
 
The OWNER invites only one Bid with alternates thereto, if any. Each Bidder must present a complete 
Proposal for all of the work as only one Contract will be awarded. 
 
6.  QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDER 
 
The OWNER may make such investigation as he deems necessary to determine the ability of the Bidder to 
perform the work, and the Bidder shall furnish to the OWNER all such information and data for this 
purpose as the OWNER may request. The OWNER reserves the right to reject any Bid if the evidence 
submitted by, or investigation of, such Bidder fails to satisfy the OWNER that such Bidder is properly 
qualified to carry out the obligations of the Contract and to complete the work contemplate therein. 
 
7.  BID SECURITY 
 
Each Bid must be accompanied by cash, Certified Check of the Bidder, or a Bid Bond prepared on the form 
of Bid Bond attached hereto, duly executed by the Bidder as principal and having as surety thereon a surety 
company approved by the Owner, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Bid.  Such cash, checks or Bid 
Bond will be returned to all except the three lowest Bidders after the opening of Bids. The remaining cash, 
checks or Bid Bonds will be returned after the OWNER and accepted Bidder have executed the Contract.  If 
no award has been made within ninety (90) days after the date of the opening of Bids, upon demand of the 
Bidder at any time thereafter, his Bid will be returned by the OWNER so long as the Bidder has not been 
notified of the acceptance of his Bid. 
 
8.  LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR FAILURE TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT 
 
 The successful Bidder, upon his failure or refusal to execute and deliver the Contract and Bonds required 
within (15) days after he has received notice of the acceptance of his Bid, shall forfeit to the OWNER (as 
liquidated damages for such failure or refusal) the security deposited with his Bid. 

- 70 -

Item # 8.



 

9.  TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
The Bidder must agree to commence work on or before a date specified in a written NOTICE TO 
PROCEED of the OWNER and to fully complete the project within the Contract Time stated in the 
Agreement and/or Bid Proposal. The Bidder must also agree to pay (as liquidated damages) the sum stated 
in the Bid Proposal for each working day thereafter as hereinafter provided in the General Conditions. 
 
10.  CONDITIONS OF WORK 
 
Each Bidder must inform himself fully of the conditions relating to the construction of the project and 
employment of labor thereon by conducting site visits and becoming thoroughly familiar with the Contract 
Documents. Failure to do so will not relieve a successful Bidder of his obligation to furnish all materials and 
labor necessary to carry out the provisions of his Contract.  Insofar as possible, the Contractor, in carrying 
out his work, must employ such methods or means as will not cause any interruption of or interference with 
the work of any other contractor. 
 
11.  ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 
No interpretations of the meaning of the Plans, Specifications or other pre-bid documents will be made to 
any Bidder orally. 
 
Every request for such interpretations should be in writing, addressed to: 
 
ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, INC., 1324 N. VETERANS BLVD. TUPELO, MS 38804 
 
and, to be given consideration, must be received at least five (5) days prior to the date fixed for the opening 
of Bids.  Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written 
Addenda to the Specifications, which, if issued, will be mailed, to all prospective Bidders (at the respective 
addresses furnished for such purposes) prior to the date fixed for the opening of Bids. Failure of any Bidder 
to receive any such Addenda of interpretation shall not relieve such Bidder from any obligation under his 
Bid as submitted.  All addenda so issued shall become part of the Contract documents. 
 
12.  SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE 
 
Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a Surety Bond or 
Bonds as security for faithful performance of this Contract and furnishing materials in compliance with this 
Contract as specified in the General Conditions included herein.  The surety on such Bond or Bonds shall be 
a duly authorized surety company satisfactory to the OWNER. 
 
13.  POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 
Attorneys-in-fact who sign Bid Bonds or Contract Bonds must file with each Bond a certified and 
effectively dated copy of their Power of Attorney. 
 
14.  LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
The Bidder’s attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, municipal ordinances, and the 
rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the 
Contract throughout, and they will be deemed to be included in the Contract the same as though written out 
in full. 
 

- 71 -

Item # 8.



 

15.  METHOD OF AWARD 
 
If, at the time this Contract is to be awarded, the lowest Base Bid or lowest Base Bid plus any combination 
of alternates (at the owners discretion) submitted by a responsible Bidder does not exceed the amount of 
funds then estimated by the OWNER as available to finance the Contract; the Contract will be awarded to 
the lowest qualified Bidder.  If such Bid exceeds such amount, the OWNER may reject all Bids. 
 
 
16.  OBLIGATION OF BIDDER 
 
BIDDERS must satisfy themselves of the accuracy of the estimated quantities in the BID Schedule by 
examination of the site and a review of the drawings and specifications including ADDENDA. After BIDS 
have been submitted, the BIDDER shall not assert that there was a misunderstanding concerning the 
quantities of WORK or of the nature of the WORK to be done. At the time of the opening of Bids, each 
Bidder will be presumed to have inspected the site and to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the 
Plans and Contract Documents (including all Addenda). The failure or omission of any Bidder to examine 
any form, instrument or document shall in no way relieve any Bidder from any obligation in respect to his 
Bid. 
 
17.  SAFETY STANDARDS AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
With respect to all work performed under this contract, the Contractor shall 
 
 A. Comply with the safety standards provisions of applicable laws, building and    
  construction codes. 
  
 B. Exercise every precaution at all times for the prevention of accidents and     
  protection of persons (including employees) and property. 
  
 C. Maintain at his/her office or other well-known place at the job site, all articles    

 necessary for giving first aid to the injured and shall make standing arrangements   
 for the immediate removal to a hospital or a doctor’s care of persons     
 (including employees), who may be injured on the job site.   

 
18.  SCOPE OF WORK  
 
The Bidder agrees to perform all the work described in the Contract Documents and to construct the work, 
complete in place and ready to use. 
 
19.  PRECEDENCE OF DOCUMENTS 
 
The various Contract Documents shall be given precedence, in case of conflict, error or discrepancy in the 
following order:  Addenda, General Specifications, Technical (Item) Specifications, Construction Plans, 
Information for Bidders, Special Conditions and General Conditions 
 
20. FUEL ADJUSTMENTS 
 
There will be no fuel adjustments for this project. 
 
21. ATTACHMENT C - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The Contractor shall meet the terms and conditions of the following Attachment C – Subaward Terms and 
Conditions for Contracted Parties: 

- 72 -

Item # 8.



 

 
ATTACHMENT C 

SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 
1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 
 
The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized business that is 
authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental organization, or 4) a political 
subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter into this agreement and; (b) entry into 
and performance under this agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, financing, 
contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement 
to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may 
adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this agreement. 

 
2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 
 
Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

 
A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or agency or any political subdivision 
or agency of the State of Mississippi; 
 
B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; 
 
C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in Article 2.B. and 
Article 2.C., above; and, 
 
E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. This agreement is subject to 31 
C.F.R. Part 19. 
 

3. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release and hold 
harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, all of their 
employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all claim, demand, cause 
of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including attorney's fees or expenses 
on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees or any other parties arising out of or incident 
to, any and all Work under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

- 73 -

Item # 8.



 

 
4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS 
 
The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner whatsoever, to any 
contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), engineer(s), attorney(s), 
equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any kind whatsoever (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party also acknowledge and 
agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from 
or associated with this Agreement is strictly incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to 
be considered as third-party beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT. 
Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard to the project, 
MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under such contract. The 
SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or otherwise obligate MDEQ, 
directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. 
The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors acknowledge and agree that any action taken by 
MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or 
alter its position as that of grantor. MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in 
contract claims or dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract 
claims under the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and 
the Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, approve, 
or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party. Any MDEQ reviews, approvals, 
observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal communications or other actions are not 
to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, nor are they to be construed as interpreting the 
contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the Contracted Party or any other parties. 
 
5. ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection is made during 
normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability Office, MDEQ, the State 
or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt access to any of Contracted Party’s 
books, documents, papers, and other records which are maintained or produced as a result of the Project for 
the purpose of making audits, investigations, examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such 
documents. This right also includes timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the 
purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall 
be retained by Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 
Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 
or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the records 
shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved or until the end 
of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-
mentioned records for the ten (10) year period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision 
only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

 
A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the “Right to Audit” 
provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention period and a certification 
stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 
 
B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project is 
commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding certification to 
MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all issues arising out of the 
action are finally resolved; and 
 
C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice before providing 
the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

- 74 -

Item # 8.



 

 
6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 
 
The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records and other 
records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state 
laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after 
final payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the subsequent 
ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s 
Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, 
claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started 
before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, 
investigations, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 
 
7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 
 
MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right to conduct 
announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work hereunder. Upon request 
by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, invitees, and consultants with the 
opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the 
performance of the Work. 
 
8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or 
indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, where applicable, or any 
other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of his services hereunder. 
The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the performance of this agreement, no person having any 
such interest shall be employed. The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 
gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other tie. 
 
9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION 
 
The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated representatives  
in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide in form and manner 
approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as may be required and to 
provide such reports at the times specified. Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or 
its duly designated representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information 
to assist in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) years 
after the date on which the Final Reports are provided.

- 75 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

BID PROPOSAL (# 2023-060PW) 
 
 
 
Proposal of _________________________________    (hereinafter called “BIDDER”), 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Mississippi, doing business as __________________.* 
 
To the CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, (hereinafter called “OWNER”). 
 
In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes to perform all WORK for 
MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS within the time set forth herein, and at the prices stated below.  These 
prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS of which this Proposal is a part. 
 
By submission of this BID, each BIDDER certifies, and in the case of a joint BID, each party thereto 
certifies as to his own organization, that this BID has been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement as to any matter relating to this BID with any other BIDDER or with any 
competitor. 
 
BIDDER hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date specified in the NOTICE 
TO PROCEED and to fully complete the project within 60 consecutive calendar days. BIDDER further 
agrees to pay as liquidated damages the sum of $500 for each working day after applicable completion dates 
per each phase of work as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
 
BIDDER acknowledges receipt of the following ADDENDUM: 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
*Insert “a corporation”, “a partnership”, or “an individual” as applicable 
 

Patton Construction, LLC
a limited liability company

None

- 76 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
BID PROPOSAL (# 2023-060PW)        
 
 The BIDDER agrees to perform all WORK for the construction of MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
as described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and shown on the Construction Plans for the following 
Unit Prices within the times specified in the Contract Agreement subsequent to the date specified in the 
NOTICE TO PROCEED. 
 
CONTRACT – MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
            UNIT PRICE IN               TOTAL 
ITEM DESCRIPTION            QUANTITY WORDS AND FIGURES                 PRICE  
 
 
 

1.      Mobilization     1 L.S. _______________________   
      _______________________ 
    _______________________  $______________    
 

2.       Clearing and Grubbing     1 L.S. _______________________   
      _______________________ 
    _______________________  $______________    
 
 3. Removal of Asphalt Pavement    488 S.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
  
 4. Removal of Pipe (All Type)    204 L. F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 5. Removal of Flared End Section    8 Each _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 

6. Erosion Control Measures    1 L.S. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 7. Structure Excavation    1,107 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
  
 8. Select Borrow Material     815 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 9. Hot Mix Asphalt, ST (9.5 MM)       143 Ton _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 10. Crushed Stone     304 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 

$15,000.00
Fifteen thousand dollars

15,000.00

$15,000.00
Fifteen thousand dollars

15,000.00

2,440.00

$5.00

$10.00

Five dollars

Ten dollars
2,040.00

$250.00

2,000.00
Two hundred fifty dollars

$7,500.00
Seven thousand five hundred dollars

7,500.00

$12.00

$16.00

13,284.00

13,040.00

34,320.00

$240.00

$90.00
Ninety dollars

27,360.00

Sixteen dollars

Twelve dollars

Two hundred forty dollars

- 77 -

Item # 8.



 

11. Bedding Material     75 C.Y. _______________________  
  (Type 1 DOT Aggregate)   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
12. Flowable Fill     110 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
13. 12’ x 4’ Precast Box Culvert     60 L.F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
14. 12’ x 4’ Precast Wing Wall     2 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
15. 200# Rock Rip Rap     275 Ton _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
16. Geotextile Fabric     500 S.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
17. 51” x 32” Reinforced Concrete      264 L.F. _______________________  
  Arch Pipe   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
18. 51” x 32” Reinforced Concrete      12 Each _______________________  
  Arch Flared End Section   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
19. 15” HDPE Pipe     88 L.F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
20. 15” Pipe Collar     1 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
21. 15” Branch Connection     2 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
22. Maintenance of Traffic     1 L.S. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
23. Diversion Channel 1 Each _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 

$90.00
Ninety dollars

6,750.00

$300.00
Three hundred dollars

33,000.00

$1,800.00
One thousand eight hundred dollars

108,000.00

$12,000.00
Twelve thousand dollars

24,000.00

$80.00
Eighty dollars

22,000.00

$2.00
Two dollars

1,000.00

$250.00
Two hundred fifty dollars

66,000.00

36,000.00

$3,000.00
Three thousand dollars

$35.00
Thirty-five dollars

3,080.00

$1,500.00
One thousand five hundred dollars

1,500.00

$1,500.00

1,500.00
One thousand five hundred dollars

$7,500.00

7,500.00
Seven thousand five hundred dollars

$1,000.00

1,000.00
One thousand dollars

- 78 -

Item # 8.



- 79 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
BID BOND 
 
Know all men by these presents, that we, the undersigned,       , 
as Principal, and         
as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as OWNER in the Penal 
sum of     for the payment of which, 
well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, successors and assigns. 
 
Signed, this ______________ day of _________________, 20____. 
 
The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principle has submitted to THE CITY OF TUPELO, 
MISSISSIPPI, a certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part of to enter into contract in writing, for the 
construction of: 
 
 MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
Now, therefore, 
 
 (a)  If said BID shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 (b)  If said BID shall be accepted and the Principle shall execute and deliver a contract in the Form   
  of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said BID) and shall furnish   
  a bond for his faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons    
  performing labor or furnishing materials in connection there with, and shall in all other respects   
  perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said BID, 
 
then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount 
of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the OWNER may accept such BID; and said 
Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
In Witness whereof, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as are 
corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers, the day and year first set forth above. 
 
______________________________ (L.S.) 
(Principal) 
 
______________________________ 
(Surety) 
 
By:  ____________________________________ 
 
IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s most current 
list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is 
located. 

- 80 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that 
 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________            

a                                                 , hereinafter called PRINCIPAL  

and ________________________________________________________________(Name of Surety) 

hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, 71 
East Troy St. Tupelo, MS 38804, hereinafter called OWNER, and unto all persons, firms, and corporations, 
who or which may furnish labor, or who furnish materials to perform as described under the contract and to 
their successors and assigns in the total aggregate penal sum of __________________________________ 
________________________________________in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of 
which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, 
and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the PRINCIPAL entered into a certain 
contract with the OWNER, dated the ____________________ day of __________________, 20____, a 
copy of which is hereto attached and made part hereof for the construction of: 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, and 
corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the WORK provided for in 
such contract, and any authorized extensions or modifications thereof, including all amounts due for 
materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal, and coke, repairs on machinery, equipment, and tools, consumed or 
used in connection with the construction of such WORK, and for all labor cost incurred in such WORK 
including that by a SUBCONTRACTOR, and to any mechanic or material man lien holder whether it 
acquired its lien by operation of State or Federal law; then this obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
PROVIDED, that beneficiaries or claimants hereunder shall be limited to the SUBCONTRACTORS, and 
persons, firms, and corporations having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL or its 
SUBCONTRACTORS. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said SURETY for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be 
performed there under or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way effect its 
obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration 
or addition to the terms of this contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

- 81 -

Item # 8.



 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: (a) Unless 
claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL, shall have given written notice to 
any two of the following: the PRINCIPAL, the OWNER, or the SURETY above named within ninety (90) 
days after such claimant did or performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the materials 
for which said claim is made, stating the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done 
or performed.  Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, in an envelope addressed to the PRINCIPAL, OWNER, or SURETY, at any place where an office 
is regularly maintained for the transaction of business, or served in any manner which legal process may be 
served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a 
public officer. (b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date of which PRINCIPAL ceased work 
on said CONTRACT, it being understood, however, that if any limitation embodied in the BOND is 
prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so 
as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation permitted by such law. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 
automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the 
Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the 
SURETY to the full and faithful performance of the Contract as so amended. The term “Amendment”, 
wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this BOND, the contract, or the Loan Documents 
shall include any alteration, addition, extension, or modification of any character whatsoever. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR shall 
abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in FOUR (4) counter parts, each one of which shall 
be deemed an original, this the _____________________ day of _____________________, 20___. 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 

(Principal) Secretary                 Principal 

(SEAL)       By: _____________________________ 
 
__________________________________                        ________________________________ 
Witness as to Principal     Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
       Surety 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________  By: ____________________________ 
Witness as to Surety           Attorney-In-Fact 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Address       Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 

NOTE 1: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Agreement.  If Contractor is Partnership, all partners 
should execute Bond.  Surety Companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s 
Circular 570 (most current) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is located. 

- 82 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
PERFORMANCE BOND 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that 

       
_______________________________________   

a               , hereinafter called PRINCIPAL 

 

and                                                  (Name of Surety) 
hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, 71 
East Troy St. Tupelo, MS 38804, hereinafter called OWNER, in the total aggregate penal sum of    
_______________________________________________________________ in lawful money of the 
United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the PRINCIPAL entered into a certain 
contract with the OWNER, dated the ____________________ day of __________________, 20____, a 
copy of which is hereto attached and made part hereof for the construction of: 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall well, truly, and faithfully perform its duties, all the 
undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, 
and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the OWNER with or without notice to the SURETY 
and during one year guaranty period and if the PRINCIPAL shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred 
under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the OWNER from all costs and damages 
which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the OWNER all outlay and 
expense which the OWNER may incur in making good any default, then this obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

 
PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said security, for value receive hereby stipulates and agrees that no 
change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or the WORK to be performed 
thereunder or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying same shall in any way affect its obligation on this 
BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

- 83 -

Item # 8.



 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 
automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the 
Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the 
SURETY to the full and faith full performance of the Contract as so amended. The term “Amendment”, 
wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this BOND, the contract, or the Loan Documents 
shall include any alteration, addition, extension, or modification of any character whatsoever. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OWNER and the PRINCIPAL shall abridge 
the right of the other beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.  The OWNER is the only 
beneficiary hereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in FOUR (4) counterparts, each one of which shall 
be deemed an original, this the _____________________ day of _____________________, 20____. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   _______________________________  

(Principal) Secretary     Principal 

 
(SEAL)       By: ____________________________ 
 
________________________________                            _______________________________ 
Witness as to Principal     Address 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
       Surety 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   By: ____________________________ 
Witness as to Surety            Attorney-In-Fact 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
Address       Address 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
 
 
NOTE 1: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Agreement.  If Contractor is Partnership, all partners 
should execute Bond.  Surety Companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s 
Circular 570 (most current) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is located. 

COUNTERSIGNED BY: 

__________________________ 

Resident Mississippi Agent 

- 84 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT          
 
This AGREEMENT, made this         day of   , 20__ by and between THE CITY OF 
TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, hereinafter called “OWNER” and      , doing business 
as (an individual,) or (a partnership,) or (a corporation,) hereinafter called “CONTRACTOR”. 
 
WITNESSETH:  That for and consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned: 
 
 1. The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the construction of MITCHELL ROAD 

CROSSDRAINS. 
 2. The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and other 

services necessary for the construction and completion of the project described herein. 
 3.   The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS on or 

before the date of the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the same within 60 consecutive 
calendar days unless the period for completion is extended otherwise by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS.   

 4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT   
DOCUMENTS for the sum of         
 , being the amount of the accepted proposal and subject to 
proper additions and/or deductions at the unit prices as stated in the proposal or otherwise provided 
for by modification.      

 5. The term “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS” means and includes the following: 
 
  (A) Advertisement for Bids 
  (B) Information for Bidders 
  (C) Bid Proposal 
  (D) Bid Documents 
  (E) Bid Bond 
  (F) Agreement 
  (G) Certificate of Owner’s Attorney 
  (H) General Conditions 
  (I) Special Conditions 
  (J) Payment Bond 
  (K) Performance Bond 
  (L) Notice of Award 
  (M) Notice to Proceed 
  (N) Change Order 
  (O) Drawings, specifications, and addenda prepared by Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
 
 6. The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth in the  
  General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
  

- 85 -

Item # 8.



 

AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
 7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,  
  administrators, successors, and assigns.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have  
  executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized officials, this agreement in four  
  copies, each of which shall be deemed an original on the date first written. 
 
 
 
OWNER: 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________  OWNER’S SEAL 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________  CORPORATE SEAL 
 
 
 
NOTE:  If CONTRACTOR is a corporation, secretary should attest. 

- 86 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER’S ATTORNEY 
 
I, the undersigned, ____________________________, the duly authorized and acting legal representative of 
THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, do hereby certify as follows: 
 
I have examined the attached contract(s) and performance and payment bond(s) and the manner of 
execution thereof, and I am of the opinion that each of the aforesaid agreements has been duly executed by 
the proper parties thereto acting through their duly authorized representatives; that said representatives have 
full power and authority to execute said agreements on behalf of the respective parties named thereon; and 
that the foregoing agreements constitute valid and legally binding obligations upon the parties executing the 
same in accordance with terms, conditions, and provisions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
NAME: ____________________________ 
 
DATE: ____________________________ 
 

NOTE:  Delete phrase “performance and payment bond(s)” when not applicable.

- 87 -

Item # 8.



 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 

                                                                      
 
 1. Definitions 
 2. Additional Instructions and Detail Drawings 
 3. Schedules, Reports, and Records 
 4. Drawings and Specifications 
 5. Shop Drawings 
 6. Materials, Services, and Facilities 
 7. Inspection and Testing 
 8. Substitutions 
 9. Patents 
10. Surveys, Permits, Regulations 
11. Protection of Work, Property, Persons 
12. Supervision by Contractor 
13. Changes in Work 
14.  Changes in Contract Price 
15. Time for Completion and Liquidated Damages 
16. Correction of Work     
17. Subsurface Conditions 
18.  Suspension of Work, Termination, and Delay 
19.  Payments to Contractor 
20. Acceptance of Final Payment as Release 
21. Insurance 
22.  Contract Security 
23.  Assignments 
24.  Indemnification 
25.  Separate Contracts 
26.  Subcontracting 
27.  Engineer's Authority 
28.  Land and Rights-of-Way 
29.  Guaranty 
30.  Taxes 
31.  Environmental Requirements 
32. Record Drawings 
33. Claims for Delays 
34. Fuel, Energy, and Water 
35. Street Maintenance 
36. Cleaning Up 

- 88 -

Item # 8.



 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 1.1 Wherever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the following terms shall have 

the meanings indicated and shall be applicable to both the singular and plural 
thereof: 

 
 1.2 ADDENDA - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the execution of the 

Agreement which modify or interpret the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, 
DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS, by additions, deletions, clarifications, or 
corrections. 

 
 1.3 BID - The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form 

setting forth the prices for the WORK to be performed. 
 
 1.4 BIDDER - Any person, firm or corporation submitting a BID for the WORK. 
 
 1.5 BONDS - Bid, Performance, and Payment Bonds and other instruments of surety, 

furnished by the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR'S surety in accordance 
with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 1.6 CHANGE ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR authorizing an 

addition, deletion, or revision in the WORK within the general scope of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, or authorizing an adjustment in the CONTRACT 
PRICE or CONTRACT TIME.                 

 
 1.7 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS - The contract, including Advertisement for BIDS, 

Information for BIDDERS, BID, BID BOND, Agreement, Payment BOND, 
Performance BOND, NOTICE OF AWARD, NOTICE TO PROCEED, CHANGE 
ORDER, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, and ADDENDA. 

 
 1.8 CONTRACT PRICE - The total monies payable to the CONTRACTOR under the 

conditions and terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 1.9 CONTRACT TIME - The number of calendar days stated in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS for the completion of the WORK. 
 
 1.10 CONTRACTOR - The person, firm, or corporation with whom the OWNER has 

executed the Agreement. 
 
 1.11 DRAWINGS - The parts of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS which show the 

characteristics and scope of the WORK to be performed and which have been 
prepared or approved by the ENGINEER. 

 
 
 
 1.12 ENGINEER - The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS. 
 

- 89 -

Item # 8.



 

 1.13 FIELD ORDER - A written order effecting a change in the WORK not involving an 
adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, 
issued by the ENGINEER to the CONTRACTOR during construction. 

 
 1.14 NOTICE OF AWARD - The written notice of the acceptance of the BID from the 

OWNER to the successful BIDDER. 
 
 1.15 NOTICE TO PROCEED - Written communication issued by the OWNER to the 

CONTRACTOR authorizing him/her to proceed with the WORK and establishing 
the date for commencement of the WORK.     

 
 1.16 OWNER - A public or quasi-public body or authority, corporation, association, 

partnership, or an individual for whom the WORK is to be performed. 
 
 1.17 PROJECT - The undertaking to be performed as provided in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS. 
 
 1.18 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE - The authorized representative of the 

OWNER who is assigned to the PROJECT site or any part thereof. 
 
 1.19 SHOP DRAWINGS - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules 

and other data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, a SUBCONTRACTOR, 
manufacturer, SUPPLIER or distributor, which illustrate how specific portions of 
the WORK shall be fabricated or installed. 

 
 1.20 SPECIFICATIONS - A part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS consisting of 

written descriptions of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction 
systems, standards and workmanship. 

 
 1.21 SUBCONTRACTOR - An individual, firm, or corporation having a direct contract 

with the CONTRACTOR or with any other SUBCONTRACTOR for the 
performance of a part of the WORK at the site.           

 
 1.22 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION – Substantial Completion shall be defined as 

when all portions of the Contract are completed in accordance with all requirements 
of the Contract Documents. 

 
 1.23 SPECIAL CONDITIONS – Information or conditions imposed as a part of the 

Contract Documents, or requirements that may be imposed by applicable state laws 
at the time of Project letting. 

 
 1.24 SUPPLIER - Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for 

the WORK, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform 
labor at the site. 

 
 1.25 WORK - All labor necessary to produce the construction required by the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be 
incorporated in the PROJECT. 

- 90 -

Item # 8.



 

 
 1.26 WRITTEN NOTICE - Any notice to any party of the Agreement relative to any part 

of this Agreement in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof 
completed, when posted by certified or registered mail to the said party at their last 
given address, or delivered in person to said party or their authorized representative 
on the WORK. 

 
 1.27    STANDARDS - The following words, symbols, letters, or abbreviations shall be 

deemed to have the following meaning and shall refer to the latest current revision 
of said standard or specification applicable in effect of the date of opening bids: 

 
 AASHTO -American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
 ACI   -American Concrete Institute 

 AIA    -American Insurance Association (formerly National Board of Fire  
Underwriters) 

 ANSI   -American National Standards Institute 
 ASME   -American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
 ASTM   -American Society for Testing and Materials 
 AWWA  -American Water Works Association 
 NEMA  -National Electrical Manufacturer’s Association 
 SBH   -State Board of Health 
 MDOT -Mississippi Department of Transportation 
 
2.0 ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS AND DETAIL DRAWINGS 
 
 2.1 The CONTRACTOR may be furnished additional instructions and detail drawings, 

by the ENGINEER, as necessary to carry out the WORK required by the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 2.2 The additional drawings and instructions thus supplied will become a part of the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The CONTRACTOR shall carry out the WORK in 
accordance with the additional detail drawings and instructions.    

 
 
3.0 SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS 
 
 3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the OWNER such schedule of quantities and 

costs, progress schedules, payrolls, reports, estimates, records and other data           
where applicable as are required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the 
WORK to be performed. 

  
 3.2 Prior to the first partial payment estimate the CONTRACTOR shall submit 

construction progress schedules showing the order in which the CONTRACTOR 
proposes to carry on the WORK, including dates at which the various parts of the 
WORK will be started, estimated date of completion of each part and, as applicable: 

 
 3.2.1 The dates at which special detail drawings will be required; and 
 

- 91 -

Item # 8.



 

 3.2.2 Respective dates for submission of SHOP DRAWINGS, the beginning of 
manufacture, the testing and the installation of materials, supplies and equipment. 

 
 3.3 The CONTRACTOR shall also submit a schedule of payments that the 

CONTRACTOR anticipates will be earned during the course of the WORK. 
 
 
4.0 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 4.1 The intent of the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS is that the CONTRACTOR 

shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and transportation necessary for 
the proper execution of the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and all incidental work necessary to complete the PROJECT in an 
acceptable manner, ready for use, occupancy or operation by the OWNER. 

 
 4.2 In case of conflict between the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS, the 

SPECIFICATIONS shall govern.  Figure dimensions on DRAWINGS shall govern 
over general DRAWINGS. 

 
 4.3 Any discrepancies found between the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS and 

site conditions or any inconsistencies or ambiguities in the DRAWINGS or 
SPECIFICATIONS shall be immediately reported to the ENGINEER, in writing, 
who shall promptly correct such inconsistencies or ambiguities in writing.  WORK 
done by the CONTRACTOR after discovery of such discrepancies, inconsistencies 
or ambiguities shall be done at the CONTRACTOR'S risk. 

 
 
5.0 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 
 5.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide SHOP DRAWINGS as may be necessary for the 

prosecution of the WORK as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The 
ENGINEER shall review all SHOP DRAWINGS.  The ENGINEER'S review of 
any SHOP DRAWINGS shall not release the CONTRACTOR from responsibility 
for deviations from the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  . 

 
 5.2 When submitted for the ENGINEER'S review, SHOP DRAWINGS shall bear the 

CONTRACTOR'S certification that he has reviewed, checked and approved the 
SHOP DRAWINGS and that they are in conformance with the requirements of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 5.3 Portions of the WORK requiring a SHOP DRAWING or sample submission shall 

not begin until the SHOP DRAWING or submission has been reviewed by the 
ENGINEER.  A copy of each SHOP DRAWING and each sample shall be kept in 
good order by the CONTRACTOR at the site and shall be available to the 
ENGINEER. 

 
 

- 92 -

Item # 8.



 

6.0 MATERIALS, SERVICES AND FACILITIES 
 
 6.1 It is understood that, except as otherwise specifically stated in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS, the CONTRACTOR shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, 
tools, equipment, water, light, power, transportation, supervision, temporary 
construction of any nature, and all other services and facilities of any nature 
whatsoever necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the WORK within the 
specified time. 

 
 6.2 Materials and equipment shall be so stored as to insure the preservation of their 

quality and fitness for the WORK.  Stored materials and equipment to be 
incorporated in the WORK shall be located so as to facilitate prompt inspection. 

 
 6.3 Manufactured articles, materials, and equipment shall be applied, installed, 

connected, erected, used, cleaned and conditioned as directed by the manufacturer. 
 
 6.4 Materials, supplies, and equipment shall be in accordance with samples submitted 

by the CONTRACTOR and approved by the ENGINEER. 
 
 6.5 Materials, supplies, or equipment to be incorporated into the WORK shall not be 

purchased by the CONTRACTOR or the SUBCONTRACTOR subject to a chattel 
mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an 
interest is retained by the seller. 

 
 
7.0 INSPECTION AND TESTING 
 
 7.1 All materials and equipment used in the construction of the PROJECT shall be 

subject to adequate inspection and testing in accordance with generally accepted 
standards, as required and defined in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 7.2  The OWNER shall provide all inspection and testing services not required by the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 7.3 The CONTRACTOR shall provide at the CONTRACTOR'S expense the testing and 

inspection services required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 7.4 If the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of 

any public authority having jurisdiction require any WORK to specifically be 
inspected, tested, or approved by someone other than the CONTRACTOR, the 
CONTRACTOR will give the ENGINEER timely notice of readiness.  The 
CONTRACTOR will then furnish the ENGINEER the required certificates of 
inspection, testing or approval. 

 
 7.5 Inspections, tests, or approvals by the ENGINEER or others shall not relieve the 

CONTRACTOR from the obligations to perform the WORK in accordance with the 
requirements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 

- 93 -

Item # 8.



 

 7.6 The ENGINEER and the ENGINEER'S representatives will at all times have access 
to the WORK.  In addition, authorized representatives and agents of any 
participating Federal or State or Local agency shall be permitted to inspect all work, 
materials, payrolls, records or personnel, invoices of materials, and other relevant 
data and records.  The CONTRACTOR will provide proper facilities for such 
access and observation of the WORK and also for any inspection or testing thereof. 

 
 7.7 If any WORK is covered prior to notification, or contrary to the instructions of the 

ENGINEER it must, if requested by the ENGINEER, be uncovered for the 
ENGINEER'S observation and replaced at the CONTRACTOR'S expense. 

 
 7.8 If the ENGINEER considers it necessary or advisable that covered WORK be 

inspected or tested by others, the CONTRACTOR, at the ENGINEER'S request, 
will uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or 
testing as the ENGINEER may require, that portion of the WORK in question, 
furnishing all necessary labor, materials, tools, and equipment.  If it is found that 
such WORK is defective, the CONTRACTOR will bear all the expenses of such 
uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory 
reconstruction, if, however, such WORK is not found to be defective, the 
CONTRACTOR will be allowed an increase in the CONTRACT PRICE or an 
extension of the CONTRACT TIME, or both, directly attributable to such 
uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction and an 
appropriate CHANGE ORDER shall be issued. 

 
 
8.0 SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

8.1 Whenever a material, article, or piece of equipment is identified on the 
DRAWINGS or SPECIFICATIONS by reference to brand name or catalog 
numbers, it shall be understood that this is referenced for the purpose of defining  

            the performance or other salient requirements and that other products of equal 
capacities, quality and function shall be considered.  The CONTRACTOR may 
recommend the substitution of a material, article, or piece of equipment of equal 
substance and function for those referred to in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by 
reference to brand name or catalog number, and if, in the opinion of the EN-
GINEER, such material, article, or piece of equipment is of equal substance and 
function to that specified, the ENGINEER may approve its substitution and use by 
the CONTRACTOR.  Any cost differential shall be deductible from the 
CONTRACT PRICE and the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall be appropriately 
modified by CHANGE ORDER.  The CONTRACTOR warrants that if substitutes 
are approved, no major changes in the function or general design of the PROJECT 
will result.  Incidental changes or extra component parts required to accommodate 
the substitute will be made by the CONTRACTOR without a change in the 
CONTRACT PRICE or CONTRACT TIME. 

 

- 94 -

Item # 8.



 

9.0 PATENTS 
 
 9.1 The CONTRACTOR shall pay all applicable royalties and license fees, and shall 

defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and save the 
OWNER harmless from loss on account thereof, except that the OWNER shall be 
responsible for any such loss when a particular process, design, or product of a 
particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified, however, if the 
CONTRACTOR has reason to believe that the design, process, or product specified 
is an infringement of a patent, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for such 
loss unless the CONTRACTOR promptly gives such information to the 
ENGINEER. 

 
10.0 SURVEYS, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS 
 
 10.1 From the information provided by the OWNER, unless otherwise specified in the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the CONTRACTOR shall develop and make all 
detail surveys needed for construction such as slope stakes, batter boards, stakes for 
pipe locations and other working points, lines, elevations and cut sheets. 

 
 10.2 The CONTRACTOR shall carefully preserve bench marks, reference points and 

stakes and, in case of willful or careless destruction, shall be charged with the 
resulting expense and shall be responsible for any mistake that may be caused by 
their unnecessary loss or disturbance. All points of reference (existing or set) shall 
be checked and verified by the Contractor prior to commencement of work. 

 
 10.3 Permits and licenses of a temporary nature necessary for the prosecution of the 

WORK shall be secured and paid for by the CONTRACTOR unless otherwise 
stated in the SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS.  Permits, licenses, and 
easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities shall 
be secured and paid for by the OWNER, unless otherwise specified.  The  

                       CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations bearing on the conduct of the WORK as drawn and specified.  If the 
CONTRACTOR observes that the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS are at variance 
therewith, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the ENGINEER in writing, 
and any necessary changes shall be adjusted as provided in the Section pertaining 
to, CHANGES IN THE WORK. 

 
 

- 95 -

Item # 8.



 

11.0 PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY, AND PERSONS 
 
 11.1 The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising 

all safety precautions and programs in connection with the WORK.  The 
CONTRACTOR will take all necessary precautions for the safety of, will provide 
the necessary precautions for the safety of, and will provide the necessary protection 
to prevent damage, injury or loss to all employees on the WORK  and other persons 
who may be affected thereby, all the WORK and all materials or equipment to be 
incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, and other property at the 
site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the 
course of construction. 

 
 11.2 The CONTRACTOR will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and orders of any public body having jurisdiction.  The CONTRACTOR 
will erect and maintain, as required by the conditions and progress of the WORK, 
all necessary safeguards for safety and protection.  The CONTRACTOR will notify 
owners of adjacent utilities when prosecution of the WORK may affect them.  The 
CONTRACTOR will remedy all damage, injury or loss to any property caused, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or part, by the CONTRACTOR, any 
SUBCONTRACTOR or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or 
anyone of whose acts any of them be liable, except damage or loss attributable to 
the fault of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS or to the acts or omissions of the 
OWNER, of the ENGINEER or anyone employed by either of them or anyone for 
whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, 
in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
 
 11.3 In emergencies affecting the safety of persons or the WORK or property at the site 

or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instructions or 
authorization from the ENGINEER or OWNER, shall act to prevent threatened 
damage, injury or loss.  The CONTRACTOR will give the ENGINEER prompt 
WRITTEN NOTICE of any significant changes in the WORK or deviations from 
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS caused thereby, and a CHANGE ORDER shall 
thereupon be issued covering the changes and deviations involved. 

 
 
12.0 SUPERVISION BY CONTRACTOR 
 
 12.1 The CONTRACTOR will supervise and direct the WORK.  He will be solely 

responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of 
construction.  The CONTRACTOR will employ and maintain on the WORK a 
qualified supervisor or superintendent who shall have been designated in writing by 
the CONTRACTOR as the CONTRACTOR'S representative at the site.  The 
supervisor shall have full authority to act on behalf of the CONTRACTOR and all 
communications given to the supervisor shall be as binding as if given to the 
CONTRACTOR.  The supervisor shall be present on the site at all times as required 
to perform adequate supervision and coordination of the WORK. 

- 96 -

Item # 8.



 

 
 13.0 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 
 13.1 The OWNER may at any time, as the need arises, order changes within the scope of 

the WORK without invalidating the Agreement.  If such changes increase or 
decrease the amount due under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,  or in the time 
required for performance of the WORK, an equitable adjustment shall be authorized 
by CHANGE ORDER. 

 
 13.2 The ENGINEER, also, may at any time, by issuing a FIELD ORDER, make 

changes in the details of the WORK.  The CONTRACTOR shall proceed with the 
performance of any changes in the WORK so ordered by the ENGINEER unless the 
CONTRACTOR believes that such FIELD ORDER entitles the CONTRACTOR to 
a change in CONTRACT TIME or PRICE, or both, in which event the 
CONTRACTOR shall give the ENGINEER WRITTEN NOTICE thereof within 
seven (7) days after receipt of the ordered change.  Thereafter the CONTRACTOR 
shall document the basis for the change in CONTRACT PRICE or TIME within 
thirty (30) days.  The CONTRACTOR shall not execute such changes pending the 
receipt of an executed CHANGE ORDER or further instruction from the OWNER. 

 
  
 
14.0 CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE 
 
 14.1 The CONTRACT PRICE may be changed only by a CHANGE ORDER.  The value 

of any WORK covered by a CHANGE ORDER or of any claim for increase or 
decrease in the CONTRACT PRICE shall be determined by one or more of the 
following methods in the order of precedence listed below: 

 
   a. Unit prices previously approved. 
   b. An agreed lump sum. 

  
 14.2 The quantities of Unit Pay Items listed in the Proposal forms are to be considered 

approximate only. The Engineer reserves the right to make such alterations in the                 
                 Plans or in the extent of the work as he may consider desirable or necessary during 

the progress of the work to satisfactorily complete the proposed construction. 
 
 14.3 The Owner may, under this reservation, increase or decrease any or all of the 

quantities of Pay Items as set forth in the Proposal, or delete certain items of work 
from the Contract.  Increased or decreased quantities of items will be paid for at the 
unit bid price. 

 
 14.4 It is understood that variations in quantities, within the above limitations, shall not 

be considered as a waiver of any conditions of the Contract, nor invalidate the 
Contractor’s Proposal and the Contractor shall perform the work as increased or 
decreased from the Unit Contract Prices as bid. 

 
 

- 97 -

Item # 8.



 

15.0 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
 15.1 The date of beginning and the time for completion of the WORK are essential 

conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and the WORK embraced shall be 
commenced on a date specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED. 

 
 15.2 The CONTRACTOR will proceed with the WORK at such rate of progress to 

insure full completion within the CONTRACT TIME.  It is expressly understood 
and agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, that the 
CONTRACT TIME for the completion of the WORK described herein is a 
reasonable time, taking into consideration the average climatic and economic 
conditions and other factors prevailing in the locality of the WORK. 

 
During the process of determining the workforce effort necessary for completion of 
the work within the Contract Time, the Contractor shall consider the Normal 
Adverse Weather Days for the type of work and the seasonal period of the work 
being performed. The number of normal adverse weather days to be included in 
these considerations shall be as follows: 
Jan. – 21 Feb. – 17 March – 12 April – 9 May – 9 June – 9 
July – 9 Aug. – 8 Sept. – 7 Oct. – 5 Nov. – 11 Dec. – 
17 
 
Normal adverse weather days as shown above are defined by the National Weather 
Service as being those with temperatures of 32 degrees or less, or precipitation of 
0.1 inches or more, based on a 6 day work week. If the Contractor fails to complete 
the Work within the Contract Time, the Adverse Weather Days in excess of those 
shown above for each month, may be considered for an extension of the Contract 
Time. 

 
 15.3 If the CONTRACTOR shall fail to complete the WORK within the CONTRACT 

TIME, or extension of time granted by the OWNER, the Contractor does hereby 
agree, as a part consideration for the awarding of this contract, to pay to the Owner 
the amount specified in the contract, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for 
such breach of contract as hereinafter set forth, for each working day that the 
CONTRACTOR shall be in default after the time stipulated in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS for completing the work. The said amount is fixed and agreed upon 
by and between the Contractor and the Owner because of the impracticability and 
extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the Owner would in 
such event sustain, and said amount is agreed to be the amount of damages which 
the Owner would in sustain and said amount shall be retained by the Owner from 
current periodical estimates. 

 

- 98 -

Item # 8.



 

For the purpose of determining the number of working days considered for 
liquidated damages, a working day shall be defined as a day in which the weather 
and soil conditions permit the Contractor to proceed with work operations on the 
controlling item or items of work in progress at that time, for a period of not less 
than six (6) hours. The number of working days shall be based on a five-day 
workweek exclusive of state recognized legal holidays, or days on which delays are 
attributed to the Owner, governmental authorities, catastrophic events, or time 
periods awaiting the vegetative growth and coverage of plant growth, or the curing 
of asphalt or concrete.  

 
 15.4 The CONTRACTOR shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess 

cost when the delay in completion of the WORK is due to the following and the 
CONTRACTOR has promptly given WRITTEN NOTICE of such delay to the 
OWNER or ENGINEER. 

 
15.4.1 To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the OWNER. 

 
15.4.2 To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or 
negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including but not restricted to, acts of God, or of 
the public enemy, acts of the OWNER, acts of another CONTRACTOR in the 
performance of a contract with the OWNER, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and abnormal and unforeseeable weather. 

 
15.4.3 To any delays of SUBCONTRACTORS occasioned by any of the causes 
specified in paragraphs 15.4.1 and 15.4.2 of this article. 

 
15.4.4 Interim completion dates may be required by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS to support owner occupancy or subsequent construction by other 
contractors.  If interim completion dates are specified, the contractor shall complete 
the work required for that activity as indicated in the CONTRACT 
SPECIFICATIONS and shown in the CONTRACT DRAWINGS within the 
specified time.  All contract provisions relating to time for completion and 
liquidated damages shall apply to interim completion dates. 

 
16.0 CORRECTION OF WORK 
 
 16.1 The CONTRACTOR shall promptly remove from the premises all WORK rejected 

by the ENGINEER for failure to comply with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, 
whether incorporated in the construction or not, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
promptly replace and re-execute the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and without expense to the OWNER and shall bear the expense of 
making good all WORK of other CONTRACTORS destroyed or damaged by such 
removal or replacement. 

   
 16.2 All removal and replacement WORK shall be done at the CONTRACTOR'S 

expense.  If the CONTRACTOR does not take action to remove such rejected 
WORK within ten (10) days after receipt of WRITTEN NOTICE, the OWNER may 
remove such WORK and store the materials at the expense of the CONTRACTOR. 

- 99 -

Item # 8.



 

 
17.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 
 
 17.1 It is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to become familiar with the project 

site, the construction process, and the nature of the physical ground as to the extent 
necessary for the completion of the WORK as specified in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, prior to bidding the project. If during construction, conditions are 
encountered that differ from those normally encountered during projects of similar 
nature or location, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, and before such conditions 
are disturbed, except in the event of an emergency, notify the OWNER by 
WRITTEN NOTICE of unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual 
nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally 
recognized as inherent in WORK of the character provided for in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

 
 17.2 The OWNER shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it is found that such 

conditions do so materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost of,  
                        or in the time required for, performance of the WORK, an equitable adjustment 

shall be made and the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall be modified by a 
CHANGE ORDER.  Any claim of the CONTRACTOR for adjustment hereunder 
shall not be allowed unless the required WRITTEN NOTICE has been given; 
provided that the OWNER may, if the OWNER determines the facts so justify, 
consider and adjust any such claims asserted before the date of final payment.  

 
 17.3 The existence of, and location of some of the known utilities and obstructions are 

indicated on the plans but are not guaranteed. The Contractor shall make sufficient 
investigation and inspections, at the site of the work, to enable him to determine the 
existence of and exact nature and location of all such drainage structures, 
underground and overhead obstructions, fences, and public and private utilities that 
will be disturbed in the prosecution of the work.  The Contractor shall repair or 
replace such utilities and improvements, which are damaged by his operations so as 
to function properly, at his own expense and in a manner and condition equal to that 
of such utilities and improvements prior to damage. Fences which must be crossed 
shall be repaired to an “as was” condition. 

 
18.0 SUSPENSION OF WORK, TERMINATION, AND DELAY  
 
 18.1 The OWNER may suspend the WORK or any portion thereof for a period of not 

more than ninety days or such further time as agreed upon by the CONTRACTOR, 
by WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR and the ENGINEER, which shall 
fix the date on which WORK shall be resumed.  The CONTRACTOR will be 
allowed an increase in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT 
TIME, or both, directly attributable to any suspension.  

 

- 100 -

Item # 8.



 

 18.2 If the CONTRACTOR is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or makes a general 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a trustee or receiver is appointed for 
the CONTRACTOR or for any of its property, or if CONTRACTOR files a petition 
to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or 
applicable laws, or repeatedly fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable 
materials or equipment, or repeatedly fails to make prompt payments to 
SUBCONTRACTORS or for labor, materials or equipment or disregards laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having jurisdiction of the 
WORK or disregards the authority of the ENGINEER, or otherwise violates any 
provision of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, then the OWNER may, without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving the CONTRACTOR and its 
surety a minimum of ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE, 
terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR and take possession of the PROJECT 
and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery 
thereon owned by the CONTRACTOR, or secure the services of another Contractor 
and finish the WORK by whatever method the OWNER may deem expedient. In 
such case the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment 
until the WORK is finished. If the unpaid balance of the CONTRACT PRICE 
exceeds the direct and indirect costs of completing the PROJECT, including 
compensation for additional professional services, such excess SHALL BE PAID 
TO THE CONTRACTOR. If such costs exceed such unpaid balance, the 
CONTRACTOR will pay the difference to the OWNER.  Such costs incurred by the 
OWNER will be determined by the ENGINEER and incorporated in a CHANGE 
ORDER. 

 
 18.3 Where the CONTRACTOR'S services have been so terminated by the OWNER, 

said termination shall not affect any right of the OWNER against the 
CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or 
payment of monies by the OWNER due the CONTRACTOR will not release the 
CONTRACTOR from compliance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 18.4 After ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR 

and the ENGINEER, the OWNER may, without cause and without prejudice to any 
other right or remedy, elect to abandon the PROJECT and terminate the 
CONTRACT.  In such case the CONTRACTOR shall be paid per contract unit 
price for all WORK completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

  

- 101 -

Item # 8.



 

 18.5 If, through no act or fault of the CONTRACTOR, the WORK is suspended for a 
period of more than ninety (90) days by the OWNER or under an order of court or 
other public authority, or the ENGINEER fails to act on any request for payment 
within thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the OWNER fails to pay the 
CONTRACTOR substantially the sum approved by the ENGINEER or awarded by 
arbitrators within thirty (30) days of its approval and presentation, then the 
CONTRACTOR may, after ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to 
the OWNER and the ENGINEER terminate the CONTRACT and recover from the 
OWNER payment for all WORK executed and all expenses sustained. In addition 
and in lieu of terminating the CONTRACT, if the ENGINEER has failed to make 
any payment as aforesaid, the CONTRACTOR may upon ten (10) days written 
notice to the OWNER and the ENGINEER stop the WORK until paid all amounts 
then due, in which event and upon resumption of the WORK CHANGE ORDERS 
shall be issued for adjusting the CONTRACT PRICE or extending the CONTRACT 
TIME or both to compensate for the costs and delays attributable to the stoppage of 
the WORK. 

 
 18.6 If the performance of all or any portion of the WORK is suspended, delayed, or 

interrupted as a result of a failure of the OWNER or ENGINEER to act within the 
time specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, or if no time is specified, within 
a reasonable time, an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the 
CONTRACT TIME, or both, shall be made by CHANGE ORDER to compensate 
the CONTRACTOR for the costs and delays necessarily caused by the failure of the 
OWNER or ENGINEER. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 102 -

Item # 8.



 

19.0 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
  

19.1 At least ten (10) days before each progress payment falls due (but not more often 
than once a month), the CONTRACTOR will submit to the ENGINEER a partial 
payment estimate filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering the WORK 
performed during the period covered by the partial payment estimate and supported 
by such data as the ENGINEER may reasonably require. The submitted progress 
payment shall be accompanied by a monthly certification to the Engineer indicating 
payments to subcontractors. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and 
equipment not incorporated in the WORK but delivered and suitably stored at or 
near the site, the partial payment estimate shall also be accompanied by such 
supporting data, satisfactory to the OWNER, as will establish the OWNER'S title to 
the material and equipment and protect the OWNER'S interest therein, including 
applicable insurance.  The ENGINEER will, within ten (10) days after receipt of 
each partial payment estimate, either indicate in writing approval of payment, and 
present the partial payment estimate to the OWNER, or return the partial payment 
estimate to the CONTRACTOR indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to 
approve payment.  In the latter case, the CONTRACTOR may make the necessary 
corrections and resubmit the partial payment estimate.  The OWNER will, within 
thirty (30) days of presentation of an approved partial payment estimate, pay the 
CONTRACTOR a progress payment on the basis of approved partial payment 
estimate less retainage.  The retainage shall be an amount equal to five percent (5%) 
until the work is at least fifty percent (50%) complete, on schedule, and satisfactory 
in the Engineer’s opinion, at which time fifty percent (50%) of the retainage held to 
date shall be returned to the Prime Contractor for distribution to the appropriate 
subcontractors and suppliers. Future retainage shall be withheld at the rate of two 
and one-half percent (2-1/2%). Upon substantial completion of the work, any 
amount retained may be paid to the CONTRACTOR. When the WORK has been 
substantially completed except for WORK which cannot be completed because of 
weather conditions, lack of materials or other reasons which in the judgment of the 
OWNER are valid reasons for non-completion, the OWNER may make additional 
payments, retaining at all times an amount sufficient to cover the estimated cost of 
the WORK still to be completed. 

 
 19.2 Prior to SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, the OWNER, with the approval of the 

ENGINEER and with the concurrence of the CONTRACTOR, may use any 
completed or partially completed portions of the WORK.  Such use shall not 
constitute an acceptance of such portions of the WORK. 

 
 19.3 The OWNER shall have the right to enter the premises for the purpose of doing 

work not covered by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  This provision shall not be 
construed as relieving the CONTRACTOR of the sole responsibility for the care 
and protection of the WORK, or the restoration of any damaged WORK except such 
as may be caused by agents or employees of the OWNER. 

- 103 -

Item # 8.



 

 
 19.4 Upon completion and acceptance of the WORK, the ENGINEER shall issue a 

certificate attached to the approved final payment request that the WORK has been 
accepted under the conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The entire 
balance found to be due the CONTRACTOR, including the retainage percentages, 
but except such sums as may be lawfully retained by the OWNER, shall be paid to 
the CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days of completion and acceptance of the 
WORK. In no event shall said final payment due the Contractor be made until the 
Engineer is provided with the following: 1) Written certification from the 
Contractor that all suppliers and subcontractors have been paid. 2) Written consent 
of Final Payment from the Contractor’s Surety. 

 
 19.5 The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and save the OWNER or the OWNER'S 

agents harmless from all claims growing out of the lawful demand of 
SUBCONTRACTORS, laborers, workmen, mechanics, material, men, and 
furnishers of machinery and part thereof, equipment, tools, and all supplies, 
incurred in the furtherance of the performance of the WORK.  The CONTRACTOR 
shall furnish satisfactory evidence that all obligations of the nature designated above 
have been paid, discharged, or waived.  If the CONTRACTOR fails to do so the 
OWNER may, after having notified the CONTRACTOR, either pay unpaid bills or 
withhold from the CONTRACTOR'S unpaid compensation a sum of money deemed 
reasonably sufficient to pay any and all such lawful claims until satisfactory 
evidence is furnished that all liabilities have been fully discharged whereupon 
payment to the CONTRACTOR shall be resumed in accordance with the terms of 
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, but in no event shall the provisions of this 
sentence be construed to impose any obligations upon the OWNER to either the 
CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S Surety, or any third party.  In paying any 
unpaid bills of the CONTRACTOR, any payment so made by the OWNER shall be 
considered as a payment made under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by the 
OWNER to the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER shall not be liable to the 
CONTRACTOR for any such payments made in good faith. 

  
20.0 ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT AS RELEASE 
 
 20.1 The acceptance by the CONTRACTOR of final payment shall be and shall operate 

as a release to the OWNER of all claims and all liability to the CONTRACTOR 
other than claims in stated amounts as may be specifically excepted by the 
CONTRACTOR for all things done or furnished in connection with this WORK and 
for every act and neglect of the OWNER and others relating to or arising out of this 
WORK.  Any payment, however, final otherwise, shall not release the 
CONTRACTOR or its sureties from any obligations under the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS or the Performance and Payment BONDS. 

 
 
 
 

- 104 -

Item # 8.



 

21.0 INSURANCE 
 
 21.1 The CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect it 

from claims set forth below which may arise out of, or result from, the 
CONTRACTOR'S execution of the WORK, whether such execution be by the 
CONTRACTOR, any SUBCONTRACTOR, or by anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable: 

 
 21.1.1 Claims under workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other similar 

employee benefit acts;  
 
 21.1.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or 

death of employees; 
 
 21.1.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any 

person other than employees; 
 
 21.1.4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are 

sustained (1) by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to 
the employment of such person by the CONTRACTOR, or (2) by any other person; 
and 

 
 21.1.5 Claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, 

including loss of use resulting there from. 
 
 21.2 Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the OWNER shall be filed with the OWNER 

prior to commencement of the WORK.  These Certificates shall contain a provision 
that coverages afforded under the policies will not be canceled unless at least fifteen 
(15) days prior WRITTEN NOTICE has been given to the OWNER. 

 
 21.3 The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at the CONTRACTOR'S own 

expense, during the CONTRACT TIME, Liability insurance as hereinafter 
specified: 

 
 21.3.1 CONTRACTOR'S General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance 

including vehicle coverage issued to the CONTRACTOR and protecting the 
CONTRACTOR from all claims for personal injury, including death, and all claims 
for destruction of or damage to property, arising out of or in connection with any 
operations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, whether such operations be by 
the CONTRACTOR or by any SUBCONTRACTOR employed by the 
CONTRACTOR or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR 
or by a SUBCONTRACTOR employed by the CONTRACTOR.  Insurance shall be 
written with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 for all damages arising 
out of bodily injury, including death, at any time resulting there from, sustained by 
any one person in any one accident; and a limit of liability  

- 105 -

Item # 8.



 

                       of not less than $1,000,000 aggregate for any such damages sustained by two or 
more persons in any one accident.  Insurance shall be written with a limit of liability 
of not less than $500,000 for all property damage sustained by any one person in 
any one accident; and a limit of liability of not less than $500,000 aggregate for any 
such damage sustained by two or more persons in any one accident. 

 
 21.3.2 The CONTRACTOR shall acquire and maintain, if applicable, Fire, Flood and 

Extended Coverage insurance value thereof for the benefit of the OWNER, the 
CONTRACTOR, and SUBCONTRACTORS as their interest may appear.  This 
provision shall in no way release the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S surety 
from obligations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS to fully complete the 
PROJECT. 

 
 21.4 The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at the CONTRACTOR'S own 

expense, during the CONTRACT TIME, in accordance with the provisions of the 
laws of the state in which the WORK is performed, Workmen's Compensation 
Insurance, including occupational disease provisions, for all of the 
CONTRACTOR'S employees at the site of the PROJECT and in case any WORK is 
sublet, the CONTRACTOR shall require such SUBCONTRACTOR similarly to 
provide Workmen's Compensation Insurance, including occupational disease 
provisions for all of the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the 
protection afforded by the CONTRACTOR.  In case any class of employees 
engaged in hazardous work under this contract at the site of the PROJECT is not 
protected under Workmen's Compensation statue, the CONTRACTOR shall 
provide, and shall cause each SUBCONTRACTOR to provide, adequate and 
suitable insurance for the protection of its employees not otherwise protected. 

 
 21.5 The CONTRACTOR shall secure, if applicable, "All Risk" type Builder's Risk 

Insurance for WORK to be performed.  Unless specifically authorized by the 
OWNER, the amount of such insurance shall not be less than the CONTRACT 
PRICE totaled in the BID.  The policy shall cover not less than the losses due to 
fire, explosion, hail, lightning, vandalism, malicious mischief, wind, collapse, riot, 
aircraft, flood, and smoke during the CONTRACT TIME, and until the WORK is 
accepted by the OWNER.  The policy shall name as the insured the 
CONTRACTOR, and the OWNER. 

 
22.0 CONTRACT SECURITY 
 
 22.1 The CONTRACTOR shall within ten (10) days after the receipt of the NOTICE OF 

AWARD furnish the OWNER with the Performance BOND and a Payment BOND 
in penal sums equal to the amount of the CONTRACT PRICE, conditioned upon 
the performance by the CONTRACTOR of all undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions and agreements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, and upon the 
prompt payment by the CONTRACTOR to all persons supplying labor and 
materials in the prosecution of the WORK provided by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS.   

- 106 -

Item # 8.



 

Such BONDS shall be executed by the CONTRACTOR and a corporate bonding 
company licensed to transact such business in the state in which the WORK is to be 
performed and named on the current list of "Surety Companies Acceptable on 
Federal Bonds” as published in the Treasury Department Circular Number 570.  
The expense of these BONDS shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.  If at any time 
a surety on any such BOND is declared a bankrupt or loses its right to do business 
in the state in which the WORK is to be performed or is removed from the list of 
Surety Companies accepted on Federal Bonds, CONTRACTOR shall within ten 
(10) days after notice from the OWNER to do so, substitute an acceptable BOND 
(or BONDS) in such form and sum and signed by such other surety or sureties as 
may be satisfactory to the OWNER.  The premiums on such BOND shall be paid by 
the CONTRACTOR.  No further payment shall be deemed due nor shall be made 
until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished an acceptable BOND to the 
OWNER. 

 
23.0 ASSIGNMENTS 
 
 23.1 Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the OWNER shall sell, transfer, assign, or 

otherwise dispose of the Contract or any portion thereof, or of any right, title or 
interest therein, or any obligation there under, without written consent of the other 
party. 

 
24.0 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 24.1 The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER and the 

ENGINEER and their agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, 
losses and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the WORK, provided that any such claims, damage, loss or expense 
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom; and is 
caused in whole or in part by any negligent or willful act or omission of the 
CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR, anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. 

 
 24.2 In any and all claims against the OWNER or the ENGINEER, or any of their agents 

or employees, by any employee of the CONTRACTOR, any SUBCONTRACTOR, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type or damages, compensation or benefits 
payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or any SUBCONTRACTOR under 
Workmen's Compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefits 
acts. 

 
 24.3 The obligation of the CONTRACTOR under this paragraph shall not extend to the 

liability of the ENGINEER, its agents or employees arising out of the preparation of 
approval of maps, DRAWINGS, opinions, reports, surveys, CHANGE ORDERS, 
designs, or SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

- 107 -

Item # 8.



 

25.0 SEPARATE CONTRACT 
 
 25.1 The OWNER reserves the right to let other contracts in connection with this 

PROJECT.  The CONTRACTOR shall afford other CONTRACTORS reasonable 
opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and the execution of 
their WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate the WORK with theirs.  If 
the proper execution or results of any part of the CONTRACTOR'S WORK 
depends upon the WORK of any other CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR shall 
inspect and promptly report to the ENGINEER any defects in such WORK that 
render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. 

 
 25.2 The OWNER may perform additional WORK related to the PROJECT or the 

OWNER may let other contracts containing provisions similar to these.  The 
CONTRACTOR will afford the other CONTRACTORS who are parties to such 
Contracts (or the OWNER, if the OWNER is performing the additional WORK) 
reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment 
and the execution of WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate the WORK 
with theirs. 

 
 25.3 If the performance of additional WORK by other CONTRACTORS or the OWNER 

is not noted in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS prior to the execution of the 
CONTRACT, WRITTEN NOTICE thereof shall be given to the CONTRACTOR 
prior to starting any additional WORK.  If the CONTRACTOR believes that the 
performance of such additional WORK by the OWNER or others involves it in 
additional expense or entitles it to an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, the 
CONTRACTOR may make a claim thereof as provided in Sections 14 and 15. 

 
26.0 SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 26.1 The CONTRACTOR may utilize the services of specialty SUBCONTRACTS on 

those parts of the WORK which, under normal contracting practices, are performed 
by specialty SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 
 26.2 The CONTRACTOR shall not award WORK to SUBCONTRACTOR(S), in excess 

of fifty (50%) percent of the CONTRACT PRICE, without prior written approval of 
the OWNER. 

 
 26.3 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to the OWNER for the acts and 

omissions of its SUBCONTRACTORS, and of persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them, as the CONTRACTOR is for the acts and omissions of persons 
directly employed by it. 

  

- 108 -

Item # 8.



 

 26.4 The CONTRACTOR shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all 
subcontracts relative to the WORK to bind SUBCONTRACTORS to the 
CONTRACTOR by the terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS insofar as 
applicable to the WORK of SUBCONTRACTORS and give the CONTRACTOR 
the same power as regards terminating any subcontract that the OWNER may 
exercise over the CONTRACTOR under any provision of the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

 
 26.5 Nothing contained in this CONTRACT shall create any contractual relationship 

between any SUBCONTRACTOR and the OWNER. 
 
27.0 ENGINEER'S AUTHORITY 
 
 27.1 The ENGINEER shall act as the OWNER'S representative during the construction 

period, shall decide questions which may arise as to quality and acceptability of 
materials furnished and WORK performed, and shall interpret the intent of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS in a fair and unbiased manner.  The ENGINEER will 
make periodic visits to the site to determine if the WORK is proceeding in general 
accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 27.2 The CONTRACTOR will be held strictly to the intent of the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS in regard to the quality of materials, workmanship, and execution of 
the WORK.  Inspections may be at the factory or fabrication plant of the source of 
material supply. 

 
 27.3 The ENGINEER will not be responsible for the construction means, controls, 

techniques, sequences, procedures, or construction safety. 
 
 27.4 The ENGINEER shall promptly make decisions relative to interpretation of the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
28.0 LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
 
 28.1 Prior to issuance of NOTICE TO PROCEED, the OWNER shall obtain all land and 

rights-of-way necessary for carrying out and for the completion of the WORK to be 
performed pursuant to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, unless otherwise mutually 
agreed. 

 
 28.2 The OWNER shall provide to the CONTRACTOR information, which delineates 

and describes the lands owned and rights-of-way acquired. 
 
 28.3 The CONTRACTOR shall provide at its own expense and without liability to the 

OWNER any additional land and access thereto that the CONTRACTOR may 
desire for temporary construction facilities, or for storage of materials. 

 

- 109 -

Item # 8.



 

29.0 GUARANTEE 
 
 29.1 The CONTRACTOR shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and 

WORK performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL 
COMPLETION.  The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees for a period of one 
(1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION of the system that the 
completed system is free from all defects due to faulty materials or workmanship 
and the CONTRACTOR shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary 
by reason of such defects including the repairs of the damage of other parts of the 
system resulting from such defects.  The OWNER will give notice of observed 
defects with reasonable promptness.  In the event that the CONTRACTOR should 
fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other WORK that may be made necessary 
by such defects, the OWNER may do so and charge the CONTRACTOR the cost 
thereby incurred.  The Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect 
through the guarantee period. 

 
 
30.0 TAXES  
 
 31.1 The CONTRACTOR will pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes 

required by the laws of the place where the WORK is performed. 
 
31.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The CONTRACTOR, when constructing a project involving trenching and/or other related earth 
excavation, shall comply with the following environmental constraints. 
 
 32.1 WETLANDS - The CONTRACTOR, when disposing of excess, spoil, or other 

construction materials on public or private property, WILL NOT FILL IN or 
otherwise CONVERT WETLANDS.  

 
 32.2 HISTORIC PRESERVATION - Any excavation by the CONTRACTOR that 

uncovers an historical or archaeological artifact shall be immediately reported to the 
PROJECT ENGINEER. Construction shall be temporarily halted pending the 
notification process and further directions issued after consultation with the State 
Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO). 

 
 32.3 ENDANGERED SPECIES - The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the 

Endangered Species Act, which provides for the protection of endangered and/or 
threatened species and critical habitat.  Should any evidence of the presence of 
endangered and/or threatened species or their critical habitat be brought to the 
attention of the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR will immediately report this 
evidence to the PROJECT ENGINEER. Construction shall be temporarily halted 
pending the notification process and further directions issued after consultation with 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 

- 110 -

Item # 8.



 

32.0 RECORD DRAWINGS 
 
 33.1   The Contractor shall make a record of all changes in the contract drawings  and 

specifications and shall change the contract drawings and specs to reflect all changes 
made. The Engineers will furnish a set of reproducible drawings to the Contractor 
on which changes shall be made. Additional sheets shall be drawn on mylar film as 
required. Record drawings and specifications shall be completed and furnished to 
the Engineers prior to the submission of the request for final payment. Keep records 
current and do not cover or conceal any work until the required information has 
been recorded. 

 
 The following items shall be recorded on the record drawings: 

 
1.Depths of various elements in relation to datum. 
2.Horizontal and vertical location of underground utilities and appurtenances 

referenced to permanent surface improvements. 
3.Location of internal appurtenances concealed in construction referenced to visible 

and accessible features of the work. 
4.Field changes of dimension and detail. 
5.Changes made by Change Order. 
6.Details not on original Contract Drawings. 
7.Locations of plugged openings for future connections. 

 
Specifications and Addenda shall be legibly marked up to record: 

 
1.Manufacture, trade name, catalog number and supplier of each product and item of 

equipment actually installed. 
2.Changes made by Change Order. 
3.Other matters not originally specified. 

 
33.2   Shop Drawings shall be maintained as record documents and legibly annotate 

drawings to record changes made after review. 
 
33.0 CLAIMS FOR DELAY 
 

34.1   No claim for delay damages will be allowed the Contractor resulting from change 
orders executed by him. 

 
34.0     FUEL, ENERGY, AND WATER 
 

35.1   The Contractor shall furnish all fuels, electric power and other energies, water and 
other consumables used in the prosecution of the work including testing and trial 
operations until in the opinion of Engineers, the work or part thereof, is substantially 
complete and in use by the Owner, at which time the Owner will begin paying 
power bills for that part. Arrangements shall be made in advance of need with 
utilities involved. 

 

- 111 -

Item # 8.



 

35.0     STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

36.1   The Contractor, at his own expense, shall be required to maintain the streets and 
thoroughfares disturbed, in a passable condition, providing means of ingress and 
egress to persons residing and conducting business thereon where possible. 

 
36.2   The Contractor shall provide additional earth backfill or adding surfacing materials 

for excavation and/or trenches in streets or thoroughfares, if and when the shrinkage 
sets in and shall shape and re-shape and grade and re-grade as in the opinion of the 
Engineers is necessary to maintain all thoroughfares disturbed in good condition 
from the time of initial excavation to the date of final acceptance. All streets and 
alleys shall be left in a good and satisfactory condition. In general, the Contractor 
shall not be required to construct or maintain detours, or to maintain streets 
disturbed beyond the date of final acceptance of the other work. 
 

36.3   The Contractor shall provide facilities on a 24 hours, 7 day basis for pulling vehicles 
bogged down due to his operations. 
 

36.4   The Contractor shall at locations where streets and public thoroughfares have been 
disturbed by excavations, or his equipment or operations, at all times while the work 
is in progress, take precautions for the protection of the public by placing and 
maintaining adequate flagmen, barricades, red flags and/or lights. 

 
 
36.0     CLEANING UP 
 

37.1   As each portion of the work is completed, the Contractor shall clean up and remove from the 
site all rubbish and old and unused materials and fill all holes and cavities made for his 
convenience, and shall leave the site in a neat, presentable and usable condition, restored to 
original or better condition. 

 
37.2   Cleaning up is considered to be an integral, important and necessary function of each item of 

work. Where work on unit price items are substantially complete but lack clean-up and/or 
corrections ordered by the Engineer, amounts shall be deducted from unit prices in partial 
payment estimates to amply cover such clean-up and corrections. 

 
When the above grounds are removed, payment shall be made for amounts withheld because 
of them. 

- 112 -

Item # 8.



 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. Safety – The Contractor shall bear the full responsibility for Safety on the project site for the duration 

of the project. 
 
2. Maintenance of Traffic - The Contractor is solely responsible for all safety devices necessary for 

insuring the safety of traffic through the construction zone and for compliance with the MUTCD part 
VI. The traffic control plan, if made a part of the contract documents, is considered a minimum amount 
of traffic control required, and does not relieve the Contractor from providing additional components 
conforming to the MUTCD as necessary for the safe travel of traffic through the construction zone. A 
competent, trained, and experienced Traffic Safety Officer capable of reviewing and maintaining 
construction zone safety shall be designated by the Contractor prior to the commencement of the 
project.  

 
3. Construction Surveying – Construction staking for the project will be the responsibility of the 

Contractor from bench marks, control points, or reference lines provided by the owner. The 
CONTRACTOR shall carefully preserve such bench marks, reference points and stakes and, in case of 
willful or careless destruction, shall be charged with the resulting expense and shall be responsible for 
any mistake that may be caused by their unnecessary loss or disturbance. All points of reference 
(existing or set) shall be checked and verified by the Contractor prior to commencement of work. 

  
4. Construction Testing - The CONTRACTOR shall retain the services of a qualified testing laboratory to 

make tests and determine acceptability of materials for use in embankments, base construction, 
concrete structures, and pavements. The testing laboratory retained by the Contractor will also be 
responsible for providing field quality control as specified in the Standard Specifications. The Engineer 
on behalf of the Owner will provide quality assurance testing as necessary to verify the accuracy of the 
quality control testing.   

 
5. There will be no fuel adjustments for this project. 
 
6. The Contractor shall supply and maintain rest room facilities (Port-A-Johns) at appropriate locations in 

the vicinity of the work area(s). Periodic moving of these facilities will be required as the work area 
progresses along the project.  

 
7. Any utility mains or service lines damaged by the Contractors operations shall be repaired or replaced 

by the Contractor immediately. Prior to commencement of work in the vicinity of utility mains or 
service lines, the Contractor shall have appropriate resources available to make needed repairs without 
undue length of service outage to local property owners and businesses. The location of all valves 
necessary for isolation of the area under construction shall be determined prior to commencement of 
work. 

 
8. Any sprinkler systems in the way of construction shall be removed, relocated, or replaced as necessary 

to function as before. Any sprinkler system damaged during construction shall be repaired or replaced 
as necessary to function as before. There shall be no separate payment for this work. 

 

- 113 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
To:       
      
      
 
Project:  MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you dated    , for the above-described 
work in response to its Advertisement for Bids and Information for Bidders. 
 
You are hereby notified that your BID has been accepted for items in the amount of 
$   . 
 
You are required to execute the Agreement and furnish the required Contractor’s Performance Bond and 
Payment Bond within (15) calendar days from the date of this Notice to you. 
 
If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said bonds within (15) days from the date of this notice, 
said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER’s acceptance of your 
BID as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Bid Bond.  The OWNER will be entitled to such rights as may 
be granted by law. 
 
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER. 
Dated this _________________ day of ________, 20___. 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
Owner  __________________________ 
 By:   
 
 Title:   
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by ______________________ this the 
____________ day of ___________, 20___. 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ________________________________ 

- 114 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
To:           Date:      

     
      
 
Project: MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
You are hereby notified to commence work in accordance with the Agreement dated    , 
on or before   , 20 , and you are to complete all WORK within 60 consecutive calendar days 
thereafter.   
 
The date of completion of all WORK is therefore   , 20 . 
 
 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
Owner  
 By:  _______________________________ 
         
 
 Title:   
 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged by ______________________ this 
the ____________ day of ___________, 20___. 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 

- 115 -

Item # 8.



 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
CHANGE ORDER 
 
Order No.: _______________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
Agreement Date: ___________________ 
 
 
Project: MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
 
OWNER: CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
Justification: 
 
 
 
 
ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE $_____________ 
 
CURRENT CONTRACT PRICE adjusted by previous CHANGE ORDER:     $______________ 
 
The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will be decreased by:  $_____________ 
 
The new CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER will be: $_____________ 
 
The CONTRACT TIME will be (increased)(decreased) by _____________ calendar days. 
 
The date for completion of all work will be ___________________________. 
 
Approvals required: 
 
Requested by (OWNER): ________________________________ 
 
Recommended by (ENGINEER):  _______________________________ 
 
Accepted by (CONTRACTOR):  ________________________________ 
  

- 116 -

Item # 8.



 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 

TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
MOBILIZATION  
MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC  
CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
EARTHWORK 
SELECT BORROW MATERIAL 
GRANULAR MATERIAL (CRUSHED STONE) 
TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL 
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS 
STORM DRAINAGE 
MINOR STRUCTURE CONCRETE 
ROCK RIP RAP 
PAINTED TRAFFIC MARKINGS 
FLOWABLE FILL 
RECORD DRAWINGS 

- 117 -

Item # 8.



 

 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAINS 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1.   GENERAL:  The work to be performed under this Contract shall consist of furnishing all 

labor, tools, equipment and materials and performing all work necessary for the complete 
construction of all facilities depicted by the Contract Drawings and specified herein.   

 
2.   LOCATION:  The project site is located on Mitchell Road between Graham Drive and Willie 

Moore Road within the City limits of Tupelo, MS.  
 
3.   STANDARDS:  Any reference to a specification or designation of the American Society for 

Testing and Materials (ASTM), American Water Works Association (AWWA), American 
Standards Association (ASA), Commercial Standards (CS), National Sanitation Foundation 
(NSF), Federal Specifications, Mississippi Standard Specifications for State Aid Road and 
Bridge Construction, Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, 
Mississippi Department of Transportation Roadway Design Standard Drawing or other 
standards, codes, or orders refers to the most recent or latest specification or designation and 
any issued addenda.  Where names of specific products may be designated in these 
specifications, or in the details appearing on the Contract Drawings, the intent is to state the 
general type or quality of product desired without ruling out the use of other products of equal 
type and quality, provided that use of such other products of equal type and quality has been 
approved in writing by the Engineer prior to installation. 

 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS:  Applicable portions of the most current edition of 
“MISSISSIPPI STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR STATE AID ROAD AND BRIDGE 
CONSTRUCTION”, and the most current edition of “MISSISSIPPI STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION” are made a part of this 
specification fully and completely as if attached hereto except where superseded by Special 
Provisions or amended by revisions.  All references to Standard Specifications shall mean the 
most current edition of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 
Construction, unless otherwise indicated.  Special Provisions and Revised Specifications 
adopted and approved are made a part hereof fully and completely as if attached hereto. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to acquire a copy of these Specifications and become 
familiar with all applicable Sections and Subsections.  Copies of these documents may be 
obtained from the Mississippi Department of Transportation, Post Office Box 1850, Jackson, 
Mississippi 39215-1850. 

 

- 118 -

Item # 8.



 

5.   LAYOUT AND CONSTRUCTION STAKING: The Engineer will provide benchmarks, 
control points, or reference lines as necessary for the location of the principal components of 
the project. From this information, the Contractor shall be responsible for performing the 
necessary computations, installing, and maintaining all necessary slope stakes, batter boards, 
grade stakes (including sub-grade and surface-grade stakes), and additional control points as 
necessary for the construction of the project.  

 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to check and prove all measurements prior to use 
during construction. 

 
The Contractor shall be held responsible for the preservation of all stakes and marks, and if any 
of the construction stakes or marks have been carelessly or willfully destroyed or disturbed by 
the Contractor, the cost of replacing them will be charged against him and will be deducted 
from the payment for the work. 

 
6.   QUALITY CONTROL:  The Contractor shall be responsible for providing materials which 

meet the requirements of the specifications contained herein.  Test Reports and/or Certification 
by the manufacturer or material supplier, properly notarized, shall be furnished to the 
Contractor and the Engineer for all materials supplied for the project. 

 
The Owner reserves the right to withhold payment for any work or materials which have not 
been approved by the Engineer, or certified in accordance with the specifications, contained 
herein. 

 
7.   UNDERGROUND UTILITIES:  The approximate location of known underground utilities is 

shown on the Construction Plans.  In addition to the utilities shown, there may also be 
additional underground utilities, which have not been detected.  It shall be the responsibility of 
the Contractor to notify the Owner and all utility companies with underground utilities and give 
notification of intent to excavate in the area of the project, and to contact the Mississippi One-
Call utility locator service at 1-800-227-6477 prior to excavation activities.  Failure by the 
Contractor to notify the Owner and said utility companies shall make the Contractor liable 
under State law for any damage incurred to underground utilities. 

 
The Contractor assumes all responsibility for any damage to underground utilities. 

 
8.   GUARANTEE:  The Contractor shall guarantee all work done under these Contract 

Documents for a period of one year from the date of substantial completion.  This guarantee 
shall include the repair, without cost to the Owner, of any defect due to design, materials, 
and/or workmanship.  Performance and payment bonds shall remain in effect during the 
Warranty Period.  Inspection will be held by the owner to ascertain any defects prior to release 
and final acceptance.   

 
 
 

- 119 -

Item # 8.



 

MOBILIZATION 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  Mobilization shall consist of moving all labor, equipment, supplies, and 

incidentals to the project site and removing same after other work under the contract has been 
completed. It shall also include all mobilization pre-construction costs which are necessary 
direct costs to the project and are of a general nature rather than directly attributable to other 
pay items. 

 
2.  MEASUREMENT:  Measurement for payment will be in accordance with the following 

schedule: 
 

(1) When five (5) percent of the original contract amount is earned from other bid items 
(exclusive of those listed as dependent items), fifty (50) percent of the amount bid for 
mobilization, or five percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, will be 
paid. 

 
(2) When ten (10) percent of the original contract amount is earned from other bid 
items (exclusive of those listed as dependent items), one hundred percent of the amount bid 
for mobilization, or ten (10) percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, 
will be paid. 

 
(3) Upon completion of all work, payment of any amount bid for mobilization in excess 
of ten (10) percent of the original contract amount will be paid. 

 
 
3.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Mobilization will be paid for at the contract lump sum price, which 

shall be full compensation for completing the work specified. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 120 -

Item # 8.



 

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work shall consist of maintaining local traffic at all times, except as 

provided herein or in other contract documents. It shall consist of constructing, maintaining in 
good condition, and removing temporary structures, approach roads, and other facilities 
required for maintenance of traffic and the furnishing of temporary materials therefore, unless 
otherwise indicated in the contract. 

 
This work shall include furnishing, erecting, maintaining in good condition, and removing all 
required construction signs, barricades, and temporary traffic stripe unless indicated on the 
plans or in the contract specifications. 

 
The applicable material requirements set out in the 700 sections of the Standard Specifications 
and the minimum requirements of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
shall apply to all materials used in the maintenance of traffic. 

 
The Contractor shall at all times so conduct his work as to insure the least possible obstruction 
to traffic. The Contractor shall provide for the safety and convenience of the general public and 
the residences along the road and the protection of persons and property. 

 
The Contractor shall provide, erect, and maintain all necessary barricades, suitable and 
sufficient lights, danger signals, signs, and other traffic control devices; shall provide qualified 
flagmen where necessary to direct the traffic; and shall take all necessary precautions for the 
protection of the work and the safety of the public. Roads or parts of the work closed to traffic 
shall be protected by effective barricades and obstructions shall be illuminated during hours of 
darkness. Suitable warning signs shall be provided to properly control and direct traffic. 

 
The Contractor shall erect warning signs in advance of all places on the project where 
operations may interfere with the use of the road by traffic, and at all intermediate points where 
the new work crosses or coincides with existing traveled roads. Such warning signs shall be 
constructed and erected in accordance with the provisions of the contract. 

 
All barricades, warning signs, lights, temporary signals, other protective devices, flagmen and 
signaling devices shall conform with the minimum requirements contained in the MUTCD 
published by the U.S. Government Printing Office current at the time bids are received. 

 
On all sections of a project which are coincident with an existing highway, road, or street and 
are open to traffic, the Contractor shall be fully responsible for the protection, maintenance, 
and replacement of all signs, route markers, traffic control signals, and other traffic service 
features existing on the work from the beginning of contract time or beginning of work, 
whichever occurs earlier, until final completion of work. 
 

- 121 -

Item # 8.



 

Prior to performing work on the project, the Contractor shall make the necessary arrangements 
to prevent damage or loss of signs or other traffic control devices by providing adequate 
protection, or by removing those which cannot be left in their existing positions, protecting 
them from damage, and reinstalling them at locations so that they will provide maximum traffic 
service. As soon as work, which conflicted with the original position of each device, has been 
performed, the devices shall be immediately reinstalled at their original positions or modified 
positions.  

 
The Contractor is solely responsible for all safety devices necessary for ensuring the safety of 
traffic through the construction zone and for compliance with the MUTCD part VI.  
 
A competent, trained, and experienced Traffic Safety Officer capable of reviewing and 
maintaining construction zone safety shall be designated by the Contractor prior to the 
commencement of the project. The Contractor’s Traffic Safety Officer’s duties shall include 
the following: 

 
1. Understand the requirements of the MUTCD and contract provisions. 
 
2.   Be responsible for assuring compliance of the Contractor’s maintenance and protection 

of traffic relative to the requirements of the contract provisions. 
 
3. Be responsible for maintaining current documentation of deficiencies with respect to 

the Contractor’s maintenance and protection of traffic operations. 
 
4. Be responsible for maintaining documentation on how and when the deficiencies were 

corrected. 
 

5. Hold Contractor’s traffic safety meetings. 
 

6. Be responsible for assuring that all deficiencies are corrected. 
 

7. Be responsible for coordinating maintenance of traffic operations with the Engineer. 
 
8. Be responsible for reviewing Contractor’s equipment location storage and operation 

relative to traffic safety and operation as required by the contract provisions. 
 
9. Be responsible for reviewing Contractor’s material location storage and handling of 

materials relative to traffic safety and operations. 
 

10. Be responsible for maintaining current documentation of deficiencies and 
corresponding corrections relative to equipment operation, equipment storage, and 
material handling and storage pertaining to traffic safety and operations. 

 
The Contractor shall also provide a suitable traffic vehicle, adequately marked and equipped, 
for the use of the Traffic Safety Officer. The Engineer shall be furnished with the telephone 
numbers where the Contractor’s Traffic Safety Officer and a substitute authorized to act in his 
absence, may be reached at all times when not on the project.  

 

- 122 -

Item # 8.



 

Within three weeks’ time, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a copy of each 
accident report for those accidents occurring within the limits of the project. In the event no 
accident report is available, the Contractor and the Engineer shall jointly attempt to describe 
the accident from sources or information that may be available. The Engineer or other 
appropriate personnel as required will analyze these reports to determine if corrective action is 
needed. 

 
In the event corrective action is indicated, the contractor shall proceed immediately with the 
same. 

 
The Contractor shall construct, erect, and maintain in good order all barricades and danger and 
warning signs specified or ordered. Flagmen shall be stationed at such points as may be 
deemed necessary. Movable construction signs shall be moved from each section as their use 
becomes inapplicable. 

 
Such signs and all other signs and devices of a temporary nature shall be in accordance with the 
plans, and the MUTCD, as applicable. 

 
2.  MEASUREMENT:  Progress payment will be made corresponding to the percent of 

construction completion as shown on the approved monthly estimate and verified by the 
Engineer. Specific traffic control devices for which there is a pay item listed will be measured 
and paid for per the unit specified. 

 
3.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Maintenance of Traffic will be paid for at the contract lump sum 

price, which shall be full compensation for completing the work specified. 
 

- 123 -

Item # 8.



 

CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Work under this section shall consist of, clearing, grubbing, removing and 

disposing of all things, including but not limited to, trees, concrete rubble, sidewalks, pipes, 
junction boxes, manholes, pipe, inlets, curb and gutter of all types, and existing pavements of 
all types and thickness within the limits of the project construction which require removal in 
order for the project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Drawings and 
Specifications contained herein. 

 
2.   CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS:  All objects, materials and all trees, vegetation, 

stumps, roots and other protruding or underground objects in the way of construction, and not 
designated to remain shall be cleared and grubbed. The Engineer must be notified prior to 
commencement of the clearing and grubbing operations. The Engineer may permit sound 
stumps to remain outside of the construction limits or in the area to be rounded at the top of cut 
backslopes provided they are cut off flush with or below the surface of the finish ground line. 
Stump holes and other holes from which obstructions are removed, except, in areas to be 
excavated, shall be backfilled with suitable material and thoroughly compacted as specified. 
All operations shall be conducted in such a manner as to prevent injury to anything that is 
designated to remain on site or damage to adjacent property. All clearing and grubbing must be 
completed and approved by the Engineer prior to the commencement of grading operations. 

 
3.   REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL:  All materials, including existing pavements of all types and 

thickness, and debris, in the way of construction and designated to be removed, shall be 
removed from the construction site. Areas required for disposal shall be acquired by, and shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor, unless the disposal area is provided by the Owner. 
Burning shall not be permitted without prior notification and approval of the City of Tupelo. 

 
The Contractor shall be responsible for accomplishing this work in full conformance with the 
requirements of local officials and the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 
(MDEQ). 

 
4.   MEASUREMENT:  Measurement for Clearing & Grubbing will be made corresponding to 

the percent of the item completed and approved by the Engineer. Individual items designated 
for removal for which there is a pay item shall be measured and paid for per the unit specified. 

 
5.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Clearing and Grubbing and removal of individual items shall be paid 

for as specified per each item, which price shall be full compensation for completing the work 
as specified.  

 

- 124 -

Item # 8.



 

EARTHWORK 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  The work covered by this section shall consist of the preparation of the 

embankment or excavation area, excavating, hauling excavation, spreading, compacting and 
finish dressing all areas to the alignment, grades and cross sections as shown on the Contract 
Drawings or established by the Engineer. 

  
 All suitable excavated material shall be placed by the Contractor in full embankment sections 

along the proposed centerline as shown on the plan profile sheets and constructed in 
accordance with these specifications. All clearing and grubbing necessary for the completion of 
this work shall be done in accordance with the clearing and grubbing specification. 

 
2.   GENERAL:  Excavation and embankment construction may begin after the required clearing 

and grubbing has been completed and approved by the Engineer, and after drainage structures 
required in advance of grading operations have been completed. 

 
Embankments will be constructed with suitable materials taken from the excavation areas, or 
from materials brought onto the site from an approved off-site source. Unsuitable materials or 
perishable materials such as rubbish, sod, brush, roots, loose stumps, logs, heavy vegetation, 
etc., shall not be incorporated or buried in any embankment.  Any material encountered that is 
deemed to be unsuitable for use in the work shall be removed and disposed of. The unsuitable 
material as defined in Section 203.03.7 of the Standard Specifications shall be removed and 
disposed of, as specified in Section 203.03.7 of the Standard Specifications. The area will then 
be backfilled with a suitable material, and compacted until the requirements, as specified 
herein, are achieved. Areas specified in the plans to be undercut will be assumed to be 
unsuitable and are to be disposed of by the Contractor. 
 
All areas of the site, which will receive embankment material, shall be completely broken up 
by plowing, scarifying, or disc-harrowing to a minimum depth of six (6) inches.  Areas 
discovered to be soft and yielding shall be brought to the attention of the Engineer. These areas 
shall be processed and compacted to a firm and unyielding layer. If adequate compaction 
cannot be obtained on this material, it shall be removed and replaced with suitable material.  

 
After an area has been fully and completely prepared to receive embankment material, the 
embankment shall be constructed of suitable materials placed in successive layers, parallel to 
the finished grade. Each layer is to be not more than eight (8) inches of loose material, before 
compaction, for the full width of the cross section.  Each layer of excavated material, so placed, 
shall be satisfactorily spread and compacted so as to construct an embankment which, after full 
compaction and shrinkage, will conform within reasonable tolerance to the lines, grades and 
cross sections as shown on the plans or otherwise designated. 

 
All excavation and embankment construction shall be carried on in such a manner as to insure 
adequate drainage in case of unexpected rainfall, and shall conform to the provisions of the 
Erosion Control specification. 

 
3.   COMPACTION OF EMBANKMENTS AND SUBGRADES:  Compaction of embankment 

material shall comply with Section S-203.09.4 of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for 
State Aid Road and Bridge Construction.  This section is copied in its entirety as follows: 

- 125 -

Item # 8.



 

 
“S-203.09.4—Compaction of Embankments.  All embankments material shall be at the 
moisture content determined to be proper for the particular material being placed so that the 
resulting work will be both dense and stable. 

 
It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to maintain the proper moisture content during 
compaction operations, and the Engineer may require moistening or drying as necessary, 
without additional compensation to the Contractor. 

 
The material shall be compacted until the required density, determined in accordance with S-
700.03 and S-700.04 has been attained and the embankment is stable. 

 
The specified value (SV) for density of basement soils is ninety-four (94) percent, and the 
specified value (SV) for density of design soils is ninety-six (96) percent. 

 
The unit of deviation (UD) will be one percentage point. 

 
If the contract does not include a layer of material above the subgrade, or if the top portion of 
the design soil is to be chemically or mechanically stabilized under the contract, the (SV) for 
density of the top six inches of the design soil is ninety-four (94) percent. 

 
The Contractor shall make allowances for shrinkage and compaction in the construction of 
embankment.” 

 
4.   TOLERANCES:  The allowable vertical tolerances for earthwork will be plus or minus one-

tenth foot in elevation and plus or minus five-tenths foot horizontally. 
 
5.   METHOD OF MEASUREMENT:  Structure Excavation will be measured by the cubic yard 

final   measure (FM) in accordance with Subsection 109.01 of the Standard Specifications. 
Select Borrow shall be computed for payment per cubic yard as measured along neat lines of all 
in-place and accepted work completed as shown on the construction details or as directed by 
the Engineer. Undercut areas shall be computed for payment per cubic yard (CY) as measured 
along neat lines of all in-place and accepted work completed as shown on the construction 
details or as directed by the Engineer. 

 
6.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Excavation and embankment, when completed and approved, will be 

paid for at the contract unit price per cubic yard, which shall be full compensation for 
completing the work as specified regardless of the material encountered.  

 

- 126 -

Item # 8.



 

 
SELECT BORROW MATERIAL 

 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Select Borrow Material shall be composed of a natural or manufactured 

mixture of soil binder and granular material. The soil binder shall be clay or silt or other 
materials, or combinations thereof having satisfactory cementing qualities. The mixture shall 
be homogenous in character and reasonably free of clay balls, vegetative material, or other 
deleterious substances that cannot be classified as serviceable, and shall be such that when 
properly compacted will form a dense mass.  

 
The gradation of the select borrow material shall be as follows: 
  

  Sieve Size  Percentage Passing 
  
  No. 10      100 
  No. 40    20-100 
  No. 60    15-85 

No. 200     6-40 
 

The material passing the No. 40 Sieve shall have a maximum plasticity index of 10 and a 
maximum liquid limit of 30.  

 
2.   TESTING:   All sampling and testing shall be made in accordance with applicable standard 

methods of AASHTO in effect on the date of advertisement for bids. 
 
3.   APPROVAL OF SOURCE:   Approval of sources for materials must be obtained prior to 

placement of materials on the project. Samples may be required.  
 
4.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:   This is a material reference specification. Payment for Select 

Borrow shall be made as specified under Earthwork specification.  
 

- 127 -

Item # 8.



 

GRANULAR MATERIAL (CRUSHED STONE) 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work shall consist of furnishing and constructing a Granular Material 

Crushed Stone base on a prepared foundation in reasonably close conformity with the lines, 
grades, and cross sections shown on the plans or established by the Engineer. 

 
2.  MATERIALS:  The Granular Material Crushed Stone shall consist of hard, durable particles 

free from adherent coatings, soft or disintegrated pieces, vegetation, or other deleterious matter. 
The gradation of the Granular Material Crushed Stone shall be as follows: 

 
    Sieve Size  Percentage Passing 
  
 (Crusher Run) 1”    100 
    3/8”    50-85 
    No. 4    35-65 
    No. 10    25-50 
    No. 40    15-30 
    No. 200    5-15 
 
 (Bedding Type 1) 4”    100 
    3-1/2”    90-100 
    2-1/2”    25-60 
    1-1/2”    0-15 
 
3.  CONSTRUCTION:  Construction operation requirements of the Granular Material Crushed 

Stone base shall be in accordance with Section S-304 of the Standard Specifications.  
 

The density of the completed Granular Material Crushed Stone base shall be equal to or exceed 
99% of the Standard Proctor Density. 

  
4.  METHOD OF MEASUREMENT:  Granular Material Crushed Stone shall be computed for 

payment per cubic yard (CY) as measured along neat lines of all in-place and accepted work 
completed as shown on the construction details or as directed by the Engineer. 

  
5.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Accepted quantities of granular material shall be paid for at the 

contract bid price per cubic yard (CY), which shall be full compensation for completing the 
work specified. No separate payment will be made for water necessary for the processing of the 
granular material. 

 
 
 
 
 

- 128 -

Item # 8.



 

 
TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 

 
1.0 DESCRIPTION:  The work covered by this section includes temporary slope protection, 

erosion, and sediment control. 
 
1.1 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS:  The Contractor shall comply with all rules 

and regulations governing the elimination and control of pollutants in stormwater 
discharges associated with construction activities as regulated by the Environmental 
Protection Agency and set forth in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit requirements. 

 
The Contractor is advised that he or his company, as the case may be, is responsible for 
compliance with all applicable State and Federal laws.  The Contactor shall submit a 
C.N.O.I to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality and shall prepare a 
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).The Contractor agrees to maintain 
inspection records, file required maintenance inspection report submittals, perform any 
required repairs, maintenance or additions to the erosion controls and requests that any 
previous contractor be released from the terms of the SWPPP.  Any additional required 
phasing plans shall be submitted to the State by the Contractor prior to the start of 
construction. 

 
The Contractor shall obtain a Notice of Coverage from the State prior to beginning any 
construction activities if required. 

 
1.2  REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall 

maintain records of checks and repairs on site.  Erosion control procedures shall provide 
that all erosion controls are inspected at least once every seven calendar days or as required 
by State regulations. Records shall be maintained on site and submitted to the State as 
required.  

 
The Contractor shall also maintain records of the following: 

 
1) The dates when major grading activities occur. 
2) The dates when construction activities, temporary or permanent, cease on a portion of 

the site. 
3) The dates when stabilization measures are initiated. 

 
 
2.0 MATERIALS 
 
 A. Mulches:  Oat or wheat straw, fiber mats, netting, bark, wood chips, or other suitable 

material reasonably clean and free of harmful weeds or materials. 
 
 B. Silt Barriers: Riprap berms or Hay or wheat straw bales free of harmful weeds. 
 
 C. Synthetic Filter Fabric:  Pervious sheet of woven propylene, nylon, polyester, ethylene 

yarn, 700x minimum, certified by manufacturer or supplier to be in compliance with 
applicable federal, state and local regulations. 

- 129 -

Item # 8.



 

 
 D. Wire Fence Reinforcing for Silt Fence:  Minimum 24" height, 6" x 6" by 14 gauge. 
 
 E. Posts for Silt Fences:   1-1/2" x 1-1/2" wood or 1.33 pounds per linear foot steel with 

minimum length of 48".  Steel posts shall have projections for fastening wire. 
 
 F. Stakes for Silt Barriers:  1" x 2" wood or equivalent metal by 36" long. 
 
 
3.0 SLOPE PROTECTION AND EROSION CONTROL 
 
 A. Do not burn-off ground cover. 
 
 B. Before existing soils are disturbed, provide erosion and sediment control. 
 
   C. Protect slopes immediately after completing rough grading.  Coordinate erosion and 

sediment control with earthwork so as to minimize duration of exposure of unprotected 
soils. 

 
 D. Temporary Protection of Erodible Soils:  Use methods necessary to prevent erosion and to 

control sediment, including any or all of methods listed below. 
 
 E. Mechanical Retardation & Runoff Control:  Mechanically retard and control rate of runoff 

from construction site.  Use temporary diversion ditches and berms to retard and divert 
runoff to protected drainage courses. 

 
   F. Sediment Basins:  When required, sediment basins shall be designed, constructed and 

maintained in accordance with best management practice standards found in the USDA 
Planning and Design Manual for the control of erosion, sediment and stormwater. 

 
 G. Borrow is not allowed in areas where suitable environmental controls are not possible. 
 
   H. Vegetation & Mulch:  Provide temporary protection on slopes when rough grading is 

completed or when enough soil is exposed to require protection to prevent erosion.  Protect 
soil by accelerated growth of permanent vegetation, temporary vegetation, mulching or 
netting.  For slopes too steep for stabilization by other means, stabilize by hydroseeding, 
mulching anchored in place, covering with anchored netting, sodding, or combination of 
these and other necessary methods for effective erosion control.  

 
 I. Silt Barriers:  Place rows of barriers, or install silt fencing securely anchored, or both to 

prevent soil erosion. 
 
 
3.1 MAINTENANCE: 
 

A. Check and repair, as necessary, all control measures weekly during dry periods and within 
24 hours after rainfall of 0.5" or greater.  During prolonged rainfall, check daily and repair 
damage. 

- 130 -

Item # 8.



 

 
 B. Maintain records of checks and repairs. 
 

A. Maintain erosion and sediment control features until Final Completion.  
 
3.2 CLEANING: 
 
 A. When the Work is complete, immediately remove materials used to aid erosion and 

sediment control. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

- 131 -

Item # 8.



 

PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Work under this section shall consist of the establishment of permanent 

live vegetation or furnishing and placing of solid sod on all areas disturbed by 
construction, and the protection of downstream and adjacent property from siltation and 
sediment build up caused by grading operations and construction under this Contract. 

 
 The rates listed in the vegetation schedule are minimum application rates. It shall be the 

Contractors responsibility to apply additional quantities as necessary to obtain sufficient plant 
growth. 

 
The major items of work covered are ground preparation, the furnishing and incorporation of 
fertilizers and agricultural limestone, the furnishing and planting of grass seed, the furnishing 
and placement of vegetative materials for mulch, and/or the furnishing and placement of solid 
sod, and the maintenance and/or watering of this item until the project is accepted by the 
Owner. 

 
2.   TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL:  Temporary erosion control 

measures shall be furnished, installed, maintained, and removed if necessary for the purpose of 
removing suspended soil particles from the water passing through in accordance with the 
Contract Drawings and the Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control specifications contained 
herein. 

 
The Contractor shall maintain the erosion checks until sufficient vegetation is established to 
control erosion.  Measures, which are destroyed or deteriorate prior to adequate vegetation 
coverage, shall be replaced as necessary.  Unless otherwise specified, all erosion checks shall 
be removed or used elsewhere prior to acceptance of the project. 

 
3.   GROUND PREPARATION AND FERTILIZER: Ground preparation and the furnishing of 

fertilizer and agricultural limestone shall be accomplished in accordance with Sections 212 & 
213 of the Standard Specifications.  This item of work shall be accomplished on all areas, 
which have been disturbed and which will require seeding, solid sodding, or sprigging.  Ground 
preparation will not be measured for separate payment. Such construction shall be considered a 
necessary part of the work in completing the various planting and seeding items and is a 
responsibility to be assumed by the Contractor in accordance with such respective pay items. 

 
4.   SEEDING:  Seeding shall be accomplished on all designated areas which do not have 

adequate vegetation to prevent erosion or which have been disturbed during construction of the 
herein described work.  Seeding shall be accomplished in accordance with Section 214 of the 
Standard Specifications.  Seeding mixtures and rates of application shall be as shown in the 
vegetation schedule, or as directed by the Engineer. Seeding in front of established businesses 
or residences shall be accomplished by incorporating common bermuda grass seed at a rate of 
50 lb. per acre. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to maintain the seeds and establish a 
full coverage of live growth. 

 
5.   MULCHING:  Vegetative material for mulch shall be applied on all areas required to stabilize 

seeding during the maintenance and growing period.  This item shall be accomplished in 
accordance with Section 215 of the Standard Specifications.  

- 132 -

Item # 8.



 

 
6.   SOLID SOD:  Sod shall be supplied from an approved source capable of providing well-

rooted, healthy sod, free of diseases, nematodes and soil borne insects. Sod shall be uniform in 
color, texture, density, and free of weeds, undesirable grasses, stones, roots, thatch, and 
extraneous material: viable and capable of growth and development when planted. Approved 
Solid Sod shall be delivered to the site and placed as shown or directed to provide complete 
coverage of areas disturbed during Construction.  

  
The sod shall be cut transported and placed within 24 hours and shall be protected from sun, 
wind and dehydration prior to installation. Sod showing signs of deterioration or distress will 
not be allowed for use. Voids remaining between the sections of sod shall be filled to insure a 
smooth surface after completion of the solid sodding process. 

  
Areas to receive sod shall be graded to a smooth, free draining surface with a loose, uniformly 
fine texture. Where necessary, sod shall be staked (using approved methods) in drainage swales 
or on slopes greater than 3:1. Sod shall be laid to form a solid mass with tightly fitted joints. 
Joints in successive rows of sod shall be staggered. After placement, sod shall be rolled with 
proper equipment to provide a smooth surface free of irregularities and voids. Sod placed 
adjacent to existing lawn areas shall be recessed to provide a level and flush condition between 
new and existing lawn areas. 
 
Sod areas shall be maintained, including water, spot weeding, mowing, application of 
herbicides, fungicides, insecticides, and resodding until a full uniform stand of grass free of 
weed, undesirable grass species, disease, and insects is achieved. 
 
The type of solid sod used shall match that of existing sod located adjacent to the project work, 
unless otherwise directed. 

 
 Fertilizers or agriculture limestone will not be required for solid sod but may be applied at the 

discretion of the Contractor to insure satisfactory plant establishment and growth. 
 
7.   TOPSOILING:  Topsoiling shall be accomplished in accordance with Sections 211 of the 
Standard Specifications. 

- 133 -

Item # 8.



 

 
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS 

 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  The work under this section shall consist of the preparing of one or more 

courses of bituminous pavement on a prepared foundation in accordance with the Standard 
Specifications and in reasonably close conformance with the lines, grades, thicknesses, and 
typical sections shown on the plans or established by the Engineer.   

 
All materials, construction, and all additional requirements necessary for the satisfactory 
completion of the work shall conform to the requirements of Section 301, 401, 403, and all 
referenced sections of the Standard Specifications.  

  
2.   MEASUREMENT:  Hot Bituminous Pavements completed in place and accepted will be 

measured by the ton.  
 

3.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Payment will be made under: 
 

Hot Mix Asphalt, MT (19 mm) – per Ton 

- 134 -

Item # 8.



 

STORM DRAINAGE 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  This Section of the work shall consist of furnishing and laying all pipe and 

flared end sections to be used as storm drains to the lines and grades as shown on the Contract 
Drawings and specified herein. 

 
2.   MATERIALS: All storm drain materials shall be as indicated on the Construction Plans or 

approved by the Engineer. 
 

2.1  Reinforced Concrete Pipe – All reinforced concrete pipe of twelve (12) inch diameter (or 
equivalent arch) and larger shall be Class III, standard strength, conforming to Section S-
708.02.2 of the Standard Specifications. 
 
2.2  Reinforced Concrete Flared-End Section: - All reinforced concrete flared –end sections 
shall conform to Section S-708.04 of the Standard Specifications. 
 

 
2.3  High Performance Polypropylene Pipe- All high performance polypropylene pipe 
covered by these specifications shall be Advanced Drainage Systems HP –Storm Dual Wall or 
approved equal. 
 
2.4 High Density Polyethylene Pipe – All high density polyethylene pipe covered by these 

specifications shall be Advanced Drainage Systems N-12 Dual Wall or approved equal. 
 

2.5 Precast Concrete Box Culvert  - All precast concrete box culverts and headwalls shall 
conform to the design and dimensions shown on the plans, and the materials and 
manufacture of box sections shall meet  the requirements of AASHTO M259 or M273, as 
applicable.  

  
  
 
3.   PIPE INSTALLATION: 
 

3.1  Excavation - Trenches shall be excavated in whatever material encountered, to the line 
and grade as shown on the Contract Drawings or as staked by the Engineer in the field.  The 
width shall be sufficient to properly join the pipe and provide thorough compaction of the 
bedding and backfill material under and around the pipe.    

 
The bottom of the completed trench shall be firm for its full length and width and shall be 
carefully graded, formed, and aligned before the pipe is laid.  The bottom of the trench shall be 
rounded under each joint of the pipe to confirm to the shape of the pipe, and the bell holes shall 
be cut so as to allow the body of the pipe uniform contact and support throughout its entire 
length. 

- 135 -

Item # 8.



 

In Federal Register, Volume 54, No. 209 (October 1989), the United States Department of 
Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) amended its “Construction 
Standards for Excavation, 29 CFR, part 1926, Subpart P”. This document and subsequent 
updates were issued to better insure the safety of workmen entering trenches or excavations.  It 
is mandated by this federal regulation that excavations whether they be utility trenches, 
basement excavations or footing excavations, be constructed in accordance with the new 
OSHA guidelines.  It is our understanding that these regulations are being strictly enforced and 
if they are not closely followed, the owner and the contractor could be liable for substantial       
penalties. 

 
The Contractor is solely responsible for designing and constructing stable, temporary 
excavations and the shoring, sloping, or benching of the sides of the excavations as necessary 
to maintain stability of both the excavation sides and bottom. The contractor’s “responsible 
person”, as defined in 29 CFR Part 1926, should evaluate the soil exposed in the excavations as 
part of the contractor’s safety procedures. In no case should slope height, slope inclination, or 
excavation depth, including utility trench excavation depth, exceed those specified in local, 
state, and federal safety regulations. 

        
3.2  Sheeting, Bracing and Shoring - The Contractor shall be responsible for all                          
bracing, sheeting, and shoring, necessary to perform and protect all excavations as required for 
safety.  Materials used for this purpose shall be carefully withdrawn during backfill operations 
in such a manner as not to damage the pipe or move it from its correct line and grade. 

 
3.3  Dewatering - The Contractor shall perform all pumping and well pointing necessary to 
maintain the excavation in a dry state until the backfill operation is complete. 

 
      3.4  Bedding -  Bedding for all concrete pipe shall be a minimum of Class C conforming to the 

requirements of section S-603.04 of the Standard Specifications. For High Density 
Polyethylene Pipe, the bedding shall conform to the requirements of ASTM D-2321. 

        
3.5  Pipe Laying - The bottom of the trench shall be shaped as to give substantially uniform 
circumferential support to the lower fourth of each pipe.  Pipe laying shall proceed upgrade 
with the spigot ends of bell-and spigot pipe pointing in the direction of the flow.  Each pipe 
shall be laid true to line and grade in such manner as to form a close concentric joint with the 
adjoining pipe and to prevent sudden offsets of the flow line. As the work progresses, the 
interior of the pipe shall be cleaned of all dirt and superfluous material of every description. 
Where cleaning after laying is difficult because of small pipe diameter, a suitable swab or drag 
shall be kept in the pipe and pulled forward past each joint immediately after the jointing has 
been completed. Trenches shall be kept free of water and pipe shall not be laid when the 
condition of the trench or the weather is unsuitable for such work. 
 
3.6  Jointing - Reinforced concrete pipe joints shall be sealed with bituminous plastic cement 
supplied by the pipe manufacturer.  Joining ends shall be wiped clean and dry and the 
bituminous plastic compound shall be applied cold to the entire surface of tongues and grooves 
or the entire surface of bells and spigots.  Sections of concrete pipe shall be forced together 
with excess compound extruding both inside and outside the pipe.  Excess compound shall be 
removed from interior surfaces, and the exterior shall be furnished reasonably flush.   

- 136 -

Item # 8.



 

High Density Polyethylene pipe joints shall be assembled according to the manufacturer’s 
recommendations. Fittings shall not reduce the inside diameter of the tubing being joined by 
more than 5% of the nominal inside diameter.  Reducer fittings shall not reduce the cross-
sectional area of the smaller size pipe. 
 

4. PRECAST BOX CULVERT INSTALLATION:  
 
 4.1 Grading – Grade trench bottom and bring bedding material to height. Bedding material 

should be as shown in the plans. 
 
 4.2 Jointing – Preformed flexible plastic joint material (Ram-Nek or equal) is to be installed on 

the box spigot (top half of box) at the shoulder joint. The joint material is installed in the bell 
(bottom half of box) at the shoulder. Joint priming is recommended. A pipe puller or come-a-
long should be used to pull joints home. This is to be done instead of pushing to minimize 
damage to the box culvert. Each box joint should be checked for grade and alignment at the 
lower haunch. 

 
5.  BACKFILLING:   When the pipe has been laid and jointed as specified herein, the pipe, shall 

immediately be bedded in the trench and made secure against movement by backfilling the 
trench to ½ diameter of the pipe with approved backfill material. Special care shall be taken to 
compact backfill under the haunches of the pipe.  From the half point of the pipe to one (1) foot 
above the top of the pipe, approved backfill material shall be placed in loose lifts not to exceed 
six (6) inches and compacted with hand tamps; special care shall be taken not to damage or 
displace the pipe joints.  From one (1) foot above the top of the pipe to finish grade, approved 
backfill material shall be used by placing in lifts not to exceed eight (8) inches, spreading 
uniformly, and compacting to a firm unyielding layer. If material taken from the trench is not 
acceptable for use as backfill material, acceptable material shall be hauled, placed and 
compacted by the Contractor. Contractor furnished material shall conform to the Select Borrow 
material specification. Backfill under areas to be paved shall be select borrow material 
compacted to at least 95% of standard proctor density. This operation shall be continued until 
the backfill is mounded slightly above the top of the trench, or to the subgrade elevation. No 
separate payment will be made for the completion of this work, but will be considered incidental 
to backfilling of the pipe segments. The contractor shall repair, restore with new work, or make 
good without extra compensation all damages done to the structure as a result of the backfilling 
operations. 

 
6.  MEASUREMENT:   Pipe shall be measured per actual linear foot (LF) of pipe used for storm 

drain applications (pipe joint nominal length multiplied by number of joints, minus cutoffs). 
 
7.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Payment will be made under for each type of storm drain pipe 

specified per linear foot (LF).  
 

- 137 -

Item # 8.



 

MINOR STRUCTURE CONCRETE 
 
1.    DESCRIPTION:  The work under this section shall consist of the construction of reinforced 

concrete storm inlets, pipe collars, paved flumes, junction boxes, and other concrete minor 
structures including inlet grates. 

 
2.    MATERIALS:  Materials under this section shall conform to the following specifications: 
 

2.1  Concrete - All concrete used for construction of concrete minor structures shall be Class 
“B” Concrete as specified in Section 804 of the 1990 Edition of the Mississippi Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.  A mix design for Class “B” concrete shall 
be submitted to the Engineer for approval prior to commencement of concrete construction. 

 
2.2  Reinforcing Steel - All reinforcing steel used in construction under this section shall 
conform to Section 602 and Sections 711 and 805.02 of the Standard Specifications. 

 
2.3  Grey Iron Casting -  Grates and manholes for surface and storm inlets shall be grey iron 
castings, Neenah or approved equal. 
         

2.4  Precast Concrete Inlets -  Precast concrete inlets meeting the above specifications may 
be used in place of poured-in-place concrete inlets. 

 
3.    CONSTRUCTION:  Construction of all minor structures shall be in accordance with the 

locations, dimensions and details as shown in the Construction Plans or as directed.  All 
construction shall be in full accordance with specified sections as set forth above under 
materials specifications. 

 
 

- 138 -

Item # 8.



 

ROCK RIPRAP 
 
1. DESCRIPTION: This work shall consist of furnishing and placing a protective covering of 

rock riprap where shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. 
  
2.    MATERIALS:  Aggregate for loose riprap shall consist of unhewn quarry stone as nearly 

rectangular in section as is practicable. The stone shall be dense, free of clay or shale seams, 
resistant to the action of air and water, and suitable in all other respects for the purpose 
intended. 
 
The gradation of the Rock Riprap shall be as follows: 
 
   Stone   Cumulative Percent 
  Weight   Lighter By Weight 
    200    100 
     80   50-85 
     40   15-50 
     10    0-15 
 
Geotextile fabric for use under riprap shall be Type V in accordance with Section 714.13.5 of 
the latest edition of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.  

 
3.    CONSTRUCTION:  Prior to the placement of the rock riprap, the subgrade surface shall be 

shaped to the lines and grades indicated on the plans, or as directed and shall be approved by 
the Engineer or his representative. The rock riprap shall be installed to the full course 
thickness in one operation and in such a manner as to avoid serious displacement of the 
underlying materials. The rock riprap shall be placed in a manner that will ensure that the 
riprap in-place shall be reasonably homogenous with the larger rocks uniformly distributed 
and firmly in contact one to another with the smaller rocks and spalls filling the voids between 
the larger rocks. 

 
Dumping of the riprap onto the placement surface will not be allowed. Orange peel buckets, 
gradalls or other similar approved equipment shall be used in placement of the rock riprap and 
this equipment shall be operated so that the maximum drop of the rock onto the placement 
area is 3 feet. 
 
Geotextile fabric shall be installed in accordance with Section 815 of the Mississippi Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. 

 
4.    REMOVAL AND RESETTING OF EXISTING RIPRAP:  Existing riprap that is noted for 

removal shall be reset in areas designated for proposed rip rap. Removed riprap shall be 
carefully stockpiled on site and cleaned of any and all dirt and debris accumulation prior to 
resetting. Care shall be taken during removal and cleaning operations to ensure that materials 
do not escape the project limits through siltation or getting deposited in ditches or other water 
flow areas. Once the riprap is satisfactorily cleaned it may be placed in areas to receive riprap. 
Reset riprap shall be placed as set out above for new riprap and may be placed in combination 
with the new riprap. Geotextile fabric is required in all areas to receive riprap. 

  

- 139 -

Item # 8.



 

5.    BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Rock Riprap shall be paid for at the contract unit price per ton by 
actual weight. The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer, a statement-of-delivery ticket 
(Mississippi State Bureau of Weights and Measures certified scale) showing the weight to the 
nearest 0.1 ton for computing actual weight of placed and approved Rock Riprap. Such 
payment shall be considered full compensation for all materials, labor, equipment and 
incidentals necessary for completing the work as specified. Removal and resetting of riprap 
will be measured and paid for by the square yard of existing riprap area prior to removal. 
Geotextile fabric for use under riprap will not be paid for separately but will be included in the 
bid price for Rock Riprap. 
 

Payment will be made under: 
 

Remove and Reset Riprap – per Sq. Yd. 
Rock Riprap (Size 200) – per TON 

       

- 140 -

Item # 8.



 

PAINTED TRAFFIC MARKINGS 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work consists of furnishing materials and placing reflectorized painted 

traffic markings in conformity with these specifications and the details shown on the plans or 
established. 

 
2.  SPECIFICATIONS:  This work shall conform to Section 625 and all referenced sections of 

the “Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction”. 
 
3.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Painted traffic markings will be paid for at the contract unit price per 

mile, linear foot, or square foot, as applicable, which shall be full compensation for completing 
the work as specified. 

 

- 141 -

Item # 8.



 

FLOWABLE FILL 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work shall consist of furnishing supplies, materials and labor necessary 

for the delivery and placement of flowable fill as indicated in the plans, or as directed.  
 
2.  MATERIALS:  The flowable fill shall be a mixture of cement, sand, water, and fly ash. 
 

The Flowable Fill mix design shall be as follows: 
 

Sand  2500# 
Cement   100# 
Flyash    400# 
Water    36gal. 
Air     15% (+/- 3%) 

 
3.  METHOD OF MEASUREMENT:  Flowable Fill shall be paid for at the contract unit price 

per cubic yard (CY). The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer, a statement-of-delivery 
ticket (Mississippi State Bureau of Weights and Measures certified scale) showing the volume 
to the nearest 0.1 cubic yard for computing actual amount of placed and approved flowable fill. 

 
4.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Flowable fill will be paid for at the contract unit price per cubic 

yard, which shall be full compensation for all supplies, materials, and labor necessary for 
completing the work as specified. 

 
Payment will be made under: 

 
Flowable Fill – per CY 

- 142 -

Item # 8.



 

RECORD DRAWINGS 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining one (1) set of record or 

“as-built” drawings documenting any changes or additions to the plans and specifications, as 
well as the locations of all utility service connections.  These record drawings shall be returned 
to the Engineer as part of the project closeout procedures. 

 
No separate payment will be made for Record Drawings.  

 
 

- 143 -

Item # 8.



- 144 -

Item # 8.



- 145 -

Item # 8.



- 146 -

Item # 8.



- 147 -

Item # 8.



- 148 -

Item # 8.



- 149 -

Item # 8.



- 150 -

Item # 8.



- 151 -

Item # 8.



- 152 -

Item # 8.



- 153 -

Item # 8.



- 154 -

Item # 8.



- 155 -

Item # 8.



- 156 -

Item # 8.



- 157 -

Item # 8.



- 158 -

Item # 8.



- 159 -

Item # 8.



- 160 -

Item # 8.



- 161 -

Item # 8.



- 162 -

Item # 8.



- 163 -

Item # 8.



- 164 -

Item # 8.



- 165 -

Item # 8.



- 166 -

Item # 8.



- 167 -

Item # 8.



- 168 -

Item # 8.



- 169 -

Item # 8.



- 170 -

Item # 8.



- 171 -

Item # 8.



- 172 -

Item # 8.



- 173 -

Item # 8.



- 174 -

Item # 8.



- 175 -

Item # 8.



- 176 -

Item # 8.



- 177 -

Item # 8.



- 178 -

Item # 8.



- 179 -

Item # 8.



- 180 -

Item # 8.



- 181 -

Item # 8.



- 182 -

Item # 8.



- 183 -

Item # 8.



- 184 -

Item # 8.



- 185 -

Item # 8.



- 186 -

Item # 8.



- 187 -

Item # 8.



- 188 -

Item # 8.



- 189 -

Item # 8.



- 190 -

Item # 8.



- 191 -

Item # 8.



- 192 -

Item # 8.



- 193 -

Item # 8.



- 194 -

Item # 8.



- 195 -

Item # 8.



- 196 -

Item # 8.



- 197 -

Item # 8.



- 198 -

Item # 8.



- 199 -

Item # 8.



- 200 -

Item # 8.



- 201 -

Item # 8.



- 202 -

Item # 8.



- 203 -

Item # 8.



- 204 -

Item # 8.



- 205 -

Item # 8.



- 206 -

Item # 8.



- 207 -

Item # 8.



- 208 -

Item # 8.



- 209 -

Item # 8.



- 210 -

Item # 8.



- 211 -

Item # 8.



- 212 -

Item # 8.



- 213 -

Item # 8.



- 214 -

Item # 8.



- 215 -

Item # 8.



- 216 -

Item # 8.



- 217 -

Item # 8.



- 218 -

Item # 8.



- 219 -

Item # 8.



- 220 -

Item # 8.



- 221 -

Item # 8.



- 222 -

Item # 8.



- 223 -

Item # 8.



- 224 -

Item # 8.



- 225 -

Item # 8.



- 226 -

Item # 8.



- 227 -

Item # 8.



- 228 -

Item # 8.



- 229 -

Item # 8.



- 230 -

Item # 8.



- 231 -

Item # 8.



- 232 -

Item # 8.



- 233 -

Item # 8.



- 234 -

Item # 8.



- 235 -

Item # 8.



- 236 -

Item # 8.



- 237 -

Item # 8.



- 238 -

Item # 8.



- 239 -

Item # 8.



- 240 -

Item # 8.



- 241 -

Item # 8.



- 242 -

Item # 8.



- 243 -

Item # 8.



- 244 -

Item # 8.



- 245 -

Item # 8.



- 246 -

Item # 8.



- 247 -

Item # 8.



- 248 -

Item # 8.



- 249 -

Item # 8.



- 250 -

Item # 8.



- 251 -

Item # 8.



- 252 -

Item # 8.



- 253 -

Item # 8.



- 254 -

Item # 8.



- 255 -

Item # 8.



- 256 -

Item # 8.



- 257 -

Item # 8.



- 258 -

Item # 8.



- 259 -

Item # 8.



- 260 -

Item # 8.



- 261 -

Item # 8.



- 262 -

Item # 8.



- 263 -

Item # 8.



- 264 -

Item # 8.



- 265 -

Item # 8.



- 266 -

Item # 8.



- 267 -

Item # 8.



- 268 -

Item # 8.



- 269 -

Item # 8.



- 270 -

Item # 8.



- 271 -

Item # 8.



- 272 -

Item # 8.



- 273 -

Item # 8.



- 274 -

Item # 8.



- 275 -

Item # 8.



- 276 -

Item # 8.



- 277 -

Item # 8.



- 278 -

Item # 8.



- 279 -

Item # 8.



- 280 -

Item # 8.



- 281 -

Item # 8.



- 282 -

Item # 8.



- 283 -

Item # 8.



- 284 -

Item # 8.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director of Public Works 

DATE December 21, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 

REPLACEMENT BID NO. 2023-059PW - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request to approve the bid for the Medical Park Pipe Replacement Project. 

 

This work consists of the replacement of approximately 300 ft of failed and undersized storm 

drain pipe culvert and drainage structures near Medical Park Circle 

 

11 bidders responded. 

 

We request to award the bid to lowest and best bidder – Townes Construction Company, Inc.  

 

Townes Construction Bid Amount $314,530.40. 

 

 

Engineers estimate for the project is $441,035.00.  Difference of -$126,504.60 

 

 

 

 

- 285 -

Item # 9.



- 286 -

Item # 9.



- 287 -

Item # 9.



TABULATION OF BIDS
Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
City of Tupelo, MS                                     
Project No. T23-415

BIDS RECEIVED
December 20, 2023 @ 10:00 am

Pay Item No. Item Quantity Units Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total
1 Mobilization 1 LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $16,199.00 $16,199.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00
2 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $12,199.00 $12,199.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
3 Removal of Concrete Pavement 260 SY $30.00 $7,800.00 $10.00 $2,600.00 $5.00 $1,300.00 $10.00 $2,600.00
4 Removal of Concrete Curb 163 LF $15.00 $2,445.00 $10.00 $1,630.00 $5.00 $815.00 $10.00 $1,630.00
5 Removal of Pipes (All Type) 299 LF $30.00 $8,970.00 $15.00 $4,485.00 $10.00 $2,990.00 $10.00 $2,990.00
6 Removal of Junction Box and Inlet 3 EA $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00
7 Removal of Sewer Line 140 LF $15.00 $2,100.00 $10.00 $1,400.00 $20.00 $2,800.00 $10.00 $1,400.00
8 Removal and Salvage of Business Sign 3 EA $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00
9 Erosion Control Measures 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

10 Structure Excavation 1,075 CY $15.00 $16,125.00 $12.00 $12,900.00 $16.00 $17,200.00 $10.00 $10,750.00
11 Select Borrow Material 1,100 CY $25.00 $27,500.00 $15.50 $17,050.00 $18.00 $19,800.00 $25.00 $27,500.00
12 Crushed Stone 200 CY $100.00 $20,000.00 $69.85 $13,970.00 $100.00 $20,000.00 $100.00 $20,000.00
13 88"x54" Concrete Arch Pipe 280 LF $550.00 $154,000.00 $386.70 $108,276.00 $500.00 $140,000.00 $425.00 $119,000.00
14 88"x54" Concrete Flared End Section 1 EA $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
15 88"x54" Headwall 1 EA $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
16 Slotted Inlet 1 EA $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
17 Junction Box with Grate Inlet 1 EA $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $6,825.00 $6,825.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
18 Concrete Pavement 270 SY $80.00 $21,600.00 $101.00 $27,270.00 $85.00 $22,950.00 $100.00 $27,000.00
19 Concrete Curb 161 LF $20.00 $3,220.00 $42.40 $6,826.40 $30.00 $4,830.00 $30.00 $4,830.00
20 Sewer Manhole 2 EA $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00
21 8" Ductile Iron Sewer Pipe 110 LF $65.00 $7,150.00 $165.00 $18,150.00 $85.00 $9,350.00 $100.00 $11,000.00
22 Solid Sodding 2,000 SY $7.50 $15,000.00 $6.00 $12,000.00 $4.50 $9,000.00 $8.00 $16,000.00
23 200# Rip Rap 125 TON $75.00 $9,375.00 $50.00 $6,250.00 $80.00 $10,000.00 $100.00 $12,500.00
24 Construction Fencing 550 LF $5.00 $2,750.00 $3.00 $1,650.00 $8.00 $4,400.00 $5.00 $2,750.00
25 Maintenance of Traffic 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Total Base Bid $441,035.00 $314,530.40 $339,435.00 $386,950.00

TABULATION OF BIDS
Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
City of Tupelo, MS                                     
Project No. T23-415

BIDS RECEIVED
December 20, 2023 @ 10:00 am

Pay Item No. Item Quantity Units Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total
1 Mobilization 1 LS $38,722.37 $38,722.37 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $23,430.00 $23,430.00
2 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,975.00 $15,975.00
3 Removal of Concrete Pavement 260 SY $18.90 $4,914.00 $10.00 $2,600.00 $30.75 $7,995.00 $52.19 $13,569.40
4 Removal of Concrete Curb 163 LF $5.00 $815.00 $10.00 $1,630.00 $24.50 $3,993.50 $24.50 $3,993.50
5 Removal of Pipes (All Type) 299 LF $18.06 $5,399.94 $20.00 $5,980.00 $25.00 $7,475.00 $31.95 $9,553.05
6 Removal of Junction Box and Inlet 3 EA $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,662.50 $7,987.50
7 Removal of Sewer Line 140 LF $15.00 $2,100.00 $40.00 $5,600.00 $25.00 $3,500.00 $15.98 $2,237.20
8 Removal and Salvage of Business Sign 3 EA $1,666.67 $5,000.01 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $2,662.50 $7,987.50
9 Erosion Control Measures 1 LS $10,600.00 $10,600.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,325.00 $5,325.00

10 Structure Excavation 1,075 CY $12.00 $12,900.00 $5.00 $5,375.00 $9.00 $9,675.00 $10.65 $11,448.75
11 Select Borrow Material 1,100 CY $14.00 $15,400.00 $14.00 $15,400.00 $25.50 $28,050.00 $27.69 $30,459.00
12 Crushed Stone 200 CY $97.54 $19,508.00 $100.00 $20,000.00 $120.00 $24,000.00 $119.28 $23,856.00
13 88"x54" Concrete Arch Pipe 280 LF $479.67 $134,307.60 $650.00 $182,000.00 $485.00 $135,800.00 $583.62 $163,413.60
14 88"x54" Concrete Flared End Section 1 EA $7,406.25 $7,406.25 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $10,117.50 $10,117.50
15 88"x54" Headwall 1 EA $19,493.93 $19,493.93 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $11,182.50 $11,182.50
16 Slotted Inlet 1 EA $23,138.91 $23,138.91 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $11,300.00 $11,300.00 $21,300.00 $21,300.00
17 Junction Box with Grate Inlet 1 EA $24,055.87 $24,055.87 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $12,900.00 $12,900.00 $21,300.00 $21,300.00
18 Concrete Pavement 270 SY $63.00 $17,010.00 $150.00 $40,500.00 $111.25 $30,037.50 $31.95 $8,626.50
19 Concrete Curb 161 LF $23.59 $3,797.99 $30.00 $4,830.00 $40.00 $6,440.00 $53.25 $8,573.25
20 Sewer Manhole 2 EA $5,375.00 $10,750.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $9,300.00 $18,600.00 $5,897.50 $11,795.00
21 8" Ductile Iron Sewer Pipe 110 LF $82.50 $9,075.00 $100.00 $11,000.00 $90.00 $9,900.00 $69.23 $7,615.30
22 Solid Sodding 2,000 SY $3.74 $7,480.00 $5.00 $10,000.00 $10.00 $20,000.00 $10.92 $21,840.00
23 200# Rip Rap 125 TON $74.36 $9,295.00 $65.00 $8,125.00 $95.00 $11,875.00 $89.46 $11,182.50
24 Construction Fencing 550 LF $5.00 $2,750.00 $5.00 $2,750.00 $10.00 $5,500.00 $5.33 $2,931.50
25 Maintenance of Traffic 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $11,182.50 $11,182.50

Total Base Bid $391,919.87 $412,290.00 $440,541.00 $466,882.05

Saltillo, MS Arlington, TN Columbus, MS 39705 Belden, MS

James A. Hodges Constuction ENSCOR, LLC Phillips Contracting Co., Inc. Paul Smithey Const. Co., Inc.
1281 CR 811 5566 Commander Dr. P.O. Box 7530 P.O. Box 357

Ste-Bil Grading Inc.
148 CR 509

Waterford, MSGrenada, MS Pontotoc, MS

Engineer Estimate Townes Construction Co., Inc. Patton Construction, LLC
Hwy 8 West P.O. Box 1074

- 288 -

Item # 9.



TABULATION OF BIDS
Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
City of Tupelo, MS                                     
Project No. T23-415

BIDS RECEIVED
December 20, 2023 @ 10:00 am

Pay Item No. Item Quantity Units Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total Unit Costs Item Total
1 Mobilization 1 LS $78,000.00 $78,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00
2 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
3 Removal of Concrete Pavement 260 SY $25.00 $6,500.00 $40.00 $10,400.00 $25.00 $6,500.00
4 Removal of Concrete Curb 163 LF $25.00 $4,075.00 $12.00 $1,956.00 $15.00 $2,445.00
5 Removal of Pipes (All Type) 299 LF $50.00 $14,950.00 $18.00 $5,382.00 $30.00 $8,970.00
6 Removal of Junction Box and Inlet 3 EA $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00
7 Removal of Sewer Line 140 LF $40.00 $5,600.00 $28.00 $3,920.00 $19.50 $2,730.00
8 Removal and Salvage of Business Sign 3 EA $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00
9 Erosion Control Measures 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00

10 Structure Excavation 1,075 CY $40.00 $43,000.00 $19.00 $20,425.00 $60.00 $64,500.00
11 Select Borrow Material 1,100 CY $35.00 $38,500.00 $35.00 $38,500.00 $75.00 $82,500.00
12 Crushed Stone 200 CY $80.00 $16,000.00 $125.00 $25,000.00 $175.00 $35,000.00
13 88"x54" Concrete Arch Pipe 280 LF $393.00 $110,040.00 $750.00 $210,000.00 $1,120.00 $313,600.00
14 88"x54" Concrete Flared End Section 1 EA $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00
15 88"x54" Headwall 1 EA $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $77,500.00 $77,500.00
16 Slotted Inlet 1 EA $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $34,000.00 $34,000.00
17 Junction Box with Grate Inlet 1 EA $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $48,000.00 $48,000.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00
18 Concrete Pavement 270 SY $95.00 $25,650.00 $140.00 $37,800.00 $150.00 $40,500.00
19 Concrete Curb 161 LF $40.00 $6,440.00 $75.00 $12,075.00 $75.00 $12,075.00
20 Sewer Manhole 2 EA $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $6,500.00 $13,000.00
21 8" Ductile Iron Sewer Pipe 110 LF $100.00 $11,000.00 $185.00 $20,350.00 $85.00 $9,350.00
22 Solid Sodding 2,000 SY $6.00 $12,000.00 $5.00 $10,000.00 $10.00 $20,000.00
23 200# Rip Rap 125 TON $55.00 $6,875.00 $120.00 $15,000.00 $150.00 $18,750.00
24 Construction Fencing 550 LF $6.00 $3,300.00 $30.00 $16,500.00 $10.00 $5,500.00
25 Maintenance of Traffic 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

Total Base Bid $495,930.00 $634,108.00 $931,420.00

Smithville, MS Booneville, MS Okolona, MS

Cook & Son Construction LLC Eubank Construction Co. Ausbern Construction Co., Inc.
60146 Seminole Road 2011 North Second St. P.O. Drawer 329

- 289 -

Item # 9.



 

 
December 20, 2023    T23-415 
 
City of Tupelo 
71 East Troy Street 
Tupelo, MS  38804 
Attention: Chuck Williams 
 
RE:  MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
 
 
Following the receipt and opening of bids on the captioned project, we have checked and 
tabulated the bids. A copy of the Bid Tabulation is enclosed.  
 
You will note that Townes Construction Company, Inc. of Grenada, MS, submitted the lowest 
bid in the amount of $314,530.40.   
 
The Engineers estimate was $441,035.00. Based on these prices we recommend awarding the 
contract to the low bidder. 
 
Those in attendance at the bid opening were: 
 
 John White   Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

Tyler Hathcock  Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
Shawn Gray   Townes Construction Co., Inc. 
Brady Thompson  Cook & Son, LLC 
John Oakes   James A. Hodges Construction 
Chuck Williams  City of Tupelo 
Josh Grubbs   City of Tupelo 
Allen Tatum   Phillips Contracting Co., Inc 
Collins Simpson  Ste-Bil Grading 

 Robby Sandlin   ICM 
Terry Ausbern   Ausbern Construction 
Ben Hunter    ICM 
Nick Clark   ENSCOR LLC 
Stephen Reed   City of Tupelo 
Ben Logan   City of Tupelo 
Traci Dillard   City of Tupelo 

  
 
 
 
John White, PE, PLS   

- 290 -

Item # 9.



- 291 -

Item # 9.



- 292 -

Item # 9.



- 293 -

Item # 9.



- 294 -

Item # 9.



- 295 -

Item # 9.



- 296 -

Item # 9.



- 297 -

Item # 9.



- 298 -

Item # 9.



- 299 -

Item # 9.



- 300 -

Item # 9.



- 301 -

Item # 9.



- 302 -

Item # 9.



- 303 -

Item # 9.



- 304 -

Item # 9.



- 305 -

Item # 9.



- 306 -

Item # 9.



- 307 -

Item # 9.



- 308 -

Item # 9.



- 309 -

Item # 9.



- 310 -

Item # 9.



- 311 -

Item # 9.



- 312 -

Item # 9.



- 313 -

Item # 9.



- 314 -

Item # 9.



- 315 -

Item # 9.



- 316 -

Item # 9.



- 317 -

Item # 9.



- 318 -

Item # 9.



- 319 -

Item # 9.



- 320 -

Item # 9.



ESI PROJECT NO.:            DATE: 
       T23-415                           November 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

AND 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE  
PIPE REPLACEMENT 

 
FOR THE 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
(BID # 2023-059PW) 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

- 321 -

Item # 9.



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE  
PIPE REPLACEMENT 

 
 

FOR THE 
 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 

MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 
 

MAYOR: 
TODD JORDAN 

 
CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER: 

DON LEWIS 
 

CITY ENGINEER: 
DENNIS BONDS 

 
CITY COUNCIL: 

NETTIE DAVIS, PRESIDENT 
CHAD MIMS 

LYNN BRYAN  
TRAVIS BEARD 

BUDDY PALMER 
JANET GASTON 

ROSIE JONES 
 
 
 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
BEN LOGAN 

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: 

KIM HANNA 
 
 

- 322 -

Item # 9.



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND ASSEMBLY OF SPECIFICATIONS 
MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 

Contract Documents and Assembly of Specifications       
Advertisement for Bids  
ARPA MANDATORY ADDENDUM 6-5-23        
Mandatory Provisions for all City of Tupelo Projects  
Information for Bidders         
Bid Proposal         
Bid Bond         
Payment Bond         
Performance Bond        
Agreement         
Certificate of Owner’s Attorney       
General Conditions        
Special Conditions        
Notice of Award        
Notice to Proceed        
Change Order   

 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 
Scope of Work 
Mobilization  
Maintenance of Traffic  
Clearing and Grubbing 
Earthwork 
Select Borrow Material 
Granular Material (Crushed Stone) 
Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control 
Permanent Erosion Control 
Storm Drainage 
Minor Structure Concrete 
Concrete Pavement 
Sanitary Sewers 
Rock Rip Rap 
Record Drawings 

- 323 -

Item # 9.



MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
BID # 2023-059PW 

Sealed or electronic bids for the construction of MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 
REPLACEMENT will be received by the City of Tupelo, Mississippi at City Hall, 71 East Troy 
St., 1st Floor Purchasing Office, Attn: Traci Dillard, until 10:00 A.M., on Wednesday, December 
20, 2023, and then publicly opened and read aloud at the Tupelo City Hall Conference Room B. 
Electronic bids will be received until the date and time via electronic online submission through 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  
 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications, may be viewed and/or purchased at 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  Any questions regarding the website or obtaining bid documents should 
be directed to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193. Contract Documents, including Drawings and 
Specifications, may also be examined at the Tupelo City Hall (address above) or at Engineering 
Solutions, Inc. located at 1324 N Veterans Tupelo, MS.  
 
This work consists of the replacement of approximately 300 feet of failed and undersized storm 
drain pipe culvert and drainage structures near Medical Park Circle. The work will include but is 
not limited to earthwork, storm drainage and concrete pavement. Defined quantities to be bid are 
specified in the Contract Documents. 
 
Each bid submitted must be marked on the outside “Bid for MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 
REPLACEMENT”.  Any bid in excess of $50,000 must contain on the outside of the envelope the 
contractor’s current certificate of responsibility number, and no bid shall be opened or considered 
unless this number appears on the outside of the envelope or unless a statement is included on the 
outside of the envelope indicating that the bid enclosed does not exceed $50,000. 
 
A satisfactory Bid Bond executed by the Bidder and an accepted Surety, a certified check, or bank 
draft payable to the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, on negotiable U.S. Government Bonds (at par 
value), shall be submitted with each bid in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the total bid. 
  
In the letting of public contracts, preference shall be given to resident contractors, and a 
nonresident bidder domiciled in a state having laws granting preference to local contractors shall be 
awarded Mississippi public contracts only on the same basis as the nonresident bidder’s state 
awards contracts to Mississippi contractors bidding under similar circumstances; and resident 
contractors actually domiciled in Mississippi, be they corporate, individuals, or partnerships, are to 
be granted preference over nonresidents in awarding of contracts in the same manner and to the 
same extent as provided by the laws of the state of domicile of the nonresident.  When a 
nonresident contractor submits a bid for a public project, he shall attach thereto a copy of his 
resident state’s current law pertaining to such state’s treatment of nonresident contractors.  
 
Minority and Woman Owned Business Enterprises are solicited to bid on this contract as prime 
contractors and are encouraged to make inquiries regarding potential subcontracting opportunities, 
equipment, material and/or supply needs. 
 
The City of Tupelo is an Equal Opportunity Employer, and hereby notifies all Bidders will be 
afforded the full opportunities to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, 
sexual preference, marital or veteran status, or any other legally protected status in consideration 
for an award. 

- 324 -

Item # 9.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


 
Bids may be held up to 90 days from the date of opening for review of bids and qualifications of 
bidders prior to Contract award.  The City of Tupelo, MS reserves the right to reject any or all bids 
or to waive any informalities in the bidding. 
 
TODD JORDAN 
Kim Hanna, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
11-21-2023 and 11-28-2023  

 

- 325 -

Item # 9.



American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Mandatory Addendum (6-5-2023) 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations and Executive Orders 
This is an acknowledgement that federal assistance from the US Department of Treasury 
under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) will be used to fund all or a portion of the 
contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 
orders, ARPA implementing regulations and any correlating regulations established by the 
Treasury Department, including but not limited to the following conditions: 
 
Equal Opportunity Clause 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
 
(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting 
officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or 
on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has 
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant 
or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which 
an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 
applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the 
compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not 
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 
formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or 
action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the 
contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to 
be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' 
representative of the contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary 
of Labor. 

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary 
of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and - 326 -

Item # 9.



accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of 
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of 
this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be 
canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be 
declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures 
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions 
may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

(8) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the 
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor 
or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing 
such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the 
event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the 
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in or is threatened with 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering 
agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect 
the interests of the United States. 
 

Minority and Women Business Enterprises 
This contract was procured by the OWNER taking affirmative steps to assure that women 
and minority businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, 
construction and services. Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the following, or when 
otherwise applicable:  
 
The requirements of Executive Orders 11625 and 12432 (concerning Minority Business 
Enterprise), and 12138 (concerning Women's Business Enterprise).  
 
Contractor hereby agrees to take affirmative steps to assure that women and minority 
businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction and 
services. Affirmative steps shall include the following: 
 

1) Including qualified women’s business enterprises and small and minority businesses on 
solicitation lists; 

2) Assuring that women’s enterprises and small and minority businesses are solicited 
whenever they are potential sources; 

3) When economically feasible, dividing total requirements into smaller tasks or 
quantities so as to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and 
women’s business enterprises; 

4) Where the requirement permits, establishing delivery schedules which will encourage 
participation by women’s business enterprises and small and minority business; 

5) Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the U.S. 
Office of Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; 
and for the purposes of these requirements, a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) is 

- 327 -

Item # 9.



defined as an enterprise that is at least 51 percent owned and controlled in its daily 
operation by members of the following groups: Black, Hispanic, Asian or Pacific 
Islander, American Indian, or Alaskan Natives. A Women Business Enterprise (WBE) 
is defined as an enterprise that is at least 51 percent owned and controlled in its daily 
operation by women. 

6)  If any subcontracts are to be let, requiring the prime Contractor to take the affirmative 
steps in a through e above. 

 
Entities and contractors were previously required to provide proof of compliance to 2 CFR  
200.321 by providing proof of submitting solicitation to the Mississippi Procurement  
Technical Assistance Program (MPTAP) and proof of targeted solicitation to DBE  
firms/vendors.Guidance from MDEQ dated May 1, 2023 requires awardees to show proof  
of compliance by one of the two methods, or both should they choose to. An email detailing  
the project should be sent to Agency Bid Bank agencybidbank@mississippi.org You  
should receive a confirmation to retain in order to demonstrate proof of compliance. 
 
Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act 
Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the 
requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference 
into this contract. 
 
Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause 
above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a 
clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 
The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower 
tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses. 
 
Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the 
contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 
5.12. 
 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
Contracts that are in excess of $100,000 and involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers must include provisions requiring compliance with the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act as follows: 

 
(1) Overtime requirements: No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 

contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics 
shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or 
she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such a workweek 
unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and 
one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in 
such a workweek. 

(2) Violation: liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation 
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, 
such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of 
work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or 
to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 
with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the 

- 328 -

Item # 9.

mailto:agencybidbank@mississippi.org


sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted 
to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The OWNER shall upon its 
own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department 
of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of 
work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted 
contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held 
by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 
satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring 
the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower-tier subcontracts. The prime 
contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower-tier 
subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 
Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued 

pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the OWNER and understands and agrees that the 

OWNER will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Treasury 
Department and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 
financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan Act funding. 

 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act 

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 
1251 et seq. 

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the OWNER and understands and 
agrees that the OWNER will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure 
notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate Environmental Protection 
Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan Act funds. 

 
Debarment and Suspension 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As 
such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor’s principals (defined at 2 
C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
 
The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and 
must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it 
enters into. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by OWNER. If it is later 

- 329 -

Item # 9.



determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 
3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to OWNER, the Federal Government may 
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 
 
Cities cannot award a contract to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the 
System for Award Management (SAM) listed at www.sam.gov. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 
Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or 
any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such 
disclosures are forwarded from tier-to-tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 
A Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification is attached to these supplemental general conditions and 
execution is required for this contract. 
 
Procurement of Recovered Materials 
In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 
recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired: 
Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance 
schedule; meeting contract performance requirements; or at a reasonable price. 
 
Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designated items, is available at 
EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, 
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 
 
The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the 
Solid Waste Disposal Act. 
 

Access to Records 
The Contractor agrees to provide OWNER and the Comptroller General of the United States, or 
any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 
 
The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever 
or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
 
OWNER and the Contractor acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to 
prohibit audits or internal reviews by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
No Obligation by Federal Government 
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting 
from the contract. 
 

- 330 -

Item # 9.

http://www.sam.gov/
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program


Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 
The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims 
and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract. 
 
Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment 
(Huawei and ZTE) 
Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: 

(1) Procure or obtain; 
(2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or 
(3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, 

services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a 
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any 
system. As described in Public Law 115–232, section 889, covered telecommunications 
equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or 
ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security 
surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video 
surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications 
Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology 
Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

(ii)Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using 
such equipment. 

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or 
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of 
the National Intelligence or the  Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 
reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 
the government of a covered foreign country. 

 
Publications 
Any publications produced with funds from this award must display the following language: “This 
project is being supported in whole or in part by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), federal 
award number [enter project FAIN] awarded to The City of Tupelo, Mississippi by the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury.” 
 
Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Contractor is encouraged to 
adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for your employees when operating 
company-owned, rented or personally owned vehicles. 
 

Reducing Text Messaging While Driving 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Contractor is encouraged to adopt 
and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving, and establish workplace safety policies 
to decrease accidents caused by distracted drivers. 

- 331 -

Item # 9.



 
BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING 

AMENDMENT 
 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funs to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal 
contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C.§ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose 
any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal 
award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will 
forward the certification (s) to the awarding agency. 
 

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 – CERTIFICATION REGARDING 
LOBBYING – REQUIRED FOR CONTRACTS OVER $100,000 

 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 

behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,  loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 
 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than - 332 -

Item # 9.



- 333 -

Item # 9.



Mandatory Addendum to 
All City of Tupelo Contracts 
October 28, 2022 

 
The City of Tupelo (TUPELO), despite any contrary provision contained in any contract 

to which TUPELO is a party, does not waive any rights, benefits, or prohibitions that may be 
provided under any law, statute(s), regulation(s), or policies. All provisions to the contrary in 
any contact to which TUPELO is a party are hereby null, void and deleted. Not intended to be 
an exhaustive list, the following are examples of such matters and shall be exceptions to any 
contrary provision(s) in any contract to which TUPELO is a party. 

 
1. TUPELO does not indemnify or hold harmless any party. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
2. TUPELO does not make any warranty. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
3. TUPELO does not waive any claim; past, present, or future. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
4. TUPELO does not waive its sovereign immunity. TUPELO shall only be 

responsible for liability resulting from the actions of its officers, agents, and 
employees acting within the course and scope of their official duties. 

Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-1, et seq. 
 

5. TUPELO does not waive its Constitutional Eleventh (11th) Amendment 
immunity. 

U.S. Const. Amend. XI. 
 

6. TUPELO does not agree to the application of laws of another state. 
U.S. Const. amend XI; Miss. Code Ann. 11-11-3; Miss. Code Ann. 11-45- 

1; City of Jackson v. Wallace, 196 So. 223 (1940) 
 

7. TUPELO does not limit the tort liability of another party to the amount of the 
contract or to any other set amount. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Hathorn (May 28, 1992); 
Miss. AG Op., Davis (March 3, 1993). 

 
8. TUPELO does not agree to waive warranties of merchantability, fitness for a 

particular purpose, or any common law warranties to which TUPELO is entitled. 
Miss. Const. Art 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 75-2-719; Miss. AG Op., 
Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

- 334 -

Item # 9.



9. TUPELO does not agree that a party may represent, prosecute or defend legal 
actions in the name of TUPELO. 

 
10. TUPELO may not and does not agree to the payment of attorney fees of a 

“prevailing party” unless specifically authorized by statute. E.g. Miss. Code 
Anno. § 31-7-309 (1972 as amended) payment of interest on outstanding invoice. 

Miss AG Op., Nowak, 2009 WL 367665 (Miss.A.G.). 
 

11. Provisions that limit the time for TUPELO to pursue legal actions are deleted and 
void. 

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 104; Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 
15-1-5; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin 
(Oct, 18, 2002). 

 
12. TUPELO does not agree to submit to binding arbitration. 

Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 
2002). 

 
13. TUPELO will make payments for all amounts owed under a contract agreement in 

accordance with state law. 
Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

 
14. TUPELO advises for all contracts entered into, the provisions of the contract 

which will contain the commodities purchased or the personal or professional 
services provided, the price to be paid, and the term of the contract shall not be 
deemed to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or financial information, 
and shall be available for examination, copying or reproduction. 

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (7). 
 

15. TUPELO must comply with Mississippi public records law. Records furnished to 
public bodies by third parties which contain trade secrets or confidential 
commercial or financial information shall not be subject to inspection, 
examination, copying or reproduction until notice to said third parties has been 
given, but such records shall be released within a reasonable period of time unless 
the said third parties shall have obtained a court order protecting such records as 
confidential. 

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (1). 
 

16. Data processing software obtained by TUPELO under a licensing agreement that 
prohibits its disclosure and which software is a trade secret as defined in Miss. 
Code Section 75-26-3, and data processing software produced by a public body 
which is sensitive must not be subject to inspection, copying or reproduction 
under Mississippi public records law. “Sensitive” means only those portions of 
data processing software, including the specifications and documentation, used to: 
(a) Collect, process, store, and retrieve information which is exempt; (b) Control 

- 335 -

Item # 9.



- 336 -

Item # 9.



 

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS 
 
 

 
1. RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS 
 
The City of Tupelo, Mississippi, (hereinafter called the “OWNER”), invites Bids on the forms attached 
hereto. Bids will be received by the OWNER at City Hall, 71 East Troy St., 1st Floor Purchasing Office, 
Attn: Traci Dillard until the time specified in the ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS, and then publicly opened 
and read aloud at the Tupelo City Hall Conference Room B. The envelope containing the Bids must be 
sealed and addressed to: CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, and designated as Bid for: MEDICAL PARK 
CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT along with the additional required information as set forth in the 
Preparation of Bid section contained herein. 

 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications, may be viewed and/or purchased at 
www.tupelomsbids.com.  Any questions regarding the website or obtaining bid documents should be 
directed to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193. Contract Documents, including Drawings and 
Specifications, may also be examined at the Tupelo City Hall (address above) or at Engineering Solutions, 
Inc. located at 1324 N Veterans Tupelo, MS.  
 
Should a bidder choose to submit a bid electronically in place of a sealed bid, it may be submitted at 
www.tupelomsbids.com. Any questions regarding electronic bidding should be directed to PH Bidding 
Group at 662-407-0193. 
 
Each bid submitted must be marked on the outside “Bid for MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 
REPLACEMENT”. Any bid in excess of $50,000 must contain on the outside of the envelope the 
contractor’s current certificate of responsibility number, and no bid shall be opened or considered unless 
this number appears on the outside of the envelope or unless a statement is included on the outside of the 
envelope indicating that the bid enclosed does not exceed $50,000. When bidders chose to submit bids 
electronically, the requirement for including a certificate of responsibility, or a statement that the bid 
enclosed does not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00), on the exterior of the bid envelope shall be 
deemed in compliance by including the same information as an attachment with the electronic bid submittal.  
 
The OWNER may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions 
hereof and may waive any informalities or reject any and all Bids. Any Bid may be withdrawn prior to the 
above-scheduled time for the opening of Bids or authorized postponement thereof.  Any Bid received after 
the time and date specified shall not be considered.  No Bidder may withdraw a Bid within ninety (90) days 
after the actual date of the opening thereof. 
 
When a non-resident contractor submits a Bid for a Mississippi public project, he shall attach thereto a copy 
of his resident State’s current law pertaining to such State’s treatment of non-resident contractors as 
required by House Bill Number 850, Chapter Number 527, Laws of 1988.  Bidders residing in the states 
having no contractor preference law shall so state in a letter on contractor’s letterhead attached to his bid. 
 
2.  PREPARATION OF BID 
 
Each bid must be submitted on the prescribed form. All blank spaces for Bid prices must be filled in (in ink 
or typewritten) and the foregoing certification must be fully completed when submitted.  Should the Bidder 
fail to correctly submit a Unit Price for Each item, his Bid will be classed as irregular.  Failure to properly 
sign Proposals shall disqualify same. 
 

- 337 -

Item # 9.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


 

Each Bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope bearing on the outside the name of the Bidder, his address, 
his Certificate of Responsibility Number, his State License Number, and the name of the Project for which 
the Bid is submitted.  If forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the Bid must be enclosed in 
another envelope addressed to the OWNER as specified herein. 
 
3.  REJECTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
Proposals may be rejected in the case of any omission, alterations of forms, additions or conditions not 
called for, unauthorized alternate Bids, incomplete Bids, erasures or irregularities of any kind. 
CONDITIONAL BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. Proposals in which the prices obviously are 
unbalanced may be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to waive any informalities or reject any and all 
bids. 
 
4.  TELEGRAPHIC MODIFICATION 
 
Any Bidder may modify his Bid by telegraphic communication at any time prior to the scheduled closing 
time for receipt of Bids, providing such telegraphic communication is received by the OWNER prior to the 
closing time, and provided further, the OWNER is satisfied that a written confirmation of the telegraphic 
modification over the signature of the Bidder was mailed prior to the closing time.  The telegraphic 
communication should not reveal the Bid Price, but should provide the addition or subtraction or other 
modification so that the final prices or terms will not be known by the OWNER until the sealed Bid is 
opened.  If written confirmation is not received within two (2) days from the closing time, no consideration 
will be given to the telegraphic modification. 
 
5.  METHOD BIDDING 
 
The OWNER invites only one Bid with alternates thereto, if any. Each Bidder must present a complete 
Proposal for all of the work as only one Contract will be awarded. 
 
6.  QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDER 
 
The OWNER may make such investigation as he deems necessary to determine the ability of the Bidder to 
perform the work, and the Bidder shall furnish to the OWNER all such information and data for this 
purpose as the OWNER may request. The OWNER reserves the right to reject any Bid if the evidence 
submitted by, or investigation of, such Bidder fails to satisfy the OWNER that such Bidder is properly 
qualified to carry out the obligations of the Contract and to complete the work contemplate therein. 
 
7.  BID SECURITY 
 
Each Bid must be accompanied by cash, Certified Check of the Bidder, or a Bid Bond prepared on the form 
of Bid Bond attached hereto, duly executed by the Bidder as principal and having as surety thereon a surety 
company approved by the Owner, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Bid.  Such cash, checks or Bid 
Bond will be returned to all except the three lowest Bidders after the opening of Bids. The remaining cash, 
checks or Bid Bonds will be returned after the OWNER and accepted Bidder have executed the Contract.  If 
no award has been made within ninety (90) days after the date of the opening of Bids, upon demand of the 
Bidder at any time thereafter, his Bid will be returned by the OWNER so long as the Bidder has not been 
notified of the acceptance of his Bid. 
 
8.  LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR FAILURE TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT 
 
 The successful Bidder, upon his failure or refusal to execute and deliver the Contract and Bonds required 
within (15) days after he has received notice of the acceptance of his Bid, shall forfeit to the OWNER (as 
liquidated damages for such failure or refusal) the security deposited with his Bid. 

- 338 -

Item # 9.



 

9.  TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
The Bidder must agree to commence work on or before a date specified in a written NOTICE TO 
PROCEED of the OWNER and to fully complete the project within the Contract Time stated in the 
Agreement and/or Bid Proposal. The Bidder must also agree to pay (as liquidated damages) the sum stated 
in the Bid Proposal for each working day thereafter as hereinafter provided in the General Conditions. 
 
10.  CONDITIONS OF WORK 
 
Each Bidder must inform himself fully of the conditions relating to the construction of the project and 
employment of labor thereon by conducting site visits and becoming thoroughly familiar with the Contract 
Documents. Failure to do so will not relieve a successful Bidder of his obligation to furnish all materials and 
labor necessary to carry out the provisions of his Contract.  Insofar as possible, the Contractor, in carrying 
out his work, must employ such methods or means as will not cause any interruption of or interference with 
the work of any other contractor. 
 
11.  ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 
No interpretations of the meaning of the Plans, Specifications or other pre-bid documents will be made to 
any Bidder orally. 
 
Every request for such interpretations should be in writing, addressed to: 
 
ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, INC., 1324 N. VETERANS BLVD. TUPELO, MS 38804 
 
and, to be given consideration, must be received at least five (5) days prior to the date fixed for the opening 
of Bids.  Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written 
Addenda to the Specifications, which, if issued, will be mailed, to all prospective Bidders (at the respective 
addresses furnished for such purposes) prior to the date fixed for the opening of Bids. Failure of any Bidder 
to receive any such Addenda of interpretation shall not relieve such Bidder from any obligation under his 
Bid as submitted.  All addenda so issued shall become part of the Contract documents. 
 
12.  SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE 
 
Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a Surety Bond or 
Bonds as security for faithful performance of this Contract and furnishing materials in compliance with this 
Contract as specified in the General Conditions included herein.  The surety on such Bond or Bonds shall be 
a duly authorized surety company satisfactory to the OWNER. 
 
13.  POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 
Attorneys-in-fact who sign Bid Bonds or Contract Bonds must file with each Bond a certified and 
effectively dated copy of their Power of Attorney. 
 
14.  LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
The Bidder’s attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, municipal ordinances, and the 
rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the 
Contract throughout, and they will be deemed to be included in the Contract the same as though written out 
in full. 
 

- 339 -

Item # 9.



 

15.  METHOD OF AWARD 
 
If, at the time this Contract is to be awarded, the lowest Base Bid or lowest Base Bid plus any combination 
of alternates (at the owners discretion) submitted by a responsible Bidder does not exceed the amount of 
funds then estimated by the OWNER as available to finance the Contract; the Contract will be awarded to 
the lowest qualified Bidder.  If such Bid exceeds such amount, the OWNER may reject all Bids. 
 
 
16.  OBLIGATION OF BIDDER 
 
BIDDERS must satisfy themselves of the accuracy of the estimated quantities in the BID Schedule by 
examination of the site and a review of the drawings and specifications including ADDENDA. After BIDS 
have been submitted, the BIDDER shall not assert that there was a misunderstanding concerning the 
quantities of WORK or of the nature of the WORK to be done. At the time of the opening of Bids, each 
Bidder will be presumed to have inspected the site and to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the 
Plans and Contract Documents (including all Addenda). The failure or omission of any Bidder to examine 
any form, instrument or document shall in no way relieve any Bidder from any obligation in respect to his 
Bid. 
 
17.  SAFETY STANDARDS AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
With respect to all work performed under this contract, the Contractor shall 
 
 A. Comply with the safety standards provisions of applicable laws, building and    
  construction codes. 
  
 B. Exercise every precaution at all times for the prevention of accidents and     
  protection of persons (including employees) and property. 
  
 C. Maintain at his/her office or other well-known place at the job site, all articles    

 necessary for giving first aid to the injured and shall make standing arrangements   
 for the immediate removal to a hospital or a doctor’s care of persons     
 (including employees), who may be injured on the job site.   

 
18.  SCOPE OF WORK  
 
The Bidder agrees to perform all the work described in the Contract Documents and to construct the work, 
complete in place and ready to use. 
 
19.  PRECEDENCE OF DOCUMENTS 
 
The various Contract Documents shall be given precedence, in case of conflict, error or discrepancy in the 
following order:  Addenda, General Specifications, Technical (Item) Specifications, Construction Plans, 
Information for Bidders, Special Conditions and General Conditions 
 
20. FUEL ADJUSTMENTS 
 
There will be no fuel adjustments for this project. 
 
21. ATTACHMENT C - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The Contractor shall meet the terms and conditions of the following Attachment C – Subaward Terms and 
Conditions for Contracted Parties: 

- 340 -

Item # 9.



 

 
ATTACHMENT C 

SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 
1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 
 
The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized business that is 
authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental organization, or 4) a political 
subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter into this agreement and; (b) entry into 
and performance under this agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, financing, 
contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement 
to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may 
adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this agreement. 

 
2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 
 
Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

 
A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or agency or any political subdivision 
or agency of the State of Mississippi; 
 
B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; 
 
C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in Article 2.B. and 
Article 2.C., above; and, 
 
E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. This agreement is subject to 31 
C.F.R. Part 19. 
 

3. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release and hold 
harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, all of their 
employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all claim, demand, cause 
of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including attorney's fees or expenses 
on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees or any other parties arising out of or incident 
to, any and all Work under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

- 341 -

Item # 9.



 

 
4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS 
 
The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner whatsoever, to any 
contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), engineer(s), attorney(s), 
equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any kind whatsoever (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party also acknowledge and 
agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from 
or associated with this Agreement is strictly incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to 
be considered as third-party beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT. 
Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard to the project, 
MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under such contract. The 
SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or otherwise obligate MDEQ, 
directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. 
The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors acknowledge and agree that any action taken by 
MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or 
alter its position as that of grantor. MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in 
contract claims or dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract 
claims under the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and 
the Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, approve, 
or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party. Any MDEQ reviews, approvals, 
observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal communications or other actions are not 
to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, nor are they to be construed as interpreting the 
contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the Contracted Party or any other parties. 
 
5. ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection is made during 
normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability Office, MDEQ, the State 
or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt access to any of Contracted Party’s 
books, documents, papers, and other records which are maintained or produced as a result of the Project for 
the purpose of making audits, investigations, examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such 
documents. This right also includes timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the 
purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall 
be retained by Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 
Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 
or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the records 
shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved or until the end 
of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-
mentioned records for the ten (10) year period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision 
only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

 
A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the “Right to Audit” 
provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention period and a certification 
stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 
 
B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project is 
commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding certification to 
MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all issues arising out of the 
action are finally resolved; and 
 
C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice before providing 
the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

- 342 -

Item # 9.



 

 
6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 
 
The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records and other 
records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state 
laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after 
final payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the subsequent 
ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s 
Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, 
claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started 
before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, 
investigations, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 
 
7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 
 
MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right to conduct 
announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work hereunder. Upon request 
by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, invitees, and consultants with the 
opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the 
performance of the Work. 
 
8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or 
indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, where applicable, or any 
other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of his services hereunder. 
The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the performance of this agreement, no person having any 
such interest shall be employed. The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 
gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other tie. 
 
9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION 
 
The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated representatives  
in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide in form and manner 
approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as may be required and to 
provide such reports at the times specified. Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or 
its duly designated representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information 
to assist in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) years 
after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

- 343 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

BID PROPOSAL (# 2023-059PW) 
 
 
 
Proposal of _________________________________    (hereinafter called “BIDDER”), 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Mississippi, doing business as __________________.* 
 
To the CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, (hereinafter called “OWNER”). 
 
In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes to perform all WORK for 
MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT within the time set forth herein, and at the prices stated 
below.  These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS of which this Proposal is a part. 
 
By submission of this BID, each BIDDER certifies, and in the case of a joint BID, each party thereto 
certifies as to his own organization, that this BID has been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement as to any matter relating to this BID with any other BIDDER or with any 
competitor. 
 
BIDDER hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date specified in the NOTICE 
TO PROCEED and to fully complete the project within 60 consecutive calendar days. BIDDER further 
agrees to pay as liquidated damages, the sum of $500 for each working day after applicable completion 
dates per each phase of work as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
 
BIDDER acknowledges receipt of the following ADDENDUM: 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
*Insert “a corporation”, “a partnership”, or “an individual” as applicable 
 

Patton Construction, LLC
a limited liability company

None

- 344 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

 
BID PROPOSAL (# 2023-059PW )        
 
 The BIDDER agrees to perform all WORK for the construction of MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE 
REPLACEMENT as described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and shown on the Construction Plans 
for the following Unit Prices within the times specified in the Contract Agreement subsequent to the date 
specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED. 
 
CONTRACT – MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
            UNIT PRICE IN               TOTAL 
ITEM DESCRIPTION            QUANTITY WORDS AND FIGURES                 PRICE  
 
 
 

1.      Mobilization     1 L.S. _______________________   
      _______________________ 
    _______________________  $______________    
 

2.       Clearing and Grubbing     1 L.S. _______________________   
      _______________________ 
    _______________________  $______________    
 
 3. Removal of Concrete Pavement    260 S.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
  
 4. Removal of Concrete Curb    163 L. F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 5. Removal of Pipe (All Type)    299 L. F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 6. Removal of Drainage Structures    3 Each _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 7. Removal of Sewer Line    140 L. F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 8. Removal and Salvage of    3 Each _______________________  
  Business Sign   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 

9. Erosion Control Measures    1 L.S. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 

$ 5.00
Five Dollars

1,300.00

$5.00
Five Dollars

815.00

$15,000.00
Fifteen thousand dollars

15,000.00

$500.00

1,500.00
Five Hundred Dollars

$20.00

2,800.00
Twenty dollars

$500.00

1,500.00

$5,000.00

$5,000.00
Five thousand dollars

$10.00

$2,990.00
Ten dollars

Five hundred dollars

$2,500.00

2,500.00
Two thousand five hundred dollars

- 345 -

Item # 9.



 

 10. Structure Excavation    1,075 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
  
 11. Select Borrow Material     1,100 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 
 12. Crushed Stone     200 C.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 13. 88”x54” Concrete      280 L.F. _______________________  
  Arch Pipe   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 14. 88”x54” Concrete      1 EA. _______________________  
  Flared End Section   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 15. 88”x54” Headwall     1 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 16. Slotted Inlet     1 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
  
 17. Junction Box with     1 EA. _______________________  
  Grate Inlet   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 18. Concrete Paving     270 S.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 19. Concrete Curb     161 L.F. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 20. Sewer Manhole     2 EA. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 
 21. 8” Ductile Iron      110 L.F. _______________________  
  Sewer Pipe   _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 22. Solid Sodding    2,000 S.Y. _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 
 23. 200# Rock Rip Rap     125 Ton _______________________  
     _______________________ 
    _______________________        $______________ 
 

17,200.00
Sixteen dollars
$16.00

$18.00

19,800.00
Eighteen dollars

$100.00

20,000.00
One hundred dollars

$7,500.00

7,500.00
Seven thousand five hundred

$85.00

9,350.00
Eighty-five dollars

$10,000.00
Ten thousand dollars

10,000.00

$10,000.00

10,000.00
Ten thousand dollars

$10,000.00

10,000.00
Ten thousand dollars

$85.00

Eighty-five dollars
22,950.00

500.00

140,000.00
Five hundred dollars

$4,500.00

9,000.00
Four thousand five hundred dollars

$30.00

4,830.00
Thirty dollars

$4.50

9,000.00
Four dollars and fifty cents

$80.00

$10,000.00
Eighty dollars

- 346 -

Item # 9.



- 347 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

BID BOND 
 
Know all men by these presents, that we, the undersigned,       , 
as Principal, and         
as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as OWNER in the Penal 
sum of     for the payment of which, 
well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, successors and assigns. 
 
Signed, this ______________ day of _________________, 20____. 
 
The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principle has submitted to THE CITY OF TUPELO, 
MISSISSIPPI, a certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part of to enter into contract in writing, for the 
construction of: 
 
 MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
Now, therefore, 
 
 (a)  If said BID shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 (b)  If said BID shall be accepted and the Principle shall execute and deliver a contract in the Form   
  of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said BID) and shall furnish   
  a bond for his faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons    
  performing labor or furnishing materials in connection there with, and shall in all other respects   
  perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said BID, 
 
then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount 
of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the OWNER may accept such BID; and said 
Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
In Witness whereof, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as are 
corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers, the day and year first set forth above. 
 
______________________________ (L.S.) 
(Principal) 
 
______________________________ 
(Surety) 
 
By:  ____________________________________ 
 
IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s most current 
list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is 
located. 

- 348 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
 

PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that 
 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________            

a                                                 , hereinafter called PRINCIPAL  

and ________________________________________________________________(Name of Surety) 

hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, 71 
East Troy St. Tupelo, MS 38804, hereinafter called OWNER, and unto all persons, firms, and corporations, 
who or which may furnish labor, or who furnish materials to perform as described under the contract and to 
their successors and assigns in the total aggregate penal sum of __________________________________ 
________________________________________in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of 
which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, 
and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the PRINCIPAL entered into a certain 
contract with the OWNER, dated the ____________________ day of __________________, 20____, a 
copy of which is hereto attached and made part hereof for the construction of: 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, and 
corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the WORK provided for in 
such contract, and any authorized extensions or modifications thereof, including all amounts due for 
materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal, and coke, repairs on machinery, equipment, and tools, consumed or 
used in connection with the construction of such WORK, and for all labor cost incurred in such WORK 
including that by a SUBCONTRACTOR, and to any mechanic or material man lien holder whether it 
acquired its lien by operation of State or Federal law; then this obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
PROVIDED, that beneficiaries or claimants hereunder shall be limited to the SUBCONTRACTORS, and 
persons, firms, and corporations having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL or its 
SUBCONTRACTORS. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said SURETY for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be 
performed there under or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way effect its 
obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration 
or addition to the terms of this contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

- 349 -

Item # 9.



 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: (a) Unless 
claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL, shall have given written notice to 
any two of the following: the PRINCIPAL, the OWNER, or the SURETY above named within ninety (90) 
days after such claimant did or performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the materials 
for which said claim is made, stating the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done 
or performed.  Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, in an envelope addressed to the PRINCIPAL, OWNER, or SURETY, at any place where an office 
is regularly maintained for the transaction of business, or served in any manner which legal process may be 
served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a 
public officer. (b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date of which PRINCIPAL ceased work 
on said CONTRACT, it being understood, however, that if any limitation embodied in the BOND is 
prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so 
as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation permitted by such law. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 
automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the 
Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the 
SURETY to the full and faithful performance of the Contract as so amended. The term “Amendment”, 
wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this BOND, the contract, or the Loan Documents 
shall include any alteration, addition, extension, or modification of any character whatsoever. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR shall 
abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in FOUR (4) counter parts, each one of which shall 
be deemed an original, this the _____________________ day of _____________________, 20___. 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 

(Principal) Secretary                 Principal 

(SEAL)       By: _____________________________ 
 
__________________________________                        ________________________________ 
Witness as to Principal     Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
       Surety 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________  By: ____________________________ 
Witness as to Surety           Attorney-In-Fact 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Address       Address 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 

NOTE 1: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Agreement.  If Contractor is Partnership, all partners 
should execute Bond.  Surety Companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s 
Circular 570 (most current) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is located. 

- 350 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
PERFORMANCE BOND 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that 

       
_______________________________________   

a               , hereinafter called PRINCIPAL 

 

and                                                  (Name of Surety) 
hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, 71 
East Troy St. Tupelo, MS 38804, hereinafter called OWNER, in the total aggregate penal sum of    
_______________________________________________________________ in lawful money of the 
United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the PRINCIPAL entered into a certain 
contract with the OWNER, dated the ____________________ day of __________________, 20____, a 
copy of which is hereto attached and made part hereof for the construction of: 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall well, truly, and faithfully perform its duties, all the 
undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, 
and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the OWNER with or without notice to the SURETY 
and during one year guaranty period and if the PRINCIPAL shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred 
under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the OWNER from all costs and damages 
which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the OWNER all outlay and 
expense which the OWNER may incur in making good any default, then this obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

 
PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said security, for value receive hereby stipulates and agrees that no 
change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or the WORK to be performed 
thereunder or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying same shall in any way affect its obligation on this 
BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

- 351 -

Item # 9.



 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 
automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the 
Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the 
SURETY to the full and faith full performance of the Contract as so amended. The term “Amendment”, 
wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this BOND, the contract, or the Loan Documents 
shall include any alteration, addition, extension, or modification of any character whatsoever. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OWNER and the PRINCIPAL shall abridge 
the right of the other beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.  The OWNER is the only 
beneficiary hereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in FOUR (4) counterparts, each one of which shall 
be deemed an original, this the _____________________ day of _____________________, 20____. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   _______________________________  

(Principal) Secretary     Principal 

 
(SEAL)       By: ____________________________ 
 
________________________________                            _______________________________ 
Witness as to Principal     Address 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
       Surety 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   By: ____________________________ 
Witness as to Surety            Attorney-In-Fact 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
Address       Address 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
 
 
NOTE 1: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Agreement.  If Contractor is Partnership, all partners 
should execute Bond.  Surety Companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s 
Circular 570 (most current) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is located. 

COUNTERSIGNED BY: 

__________________________ 

Resident Mississippi Agent 

- 352 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT          
 
This AGREEMENT, made this         day of   , 20__ by and between THE CITY OF 
TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, hereinafter called “OWNER” and      , doing business 
as (an individual,) or (a partnership,) or (a corporation,) hereinafter called “CONTRACTOR”. 
 
WITNESSETH:  That for and consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned: 
 
 1. The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the construction of MEDICAL PARK 

CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT. 
 2. The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and other 

services necessary for the construction and completion of the project described herein. 
 3.   The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS on or 

before the date of the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the same within 60 consecutive 
calendar days unless the period for completion is extended otherwise by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS.   

 4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT   
DOCUMENTS for the sum of         
 , being the amount of the accepted proposal and subject to 
proper additions and/or deductions at the unit prices as stated in the proposal or otherwise provided 
for by modification.      

 5. The term “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS” means and includes the following: 
 
  (A) Advertisement for Bids 
  (B) Information for Bidders 
  (C) Bid Proposal 
  (D) Bid Documents 
  (E) Bid Bond 
  (F) Agreement 
  (G) Certificate of Owner’s Attorney 
  (H) General Conditions 
  (I) Special Conditions 
  (J) Payment Bond 
  (K) Performance Bond 
  (L) Notice of Award 
  (M) Notice to Proceed 
  (N) Change Order 
  (O) Drawings, specifications, and addenda prepared by Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
 
 6. The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth in the  
  General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
  

- 353 -

Item # 9.



 

AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
 7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,  
  administrators, successors, and assigns.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have  
  executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized officials, this agreement in four  
  copies, each of which shall be deemed an original on the date first written. 
 
 
 
OWNER: 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________  OWNER’S SEAL 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:_________________________________ 
 Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________  CORPORATE SEAL 
 
 
 
NOTE:  If CONTRACTOR is a corporation, secretary should attest. 

- 354 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER’S ATTORNEY 
 
I, the undersigned, ____________________________, the duly authorized and acting legal representative of 
THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, do hereby certify as follows: 
 
I have examined the attached contract(s) and performance and payment bond(s) and the manner of 
execution thereof, and I am of the opinion that each of the aforesaid agreements has been duly executed by 
the proper parties thereto acting through their duly authorized representatives; that said representatives have 
full power and authority to execute said agreements on behalf of the respective parties named thereon; and 
that the foregoing agreements constitute valid and legally binding obligations upon the parties executing the 
same in accordance with terms, conditions, and provisions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
NAME: ____________________________ 
 
DATE: ____________________________ 
 

NOTE:  Delete phrase “performance and payment bond(s)” when not applicable.

- 355 -

Item # 9.



 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 

                                                                      
 
 1. Definitions 
 2. Additional Instructions and Detail Drawings 
 3. Schedules, Reports, and Records 
 4. Drawings and Specifications 
 5. Shop Drawings 
 6. Materials, Services, and Facilities 
 7. Inspection and Testing 
 8. Substitutions 
 9. Patents 
10. Surveys, Permits, Regulations 
11. Protection of Work, Property, Persons 
12. Supervision by Contractor 
13. Changes in Work 
14.  Changes in Contract Price 
15. Time for Completion and Liquidated Damages 
16. Correction of Work     
17. Subsurface Conditions 
18.  Suspension of Work, Termination, and Delay 
19.  Payments to Contractor 
20. Acceptance of Final Payment as Release 
21. Insurance 
22.  Contract Security 
23.  Assignments 
24.  Indemnification 
25.  Separate Contracts 
26.  Subcontracting 
27.  Engineer's Authority 
28.  Land and Rights-of-Way 
29.  Guaranty 
30.  Taxes 
31.  Environmental Requirements 
32. Record Drawings 
33. Claims for Delays 
34. Fuel, Energy, and Water 
35. Street Maintenance 
36. Cleaning Up 

- 356 -

Item # 9.



 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 1.1 Wherever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the following terms shall have 

the meanings indicated and shall be applicable to both the singular and plural 
thereof: 

 
 1.2 ADDENDA - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the execution of the 

Agreement which modify or interpret the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, 
DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS, by additions, deletions, clarifications, or 
corrections. 

 
 1.3 BID - The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form 

setting forth the prices for the WORK to be performed. 
 
 1.4 BIDDER - Any person, firm or corporation submitting a BID for the WORK. 
 
 1.5 BONDS - Bid, Performance, and Payment Bonds and other instruments of surety, 

furnished by the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR'S surety in accordance 
with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 1.6 CHANGE ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR authorizing an 

addition, deletion, or revision in the WORK within the general scope of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, or authorizing an adjustment in the CONTRACT 
PRICE or CONTRACT TIME.                 

 
 1.7 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS - The contract, including Advertisement for BIDS, 

Information for BIDDERS, BID, BID BOND, Agreement, Payment BOND, 
Performance BOND, NOTICE OF AWARD, NOTICE TO PROCEED, CHANGE 
ORDER, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, and ADDENDA. 

 
 1.8 CONTRACT PRICE - The total monies payable to the CONTRACTOR under the 

conditions and terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 1.9 CONTRACT TIME - The number of calendar days stated in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS for the completion of the WORK. 
 
 1.10 CONTRACTOR - The person, firm, or corporation with whom the OWNER has 

executed the Agreement. 
 
 1.11 DRAWINGS - The parts of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS which show the 

characteristics and scope of the WORK to be performed and which have been 
prepared or approved by the ENGINEER. 

 
 
 
 1.12 ENGINEER - The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS. 
 

- 357 -

Item # 9.



 

 1.13 FIELD ORDER - A written order effecting a change in the WORK not involving an 
adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, 
issued by the ENGINEER to the CONTRACTOR during construction. 

 
 1.14 NOTICE OF AWARD - The written notice of the acceptance of the BID from the 

OWNER to the successful BIDDER. 
 
 1.15 NOTICE TO PROCEED - Written communication issued by the OWNER to the 

CONTRACTOR authorizing him/her to proceed with the WORK and establishing 
the date for commencement of the WORK.     

 
 1.16 OWNER - A public or quasi-public body or authority, corporation, association, 

partnership, or an individual for whom the WORK is to be performed. 
 
 1.17 PROJECT - The undertaking to be performed as provided in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS. 
 
 1.18 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE - The authorized representative of the 

OWNER who is assigned to the PROJECT site or any part thereof. 
 
 1.19 SHOP DRAWINGS - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules 

and other data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, a SUBCONTRACTOR, 
manufacturer, SUPPLIER or distributor, which illustrate how specific portions of 
the WORK shall be fabricated or installed. 

 
 1.20 SPECIFICATIONS - A part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS consisting of 

written descriptions of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction 
systems, standards and workmanship. 

 
 1.21 SUBCONTRACTOR - An individual, firm, or corporation having a direct contract 

with the CONTRACTOR or with any other SUBCONTRACTOR for the 
performance of a part of the WORK at the site.           

 
 1.22 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION – Substantial Completion shall be defined as 

when all portions of the Contract are completed in accordance with all requirements 
of the Contract Documents. 

 
 1.23 SPECIAL CONDITIONS – Information or conditions imposed as a part of the 

Contract Documents, or requirements that may be imposed by applicable state laws 
at the time of Project letting. 

 
 1.24 SUPPLIER - Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for 

the WORK, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform 
labor at the site. 

 
 1.25 WORK - All labor necessary to produce the construction required by the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be 
incorporated in the PROJECT. 

- 358 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 1.26 WRITTEN NOTICE - Any notice to any party of the Agreement relative to any part 

of this Agreement in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof 
completed, when posted by certified or registered mail to the said party at their last 
given address, or delivered in person to said party or their authorized representative 
on the WORK. 

 
 1.27    STANDARDS - The following words, symbols, letters, or abbreviations shall be 

deemed to have the following meaning and shall refer to the latest current revision 
of said standard or specification applicable in effect of the date of opening bids: 

 
 AASHTO -American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
 ACI   -American Concrete Institute 
 AIA    -American Insurance Association (formerly National Board of Fire  

Underwriters) 
 ANSI   -American National Standards Institute 
 ASME   -American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
 ASTM   -American Society for Testing and Materials 
 AWWA  -American Water Works Association 
 NEMA  -National Electrical Manufacturer’s Association 
 SBH   -State Board of Health 
 MDOT -Mississippi Department of Transportation 
 
2.0 ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS AND DETAIL DRAWINGS 
 
 2.1 The CONTRACTOR may be furnished additional instructions and detail drawings, 

by the ENGINEER, as necessary to carry out the WORK required by the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 2.2 The additional drawings and instructions thus supplied will become a part of the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The CONTRACTOR shall carry out the WORK in 
accordance with the additional detail drawings and instructions.    

 
 
3.0 SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS 
 
 3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the OWNER such schedule of quantities and 

costs, progress schedules, payrolls, reports, estimates, records and other data           
where applicable as are required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the 
WORK to be performed. 

  
 3.2 Prior to the first partial payment estimate the CONTRACTOR shall submit 

construction progress schedules showing the order in which the CONTRACTOR 
proposes to carry on the WORK, including dates at which the various parts of the 
WORK will be started, estimated date of completion of each part and, as applicable: 

 
 3.2.1 The dates at which special detail drawings will be required; and 
 

- 359 -

Item # 9.



 

 3.2.2 Respective dates for submission of SHOP DRAWINGS, the beginning of 
manufacture, the testing and the installation of materials, supplies and equipment. 

 
 3.3 The CONTRACTOR shall also submit a schedule of payments that the 

CONTRACTOR anticipates will be earned during the course of the WORK. 
 
 
4.0 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 4.1 The intent of the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS is that the CONTRACTOR 

shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and transportation necessary for 
the proper execution of the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and all incidental work necessary to complete the PROJECT in an 
acceptable manner, ready for use, occupancy or operation by the OWNER. 

 
 4.2 In case of conflict between the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS, the 

SPECIFICATIONS shall govern.  Figure dimensions on DRAWINGS shall govern 
over general DRAWINGS. 

 
 4.3 Any discrepancies found between the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS and 

site conditions or any inconsistencies or ambiguities in the DRAWINGS or 
SPECIFICATIONS shall be immediately reported to the ENGINEER, in writing, 
who shall promptly correct such inconsistencies or ambiguities in writing.  WORK 
done by the CONTRACTOR after discovery of such discrepancies, inconsistencies 
or ambiguities shall be done at the CONTRACTOR'S risk. 

 
 
5.0 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 
 5.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide SHOP DRAWINGS as may be necessary for the 

prosecution of the WORK as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The 
ENGINEER shall review all SHOP DRAWINGS.  The ENGINEER'S review of 
any SHOP DRAWINGS shall not release the CONTRACTOR from responsibility 
for deviations from the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  . 

 
 5.2 When submitted for the ENGINEER'S review, SHOP DRAWINGS shall bear the 

CONTRACTOR'S certification that he has reviewed, checked and approved the 
SHOP DRAWINGS and that they are in conformance with the requirements of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 5.3 Portions of the WORK requiring a SHOP DRAWING or sample submission shall 

not begin until the SHOP DRAWING or submission has been reviewed by the 
ENGINEER.  A copy of each SHOP DRAWING and each sample shall be kept in 
good order by the CONTRACTOR at the site and shall be available to the 
ENGINEER. 

 
 

- 360 -

Item # 9.



 

6.0 MATERIALS, SERVICES AND FACILITIES 
 
 6.1 It is understood that, except as otherwise specifically stated in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS, the CONTRACTOR shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, 
tools, equipment, water, light, power, transportation, supervision, temporary 
construction of any nature, and all other services and facilities of any nature 
whatsoever necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the WORK within the 
specified time. 

 
 6.2 Materials and equipment shall be so stored as to insure the preservation of their 

quality and fitness for the WORK.  Stored materials and equipment to be 
incorporated in the WORK shall be located so as to facilitate prompt inspection. 

 
 6.3 Manufactured articles, materials, and equipment shall be applied, installed, 

connected, erected, used, cleaned and conditioned as directed by the manufacturer. 
 
 6.4 Materials, supplies, and equipment shall be in accordance with samples submitted 

by the CONTRACTOR and approved by the ENGINEER. 
 
 6.5 Materials, supplies, or equipment to be incorporated into the WORK shall not be 

purchased by the CONTRACTOR or the SUBCONTRACTOR subject to a chattel 
mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an 
interest is retained by the seller. 

 
 
7.0 INSPECTION AND TESTING 
 
 7.1 All materials and equipment used in the construction of the PROJECT shall be 

subject to adequate inspection and testing in accordance with generally accepted 
standards, as required and defined in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 7.2  The OWNER shall provide all inspection and testing services not required by the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 7.3 The CONTRACTOR shall provide at the CONTRACTOR'S expense the testing and 

inspection services required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 7.4 If the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of 

any public authority having jurisdiction require any WORK to specifically be 
inspected, tested, or approved by someone other than the CONTRACTOR, the 
CONTRACTOR will give the ENGINEER timely notice of readiness.  The 
CONTRACTOR will then furnish the ENGINEER the required certificates of 
inspection, testing or approval. 

 
 7.5 Inspections, tests, or approvals by the ENGINEER or others shall not relieve the 

CONTRACTOR from the obligations to perform the WORK in accordance with the 
requirements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 

- 361 -

Item # 9.



 

 7.6 The ENGINEER and the ENGINEER'S representatives will at all times have access 
to the WORK.  In addition, authorized representatives and agents of any 
participating Federal or State or Local agency shall be permitted to inspect all work, 
materials, payrolls, records or personnel, invoices of materials, and other relevant 
data and records.  The CONTRACTOR will provide proper facilities for such 
access and observation of the WORK and also for any inspection or testing thereof. 

 
 7.7 If any WORK is covered prior to notification, or contrary to the instructions of the 

ENGINEER it must, if requested by the ENGINEER, be uncovered for the 
ENGINEER'S observation and replaced at the CONTRACTOR'S expense. 

 
 7.8 If the ENGINEER considers it necessary or advisable that covered WORK be 

inspected or tested by others, the CONTRACTOR, at the ENGINEER'S request, 
will uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or 
testing as the ENGINEER may require, that portion of the WORK in question, 
furnishing all necessary labor, materials, tools, and equipment.  If it is found that 
such WORK is defective, the CONTRACTOR will bear all the expenses of such 
uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory 
reconstruction, if, however, such WORK is not found to be defective, the 
CONTRACTOR will be allowed an increase in the CONTRACT PRICE or an 
extension of the CONTRACT TIME, or both, directly attributable to such 
uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction and an 
appropriate CHANGE ORDER shall be issued. 

 
 
8.0 SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

8.1 Whenever a material, article, or piece of equipment is identified on the 
DRAWINGS or SPECIFICATIONS by reference to brand name or catalog 
numbers, it shall be understood that this is referenced for the purpose of defining  

            the performance or other salient requirements and that other products of equal 
capacities, quality and function shall be considered.  The CONTRACTOR may 
recommend the substitution of a material, article, or piece of equipment of equal 
substance and function for those referred to in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by 
reference to brand name or catalog number, and if, in the opinion of the EN-
GINEER, such material, article, or piece of equipment is of equal substance and 
function to that specified, the ENGINEER may approve its substitution and use by 
the CONTRACTOR.  Any cost differential shall be deductible from the 
CONTRACT PRICE and the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall be appropriately 
modified by CHANGE ORDER.  The CONTRACTOR warrants that if substitutes 
are approved, no major changes in the function or general design of the PROJECT 
will result.  Incidental changes or extra component parts required to accommodate 
the substitute will be made by the CONTRACTOR without a change in the 
CONTRACT PRICE or CONTRACT TIME. 

 

- 362 -

Item # 9.



 

9.0 PATENTS 
 
 9.1 The CONTRACTOR shall pay all applicable royalties and license fees, and shall 

defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and save the 
OWNER harmless from loss on account thereof, except that the OWNER shall be 
responsible for any such loss when a particular process, design, or product of a 
particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified, however, if the 
CONTRACTOR has reason to believe that the design, process, or product specified 
is an infringement of a patent, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for such 
loss unless the CONTRACTOR promptly gives such information to the 
ENGINEER. 

 
10.0 SURVEYS, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS 
 
 10.1 From the information provided by the OWNER, unless otherwise specified in the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the CONTRACTOR shall develop and make all 
detail surveys needed for construction such as slope stakes, batter boards, stakes for 
pipe locations and other working points, lines, elevations and cut sheets. 

 
 10.2 The CONTRACTOR shall carefully preserve bench marks, reference points and 

stakes and, in case of willful or careless destruction, shall be charged with the 
resulting expense and shall be responsible for any mistake that may be caused by 
their unnecessary loss or disturbance. All points of reference (existing or set) shall 
be checked and verified by the Contractor prior to commencement of work. 

 
 10.3 Permits and licenses of a temporary nature necessary for the prosecution of the 

WORK shall be secured and paid for by the CONTRACTOR unless otherwise 
stated in the SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS.  Permits, licenses, and 
easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities shall 
be secured and paid for by the OWNER, unless otherwise specified.  The  

                       CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations bearing on the conduct of the WORK as drawn and specified.  If the 
CONTRACTOR observes that the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS are at variance 
therewith, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the ENGINEER in writing, 
and any necessary changes shall be adjusted as provided in the Section pertaining 
to, CHANGES IN THE WORK. 

 
 

- 363 -

Item # 9.



 

11.0 PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY, AND PERSONS 
 
 11.1 The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising 

all safety precautions and programs in connection with the WORK.  The 
CONTRACTOR will take all necessary precautions for the safety of, will provide 
the necessary precautions for the safety of, and will provide the necessary protection 
to prevent damage, injury or loss to all employees on the WORK  and other persons 
who may be affected thereby, all the WORK and all materials or equipment to be 
incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, and other property at the 
site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the 
course of construction. 

 
 11.2 The CONTRACTOR will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and orders of any public body having jurisdiction.  The CONTRACTOR 
will erect and maintain, as required by the conditions and progress of the WORK, 
all necessary safeguards for safety and protection.  The CONTRACTOR will notify 
owners of adjacent utilities when prosecution of the WORK may affect them.  The 
CONTRACTOR will remedy all damage, injury or loss to any property caused, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or part, by the CONTRACTOR, any 
SUBCONTRACTOR or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or 
anyone of whose acts any of them be liable, except damage or loss attributable to 
the fault of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS or to the acts or omissions of the 
OWNER, of the ENGINEER or anyone employed by either of them or anyone for 
whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, 
in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
 
 11.3 In emergencies affecting the safety of persons or the WORK or property at the site 

or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instructions or 
authorization from the ENGINEER or OWNER, shall act to prevent threatened 
damage, injury or loss.  The CONTRACTOR will give the ENGINEER prompt 
WRITTEN NOTICE of any significant changes in the WORK or deviations from 
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS caused thereby, and a CHANGE ORDER shall 
thereupon be issued covering the changes and deviations involved. 

 
 
12.0 SUPERVISION BY CONTRACTOR 
 
 12.1 The CONTRACTOR will supervise and direct the WORK.  He will be solely 

responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of 
construction.  The CONTRACTOR will employ and maintain on the WORK a 
qualified supervisor or superintendent who shall have been designated in writing by 
the CONTRACTOR as the CONTRACTOR'S representative at the site.  The 
supervisor shall have full authority to act on behalf of the CONTRACTOR and all 
communications given to the supervisor shall be as binding as if given to the 
CONTRACTOR.  The supervisor shall be present on the site at all times as required 
to perform adequate supervision and coordination of the WORK. 

- 364 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 13.0 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 
 13.1 The OWNER may at any time, as the need arises, order changes within the scope of 

the WORK without invalidating the Agreement.  If such changes increase or 
decrease the amount due under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,  or in the time 
required for performance of the WORK, an equitable adjustment shall be authorized 
by CHANGE ORDER. 

 
 13.2 The ENGINEER, also, may at any time, by issuing a FIELD ORDER, make 

changes in the details of the WORK.  The CONTRACTOR shall proceed with the 
performance of any changes in the WORK so ordered by the ENGINEER unless the 
CONTRACTOR believes that such FIELD ORDER entitles the CONTRACTOR to 
a change in CONTRACT TIME or PRICE, or both, in which event the 
CONTRACTOR shall give the ENGINEER WRITTEN NOTICE thereof within 
seven (7) days after receipt of the ordered change.  Thereafter the CONTRACTOR 
shall document the basis for the change in CONTRACT PRICE or TIME within 
thirty (30) days.  The CONTRACTOR shall not execute such changes pending the 
receipt of an executed CHANGE ORDER or further instruction from the OWNER. 

 
  
 
14.0 CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE 
 
 14.1 The CONTRACT PRICE may be changed only by a CHANGE ORDER.  The value 

of any WORK covered by a CHANGE ORDER or of any claim for increase or 
decrease in the CONTRACT PRICE shall be determined by one or more of the 
following methods in the order of precedence listed below: 

 
   a. Unit prices previously approved. 
   b. An agreed lump sum. 

  
 14.2 The quantities of Unit Pay Items listed in the Proposal forms are to be considered 

approximate only. The Engineer reserves the right to make such alterations in the                 
                 Plans or in the extent of the work as he may consider desirable or necessary during 

the progress of the work to satisfactorily complete the proposed construction. 
 
 14.3 The Owner may, under this reservation, increase or decrease any or all of the 

quantities of Pay Items as set forth in the Proposal, or delete certain items of work 
from the Contract.  Increased or decreased quantities of items will be paid for at the 
unit bid price. 

 
 14.4 It is understood that variations in quantities, within the above limitations, shall not 

be considered as a waiver of any conditions of the Contract, nor invalidate the 
Contractor’s Proposal and the Contractor shall perform the work as increased or 
decreased from the Unit Contract Prices as bid. 

 
 

- 365 -

Item # 9.



 

15.0 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
 15.1 The date of beginning and the time for completion of the WORK are essential 

conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and the WORK embraced shall be 
commenced on a date specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED. 

 
 15.2 The CONTRACTOR will proceed with the WORK at such rate of progress to 

insure full completion within the CONTRACT TIME.  It is expressly understood 
and agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, that the 
CONTRACT TIME for the completion of the WORK described herein is a 
reasonable time, taking into consideration the average climatic and economic 
conditions and other factors prevailing in the locality of the WORK. 

 
During the process of determining the workforce effort necessary for completion of 
the work within the Contract Time, the Contractor shall consider the Normal 
Adverse Weather Days for the type of work and the seasonal period of the work 
being performed. The number of normal adverse weather days to be included in 
these considerations shall be as follows: 
Jan. – 21 Feb. – 17 March – 12 April – 9 May – 9 June – 9 
July – 9 Aug. – 8 Sept. – 7 Oct. – 5 Nov. – 11 Dec. – 
17 
 
Normal adverse weather days as shown above are defined by the National Weather 
Service as being those with temperatures of 32 degrees or less, or precipitation of 
0.1 inches or more, based on a 6 day work week. If the Contractor fails to complete 
the Work within the Contract Time, the Adverse Weather Days in excess of those 
shown above for each month, may be considered for an extension of the Contract 
Time. 

 
 15.3 If the CONTRACTOR shall fail to complete the WORK within the CONTRACT 

TIME, or extension of time granted by the OWNER, the Contractor does hereby 
agree, as a part consideration for the awarding of this contract, to pay to the Owner 
the amount specified in the contract, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for 
such breach of contract as hereinafter set forth, for each working day that the 
CONTRACTOR shall be in default after the time stipulated in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS for completing the work. The said amount is fixed and agreed upon 
by and between the Contractor and the Owner because of the impracticability and 
extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the Owner would in 
such event sustain, and said amount is agreed to be the amount of damages which 
the Owner would in sustain and said amount shall be retained by the Owner from 
current periodical estimates. 

 

- 366 -

Item # 9.



 

For the purpose of determining the number of working days considered for 
liquidated damages, a working day shall be defined as a day in which the weather 
and soil conditions permit the Contractor to proceed with work operations on the 
controlling item or items of work in progress at that time, for a period of not less 
than six (6) hours. The number of working days shall be based on a five-day 
workweek exclusive of state recognized legal holidays, or days on which delays are 
attributed to the Owner, governmental authorities, catastrophic events, or time 
periods awaiting the vegetative growth and coverage of plant growth, or the curing 
of asphalt or concrete.  

 
 15.4 The CONTRACTOR shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess 

cost when the delay in completion of the WORK is due to the following and the 
CONTRACTOR has promptly given WRITTEN NOTICE of such delay to the 
OWNER or ENGINEER. 

 
15.4.1 To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the OWNER. 

 
15.4.2 To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or 
negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including but not restricted to, acts of God, or of 
the public enemy, acts of the OWNER, acts of another CONTRACTOR in the 
performance of a contract with the OWNER, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and abnormal and unforeseeable weather. 

 
15.4.3 To any delays of SUBCONTRACTORS occasioned by any of the causes 
specified in paragraphs 15.4.1 and 15.4.2 of this article. 

 
15.4.4 Interim completion dates may be required by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS to support owner occupancy or subsequent construction by other 
contractors.  If interim completion dates are specified, the contractor shall complete 
the work required for that activity as indicated in the CONTRACT 
SPECIFICATIONS and shown in the CONTRACT DRAWINGS within the 
specified time.  All contract provisions relating to time for completion and 
liquidated damages shall apply to interim completion dates. 

 
16.0 CORRECTION OF WORK 
 
 16.1 The CONTRACTOR shall promptly remove from the premises all WORK rejected 

by the ENGINEER for failure to comply with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, 
whether incorporated in the construction or not, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
promptly replace and re-execute the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and without expense to the OWNER and shall bear the expense of 
making good all WORK of other CONTRACTORS destroyed or damaged by such 
removal or replacement. 

   
 16.2 All removal and replacement WORK shall be done at the CONTRACTOR'S 

expense.  If the CONTRACTOR does not take action to remove such rejected 
WORK within ten (10) days after receipt of WRITTEN NOTICE, the OWNER may 
remove such WORK and store the materials at the expense of the CONTRACTOR. 

- 367 -

Item # 9.



 

 
17.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 
 
 17.1 It is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to become familiar with the project 

site, the construction process, and the nature of the physical ground as to the extent 
necessary for the completion of the WORK as specified in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, prior to bidding the project. If during construction, conditions are 
encountered that differ from those normally encountered during projects of similar 
nature or location, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, and before such conditions 
are disturbed, except in the event of an emergency, notify the OWNER by 
WRITTEN NOTICE of unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual 
nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally 
recognized as inherent in WORK of the character provided for in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

 
 17.2 The OWNER shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it is found that such 

conditions do so materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost of,  
                        or in the time required for, performance of the WORK, an equitable adjustment 

shall be made and the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall be modified by a 
CHANGE ORDER.  Any claim of the CONTRACTOR for adjustment hereunder 
shall not be allowed unless the required WRITTEN NOTICE has been given; 
provided that the OWNER may, if the OWNER determines the facts so justify, 
consider and adjust any such claims asserted before the date of final payment.  

 
 17.3 The existence of, and location of some of the known utilities and obstructions are 

indicated on the plans but are not guaranteed. The Contractor shall make sufficient 
investigation and inspections, at the site of the work, to enable him to determine the 
existence of and exact nature and location of all such drainage structures, 
underground and overhead obstructions, fences, and public and private utilities that 
will be disturbed in the prosecution of the work.  The Contractor shall repair or 
replace such utilities and improvements, which are damaged by his operations so as 
to function properly, at his own expense and in a manner and condition equal to that 
of such utilities and improvements prior to damage. Fences which must be crossed 
shall be repaired to an “as was” condition. 

 
18.0 SUSPENSION OF WORK, TERMINATION, AND DELAY  
 
 18.1 The OWNER may suspend the WORK or any portion thereof for a period of not 

more than ninety days or such further time as agreed upon by the CONTRACTOR, 
by WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR and the ENGINEER, which shall 
fix the date on which WORK shall be resumed.  The CONTRACTOR will be 
allowed an increase in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT 
TIME, or both, directly attributable to any suspension.  

 

- 368 -

Item # 9.



 

 18.2 If the CONTRACTOR is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or makes a general 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a trustee or receiver is appointed for 
the CONTRACTOR or for any of its property, or if CONTRACTOR files a petition 
to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or 
applicable laws, or repeatedly fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable 
materials or equipment, or repeatedly fails to make prompt payments to 
SUBCONTRACTORS or for labor, materials or equipment or disregards laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having jurisdiction of the 
WORK or disregards the authority of the ENGINEER, or otherwise violates any 
provision of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, then the OWNER may, without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving the CONTRACTOR and its 
surety a minimum of ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE, 
terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR and take possession of the PROJECT 
and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery 
thereon owned by the CONTRACTOR, or secure the services of another Contractor 
and finish the WORK by whatever method the OWNER may deem expedient. In 
such case the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment 
until the WORK is finished. If the unpaid balance of the CONTRACT PRICE 
exceeds the direct and indirect costs of completing the PROJECT, including 
compensation for additional professional services, such excess SHALL BE PAID 
TO THE CONTRACTOR. If such costs exceed such unpaid balance, the 
CONTRACTOR will pay the difference to the OWNER.  Such costs incurred by the 
OWNER will be determined by the ENGINEER and incorporated in a CHANGE 
ORDER. 

 
 18.3 Where the CONTRACTOR'S services have been so terminated by the OWNER, 

said termination shall not affect any right of the OWNER against the 
CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or 
payment of monies by the OWNER due the CONTRACTOR will not release the 
CONTRACTOR from compliance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 18.4 After ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR 

and the ENGINEER, the OWNER may, without cause and without prejudice to any 
other right or remedy, elect to abandon the PROJECT and terminate the 
CONTRACT.  In such case the CONTRACTOR shall be paid per contract unit 
price for all WORK completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

  

- 369 -

Item # 9.



 

 18.5 If, through no act or fault of the CONTRACTOR, the WORK is suspended for a 
period of more than ninety (90) days by the OWNER or under an order of court or 
other public authority, or the ENGINEER fails to act on any request for payment 
within thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the OWNER fails to pay the 
CONTRACTOR substantially the sum approved by the ENGINEER or awarded by 
arbitrators within thirty (30) days of its approval and presentation, then the 
CONTRACTOR may, after ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to 
the OWNER and the ENGINEER terminate the CONTRACT and recover from the 
OWNER payment for all WORK executed and all expenses sustained. In addition 
and in lieu of terminating the CONTRACT, if the ENGINEER has failed to make 
any payment as aforesaid, the CONTRACTOR may upon ten (10) days written 
notice to the OWNER and the ENGINEER stop the WORK until paid all amounts 
then due, in which event and upon resumption of the WORK CHANGE ORDERS 
shall be issued for adjusting the CONTRACT PRICE or extending the CONTRACT 
TIME or both to compensate for the costs and delays attributable to the stoppage of 
the WORK. 

 
 18.6 If the performance of all or any portion of the WORK is suspended, delayed, or 

interrupted as a result of a failure of the OWNER or ENGINEER to act within the 
time specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, or if no time is specified, within 
a reasonable time, an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the 
CONTRACT TIME, or both, shall be made by CHANGE ORDER to compensate 
the CONTRACTOR for the costs and delays necessarily caused by the failure of the 
OWNER or ENGINEER. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 370 -

Item # 9.



 

19.0 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
  

19.1 At least ten (10) days before each progress payment falls due (but not more often 
than once a month), the CONTRACTOR will submit to the ENGINEER a partial 
payment estimate filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering the WORK 
performed during the period covered by the partial payment estimate and supported 
by such data as the ENGINEER may reasonably require. The submitted progress 
payment shall be accompanied by a monthly certification to the Engineer indicating 
payments to subcontractors. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and 
equipment not incorporated in the WORK but delivered and suitably stored at or 
near the site, the partial payment estimate shall also be accompanied by such 
supporting data, satisfactory to the OWNER, as will establish the OWNER'S title to 
the material and equipment and protect the OWNER'S interest therein, including 
applicable insurance.  The ENGINEER will, within ten (10) days after receipt of 
each partial payment estimate, either indicate in writing approval of payment, and 
present the partial payment estimate to the OWNER, or return the partial payment 
estimate to the CONTRACTOR indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to 
approve payment.  In the latter case, the CONTRACTOR may make the necessary 
corrections and resubmit the partial payment estimate.  The OWNER will, within 
thirty (30) days of presentation of an approved partial payment estimate, pay the 
CONTRACTOR a progress payment on the basis of approved partial payment 
estimate less retainage.  The retainage shall be an amount equal to five percent (5%) 
until the work is at least fifty percent (50%) complete, on schedule, and satisfactory 
in the Engineer’s opinion, at which time fifty percent (50%) of the retainage held to 
date shall be returned to the Prime Contractor for distribution to the appropriate 
subcontractors and suppliers. Future retainage shall be withheld at the rate of two 
and one-half percent (2-1/2%). Upon substantial completion of the work, any 
amount retained may be paid to the CONTRACTOR. When the WORK has been 
substantially completed except for WORK which cannot be completed because of 
weather conditions, lack of materials or other reasons which in the judgment of the 
OWNER are valid reasons for non-completion, the OWNER may make additional 
payments, retaining at all times an amount sufficient to cover the estimated cost of 
the WORK still to be completed. 

 
 19.2 Prior to SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, the OWNER, with the approval of the 

ENGINEER and with the concurrence of the CONTRACTOR, may use any 
completed or partially completed portions of the WORK.  Such use shall not 
constitute an acceptance of such portions of the WORK. 

 
 19.3 The OWNER shall have the right to enter the premises for the purpose of doing 

work not covered by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  This provision shall not be 
construed as relieving the CONTRACTOR of the sole responsibility for the care 
and protection of the WORK, or the restoration of any damaged WORK except such 
as may be caused by agents or employees of the OWNER. 

- 371 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 19.4 Upon completion and acceptance of the WORK, the ENGINEER shall issue a 

certificate attached to the approved final payment request that the WORK has been 
accepted under the conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The entire 
balance found to be due the CONTRACTOR, including the retainage percentages, 
but except such sums as may be lawfully retained by the OWNER, shall be paid to 
the CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days of completion and acceptance of the 
WORK. In no event shall said final payment due the Contractor be made until the 
Engineer is provided with the following: 1) Written certification from the 
Contractor that all suppliers and subcontractors have been paid. 2) Written consent 
of Final Payment from the Contractor’s Surety. 

 
 19.5 The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and save the OWNER or the OWNER'S 

agents harmless from all claims growing out of the lawful demand of 
SUBCONTRACTORS, laborers, workmen, mechanics, material, men, and 
furnishers of machinery and part thereof, equipment, tools, and all supplies, 
incurred in the furtherance of the performance of the WORK.  The CONTRACTOR 
shall furnish satisfactory evidence that all obligations of the nature designated above 
have been paid, discharged, or waived.  If the CONTRACTOR fails to do so the 
OWNER may, after having notified the CONTRACTOR, either pay unpaid bills or 
withhold from the CONTRACTOR'S unpaid compensation a sum of money deemed 
reasonably sufficient to pay any and all such lawful claims until satisfactory 
evidence is furnished that all liabilities have been fully discharged whereupon 
payment to the CONTRACTOR shall be resumed in accordance with the terms of 
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, but in no event shall the provisions of this 
sentence be construed to impose any obligations upon the OWNER to either the 
CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S Surety, or any third party.  In paying any 
unpaid bills of the CONTRACTOR, any payment so made by the OWNER shall be 
considered as a payment made under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by the 
OWNER to the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER shall not be liable to the 
CONTRACTOR for any such payments made in good faith. 

  
20.0 ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT AS RELEASE 
 
 20.1 The acceptance by the CONTRACTOR of final payment shall be and shall operate 

as a release to the OWNER of all claims and all liability to the CONTRACTOR 
other than claims in stated amounts as may be specifically excepted by the 
CONTRACTOR for all things done or furnished in connection with this WORK and 
for every act and neglect of the OWNER and others relating to or arising out of this 
WORK.  Any payment, however, final otherwise, shall not release the 
CONTRACTOR or its sureties from any obligations under the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS or the Performance and Payment BONDS. 

 
 
 
 

- 372 -

Item # 9.



 

21.0 INSURANCE 
 
 21.1 The CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect it 

from claims set forth below which may arise out of, or result from, the 
CONTRACTOR'S execution of the WORK, whether such execution be by the 
CONTRACTOR, any SUBCONTRACTOR, or by anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable: 

 
 21.1.1 Claims under workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other similar 

employee benefit acts;  
 
 21.1.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or 

death of employees; 
 
 21.1.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any 

person other than employees; 
 
 21.1.4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are 

sustained (1) by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to 
the employment of such person by the CONTRACTOR, or (2) by any other person; 
and 

 
 21.1.5 Claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, 

including loss of use resulting there from. 
 
 21.2 Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the OWNER shall be filed with the OWNER 

prior to commencement of the WORK.  These Certificates shall contain a provision 
that coverages afforded under the policies will not be canceled unless at least fifteen 
(15) days prior WRITTEN NOTICE has been given to the OWNER. 

 
 21.3 The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at the CONTRACTOR'S own 

expense, during the CONTRACT TIME, Liability insurance as hereinafter 
specified: 

 
 21.3.1 CONTRACTOR'S General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance 

including vehicle coverage issued to the CONTRACTOR and protecting the 
CONTRACTOR from all claims for personal injury, including death, and all claims 
for destruction of or damage to property, arising out of or in connection with any 
operations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, whether such operations be by 
the CONTRACTOR or by any SUBCONTRACTOR employed by the 
CONTRACTOR or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR 
or by a SUBCONTRACTOR employed by the CONTRACTOR.  Insurance shall be 
written with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 for all damages arising 
out of bodily injury, including death, at any time resulting there from, sustained by 
any one person in any one accident; and a limit of liability  

- 373 -

Item # 9.



 

                       of not less than $1,000,000 aggregate for any such damages sustained by two or 
more persons in any one accident.  Insurance shall be written with a limit of liability 
of not less than $500,000 for all property damage sustained by any one person in 
any one accident; and a limit of liability of not less than $500,000 aggregate for any 
such damage sustained by two or more persons in any one accident. 

 
 21.3.2 The CONTRACTOR shall acquire and maintain, if applicable, Fire, Flood and 

Extended Coverage insurance value thereof for the benefit of the OWNER, the 
CONTRACTOR, and SUBCONTRACTORS as their interest may appear.  This 
provision shall in no way release the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S surety 
from obligations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS to fully complete the 
PROJECT. 

 
 21.4 The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at the CONTRACTOR'S own 

expense, during the CONTRACT TIME, in accordance with the provisions of the 
laws of the state in which the WORK is performed, Workmen's Compensation 
Insurance, including occupational disease provisions, for all of the 
CONTRACTOR'S employees at the site of the PROJECT and in case any WORK is 
sublet, the CONTRACTOR shall require such SUBCONTRACTOR similarly to 
provide Workmen's Compensation Insurance, including occupational disease 
provisions for all of the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the 
protection afforded by the CONTRACTOR.  In case any class of employees 
engaged in hazardous work under this contract at the site of the PROJECT is not 
protected under Workmen's Compensation statue, the CONTRACTOR shall 
provide, and shall cause each SUBCONTRACTOR to provide, adequate and 
suitable insurance for the protection of its employees not otherwise protected. 

 
 21.5 The CONTRACTOR shall secure, if applicable, "All Risk" type Builder's Risk 

Insurance for WORK to be performed.  Unless specifically authorized by the 
OWNER, the amount of such insurance shall not be less than the CONTRACT 
PRICE totaled in the BID.  The policy shall cover not less than the losses due to 
fire, explosion, hail, lightning, vandalism, malicious mischief, wind, collapse, riot, 
aircraft, flood, and smoke during the CONTRACT TIME, and until the WORK is 
accepted by the OWNER.  The policy shall name as the insured the 
CONTRACTOR, and the OWNER. 

 
22.0 CONTRACT SECURITY 
 
 22.1 The CONTRACTOR shall within ten (10) days after the receipt of the NOTICE OF 

AWARD furnish the OWNER with the Performance BOND and a Payment BOND 
in penal sums equal to the amount of the CONTRACT PRICE, conditioned upon 
the performance by the CONTRACTOR of all undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions and agreements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, and upon the 
prompt payment by the CONTRACTOR to all persons supplying labor and 
materials in the prosecution of the WORK provided by the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS.   

- 374 -

Item # 9.



 

Such BONDS shall be executed by the CONTRACTOR and a corporate bonding 
company licensed to transact such business in the state in which the WORK is to be 
performed and named on the current list of "Surety Companies Acceptable on 
Federal Bonds” as published in the Treasury Department Circular Number 570.  
The expense of these BONDS shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.  If at any time 
a surety on any such BOND is declared a bankrupt or loses its right to do business 
in the state in which the WORK is to be performed or is removed from the list of 
Surety Companies accepted on Federal Bonds, CONTRACTOR shall within ten 
(10) days after notice from the OWNER to do so, substitute an acceptable BOND 
(or BONDS) in such form and sum and signed by such other surety or sureties as 
may be satisfactory to the OWNER.  The premiums on such BOND shall be paid by 
the CONTRACTOR.  No further payment shall be deemed due nor shall be made 
until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished an acceptable BOND to the 
OWNER. 

 
23.0 ASSIGNMENTS 
 
 23.1 Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the OWNER shall sell, transfer, assign, or 

otherwise dispose of the Contract or any portion thereof, or of any right, title or 
interest therein, or any obligation there under, without written consent of the other 
party. 

 
24.0 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 24.1 The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER and the 

ENGINEER and their agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, 
losses and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the WORK, provided that any such claims, damage, loss or expense 
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom; and is 
caused in whole or in part by any negligent or willful act or omission of the 
CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR, anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. 

 
 24.2 In any and all claims against the OWNER or the ENGINEER, or any of their agents 

or employees, by any employee of the CONTRACTOR, any SUBCONTRACTOR, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type or damages, compensation or benefits 
payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or any SUBCONTRACTOR under 
Workmen's Compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefits 
acts. 

 
 24.3 The obligation of the CONTRACTOR under this paragraph shall not extend to the 

liability of the ENGINEER, its agents or employees arising out of the preparation of 
approval of maps, DRAWINGS, opinions, reports, surveys, CHANGE ORDERS, 
designs, or SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

- 375 -

Item # 9.



 

25.0 SEPARATE CONTRACT 
 
 25.1 The OWNER reserves the right to let other contracts in connection with this 

PROJECT.  The CONTRACTOR shall afford other CONTRACTORS reasonable 
opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and the execution of 
their WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate the WORK with theirs.  If 
the proper execution or results of any part of the CONTRACTOR'S WORK 
depends upon the WORK of any other CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR shall 
inspect and promptly report to the ENGINEER any defects in such WORK that 
render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. 

 
 25.2 The OWNER may perform additional WORK related to the PROJECT or the 

OWNER may let other contracts containing provisions similar to these.  The 
CONTRACTOR will afford the other CONTRACTORS who are parties to such 
Contracts (or the OWNER, if the OWNER is performing the additional WORK) 
reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment 
and the execution of WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate the WORK 
with theirs. 

 
 25.3 If the performance of additional WORK by other CONTRACTORS or the OWNER 

is not noted in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS prior to the execution of the 
CONTRACT, WRITTEN NOTICE thereof shall be given to the CONTRACTOR 
prior to starting any additional WORK.  If the CONTRACTOR believes that the 
performance of such additional WORK by the OWNER or others involves it in 
additional expense or entitles it to an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, the 
CONTRACTOR may make a claim thereof as provided in Sections 14 and 15. 

 
26.0 SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 26.1 The CONTRACTOR may utilize the services of specialty SUBCONTRACTS on 

those parts of the WORK which, under normal contracting practices, are performed 
by specialty SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 
 26.2 The CONTRACTOR shall not award WORK to SUBCONTRACTOR(S), in excess 

of fifty (50%) percent of the CONTRACT PRICE, without prior written approval of 
the OWNER. 

 
 26.3 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to the OWNER for the acts and 

omissions of its SUBCONTRACTORS, and of persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them, as the CONTRACTOR is for the acts and omissions of persons 
directly employed by it. 

  

- 376 -

Item # 9.



 

 26.4 The CONTRACTOR shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all 
subcontracts relative to the WORK to bind SUBCONTRACTORS to the 
CONTRACTOR by the terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS insofar as 
applicable to the WORK of SUBCONTRACTORS and give the CONTRACTOR 
the same power as regards terminating any subcontract that the OWNER may 
exercise over the CONTRACTOR under any provision of the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

 
 26.5 Nothing contained in this CONTRACT shall create any contractual relationship 

between any SUBCONTRACTOR and the OWNER. 
 
27.0 ENGINEER'S AUTHORITY 
 
 27.1 The ENGINEER shall act as the OWNER'S representative during the construction 

period, shall decide questions which may arise as to quality and acceptability of 
materials furnished and WORK performed, and shall interpret the intent of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS in a fair and unbiased manner.  The ENGINEER will 
make periodic visits to the site to determine if the WORK is proceeding in general 
accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 27.2 The CONTRACTOR will be held strictly to the intent of the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS in regard to the quality of materials, workmanship, and execution of 
the WORK.  Inspections may be at the factory or fabrication plant of the source of 
material supply. 

 
 27.3 The ENGINEER will not be responsible for the construction means, controls, 

techniques, sequences, procedures, or construction safety. 
 
 27.4 The ENGINEER shall promptly make decisions relative to interpretation of the 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
28.0 LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
 
 28.1 Prior to issuance of NOTICE TO PROCEED, the OWNER shall obtain all land and 

rights-of-way necessary for carrying out and for the completion of the WORK to be 
performed pursuant to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, unless otherwise mutually 
agreed. 

 
 28.2 The OWNER shall provide to the CONTRACTOR information, which delineates 

and describes the lands owned and rights-of-way acquired. 
 
 28.3 The CONTRACTOR shall provide at its own expense and without liability to the 

OWNER any additional land and access thereto that the CONTRACTOR may 
desire for temporary construction facilities, or for storage of materials. 

 

- 377 -

Item # 9.



 

29.0 GUARANTEE 
 
 29.1 The CONTRACTOR shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and 

WORK performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL 
COMPLETION.  The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees for a period of one 
(1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION of the system that the 
completed system is free from all defects due to faulty materials or workmanship 
and the CONTRACTOR shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary 
by reason of such defects including the repairs of the damage of other parts of the 
system resulting from such defects.  The OWNER will give notice of observed 
defects with reasonable promptness.  In the event that the CONTRACTOR should 
fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other WORK that may be made necessary 
by such defects, the OWNER may do so and charge the CONTRACTOR the cost 
thereby incurred.  The Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect 
through the guarantee period. 

 
 
30.0 TAXES  
 
 31.1 The CONTRACTOR will pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes 

required by the laws of the place where the WORK is performed. 
 
31.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The CONTRACTOR, when constructing a project involving trenching and/or other related earth 
excavation, shall comply with the following environmental constraints. 
 
 32.1 WETLANDS - The CONTRACTOR, when disposing of excess, spoil, or other 

construction materials on public or private property, WILL NOT FILL IN or 
otherwise CONVERT WETLANDS.  

 
 32.2 HISTORIC PRESERVATION - Any excavation by the CONTRACTOR that 

uncovers an historical or archaeological artifact shall be immediately reported to the 
PROJECT ENGINEER. Construction shall be temporarily halted pending the 
notification process and further directions issued after consultation with the State 
Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO). 

 
 32.3 ENDANGERED SPECIES - The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the 

Endangered Species Act, which provides for the protection of endangered and/or 
threatened species and critical habitat.  Should any evidence of the presence of 
endangered and/or threatened species or their critical habitat be brought to the 
attention of the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR will immediately report this 
evidence to the PROJECT ENGINEER. Construction shall be temporarily halted 
pending the notification process and further directions issued after consultation with 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 

- 378 -

Item # 9.



 

32.0 RECORD DRAWINGS 
 
 33.1   The Contractor shall make a record of all changes in the contract drawings  and 

specifications and shall change the contract drawings and specs to reflect all changes 
made. The Engineers will furnish a set of reproducible drawings to the Contractor 
on which changes shall be made. Additional sheets shall be drawn on mylar film as 
required. Record drawings and specifications shall be completed and furnished to 
the Engineers prior to the submission of the request for final payment. Keep records 
current and do not cover or conceal any work until the required information has 
been recorded. 

 
 The following items shall be recorded on the record drawings: 

 
1.Depths of various elements in relation to datum. 
2.Horizontal and vertical location of underground utilities and appurtenances 

referenced to permanent surface improvements. 
3.Location of internal appurtenances concealed in construction referenced to visible 

and accessible features of the work. 
4.Field changes of dimension and detail. 
5.Changes made by Change Order. 
6.Details not on original Contract Drawings. 
7.Locations of plugged openings for future connections. 

 
Specifications and Addenda shall be legibly marked up to record: 

 
1.Manufacture, trade name, catalog number and supplier of each product and item of 

equipment actually installed. 
2.Changes made by Change Order. 
3.Other matters not originally specified. 

 
33.2   Shop Drawings shall be maintained as record documents and legibly annotate 

drawings to record changes made after review. 
 
33.0 CLAIMS FOR DELAY 
 

34.1   No claim for delay damages will be allowed the Contractor resulting from change 
orders executed by him. 

 
34.0     FUEL, ENERGY, AND WATER 
 

35.1   The Contractor shall furnish all fuels, electric power and other energies, water and 
other consumables used in the prosecution of the work including testing and trial 
operations until in the opinion of Engineers, the work or part thereof, is substantially 
complete and in use by the Owner, at which time the Owner will begin paying 
power bills for that part. Arrangements shall be made in advance of need with 
utilities involved. 

 

- 379 -

Item # 9.



 

35.0     STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

36.1   The Contractor, at his own expense, shall be required to maintain the streets and 
thoroughfares disturbed, in a passable condition, providing means of ingress and 
egress to persons residing and conducting business thereon where possible. 

 
36.2   The Contractor shall provide additional earth backfill or adding surfacing materials 

for excavation and/or trenches in streets or thoroughfares, if and when the shrinkage 
sets in and shall shape and re-shape and grade and re-grade as in the opinion of the 
Engineers is necessary to maintain all thoroughfares disturbed in good condition 
from the time of initial excavation to the date of final acceptance. All streets and 
alleys shall be left in a good and satisfactory condition. In general, the Contractor 
shall not be required to construct or maintain detours, or to maintain streets 
disturbed beyond the date of final acceptance of the other work. 
 

36.3   The Contractor shall provide facilities on a 24 hours, 7 day basis for pulling vehicles 
bogged down due to his operations. 
 

36.4   The Contractor shall at locations where streets and public thoroughfares have been 
disturbed by excavations, or his equipment or operations, at all times while the work 
is in progress, take precautions for the protection of the public by placing and 
maintaining adequate flagmen, barricades, red flags and/or lights. 

 
 
36.0     CLEANING UP 
 

37.1   As each portion of the work is completed, the Contractor shall clean up and remove from the 
site all rubbish and old and unused materials and fill all holes and cavities made for his 
convenience, and shall leave the site in a neat, presentable and usable condition, restored to 
original or better condition. 

 
37.2   Cleaning up is considered to be an integral, important and necessary function of each item of 

work. Where work on unit price items are substantially complete but lack clean-up and/or 
corrections ordered by the Engineer, amounts shall be deducted from unit prices in partial 
payment estimates to amply cover such clean-up and corrections. 

 
When the above grounds are removed, payment shall be made for amounts withheld because 
of them. 

- 380 -

Item # 9.



 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. Safety – The Contractor shall bear the full responsibility for Safety on the project site for the duration 

of the project. 
 
2. Maintenance of Traffic - The Contractor is solely responsible for all safety devices necessary for 

insuring the safety of traffic through the construction zone and for compliance with the MUTCD part 
VI. The traffic control plan, if made a part of the contract documents, is considered a minimum amount 
of traffic control required, and does not relieve the Contractor from providing additional components 
conforming to the MUTCD as necessary for the safe travel of traffic through the construction zone. A 
competent, trained, and experienced Traffic Safety Officer capable of reviewing and maintaining 
construction zone safety shall be designated by the Contractor prior to the commencement of the 
project.  

 
3. Construction Surveying – Construction staking for the project will be the responsibility of the 

Contractor from bench marks, control points, or reference lines provided by the owner. The 
CONTRACTOR shall carefully preserve such bench marks, reference points and stakes and, in case of 
willful or careless destruction, shall be charged with the resulting expense and shall be responsible for 
any mistake that may be caused by their unnecessary loss or disturbance. All points of reference 
(existing or set) shall be checked and verified by the Contractor prior to commencement of work. 

  
4. Construction Testing - The CONTRACTOR shall retain the services of a qualified testing laboratory to 

make tests and determine acceptability of materials for use in embankments, base construction, 
concrete structures, and pavements. The testing laboratory retained by the Contractor will also be 
responsible for providing field quality control as specified in the Standard Specifications. The Engineer 
on behalf of the Owner will provide quality assurance testing as necessary to verify the accuracy of the 
quality control testing.   

 
5. There will be no fuel adjustments for this project. 
 
6. The Contractor shall supply and maintain rest room facilities (Port-A-Johns) at appropriate locations in 

the vicinity of the work area(s). Periodic moving of these facilities will be required as the work area 
progresses along the project.  

 
7. Any utility mains or service lines damaged by the Contractors operations shall be repaired or replaced 

by the Contractor immediately. Prior to commencement of work in the vicinity of utility mains or 
service lines, the Contractor shall have appropriate resources available to make needed repairs without 
undue length of service outage to local property owners and businesses. The location of all valves 
necessary for isolation of the area under construction shall be determined prior to commencement of 
work. 

 
8. Any sprinkler systems in the way of construction shall be removed, relocated, or replaced as necessary 

to function as before. Any sprinkler system damaged during construction shall be repaired or replaced 
as necessary to function as before. There shall be no separate payment for this work. 

 

- 381 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
To:       
      
      
 
Project:  MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you dated    , for the above-described 
work in response to its Advertisement for Bids and Information for Bidders. 
 
You are hereby notified that your BID has been accepted for items in the amount of 
$   . 
 
You are required to execute the Agreement and furnish the required Contractor’s Performance Bond and 
Payment Bond within (15) calendar days from the date of this Notice to you. 
 
If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said bonds within (15) days from the date of this notice, 
said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER’s acceptance of your 
BID as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Bid Bond.  The OWNER will be entitled to such rights as may 
be granted by law. 
 
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER. 
Dated this _________________ day of ________, 20___. 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
Owner  __________________________ 
 By:   
 
 Title:   
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by ______________________ this the 
____________ day of ___________, 20___. 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ________________________________ 

- 382 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
To:           Date:      

     
      
 
Project: MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
You are hereby notified to commence work in accordance with the Agreement dated    , 
on or before   , 20 , and you are to complete all WORK within 60 consecutive calendar days 
thereafter.   
 
The date of completion of all WORK is therefore   , 20 . 
 
 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
Owner  
 By:  _______________________________ 
         
 
 Title:   
 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged by ______________________ this 
the ____________ day of ___________, 20___. 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 

- 383 -

Item # 9.



 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
CHANGE ORDER 
 
Order No.: _______________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
Agreement Date: ___________________ 
 
 
Project: MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  
 
OWNER: CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
Justification: 
 
 
 
 
ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE $_____________ 
 
CURRENT CONTRACT PRICE adjusted by previous CHANGE ORDER:     $______________ 
 
The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will be decreased by:  $_____________ 
 
The new CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER will be: $_____________ 
 
The CONTRACT TIME will be (increased)(decreased) by _____________ calendar days. 
 
The date for completion of all work will be ___________________________. 
 
Approvals required: 
 
Requested by (OWNER): ________________________________ 
 
Recommended by (ENGINEER):  _______________________________ 
 
Accepted by (CONTRACTOR):  ________________________________ 
  

- 384 -

Item # 9.



 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT  

TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
MOBILIZATION  
MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC  
CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
EARTHWORK 
SELECT BORROW MATERIAL 
GRANULAR MATERIAL (CRUSHED STONE) 
TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL 
STORM DRAINAGE 
MINOR STRUCTURE CONCRETE 
CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
ROCK RIP RAP 
SANITARY SEWERS 
RECORD DRAWINGS 

- 385 -

Item # 9.



 

 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1.   GENERAL:  The work to be performed under this Contract shall consist of furnishing all 

labor, tools, equipment and materials and performing all work necessary for the complete 
construction of all facilities depicted by the Contract Drawings and specified herein.   

 
2.   LOCATION:  The project site is located on Lots 7 & 8 of the Med-Center II Subdivision on 

the west side of Medical Park Circle within the City limits of Tupelo, MS.  
 
3.   STANDARDS:  Any reference to a specification or designation of the American Society for 

Testing and Materials (ASTM), American Water Works Association (AWWA), American 
Standards Association (ASA), Commercial Standards (CS), National Sanitation Foundation 
(NSF), Federal Specifications, Mississippi Standard Specifications for State Aid Road and 
Bridge Construction, Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, 
Mississippi Department of Transportation Roadway Design Standard Drawing or other 
standards, codes, or orders refers to the most recent or latest specification or designation and 
any issued addenda.  Where names of specific products may be designated in these 
specifications, or in the details appearing on the Contract Drawings, the intent is to state the 
general type or quality of product desired without ruling out the use of other products of equal 
type and quality, provided that use of such other products of equal type and quality has been 
approved in writing by the Engineer prior to installation. 

 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS:  Applicable portions of the most current edition of 
“MISSISSIPPI STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR STATE AID ROAD AND BRIDGE 
CONSTRUCTION”, and the most current edition of “MISSISSIPPI STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION” are made a part of this 
specification fully and completely as if attached hereto except where superseded by Special 
Provisions or amended by revisions.  All references to Standard Specifications shall mean the 
most current edition of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 
Construction, unless otherwise indicated.  Special Provisions and Revised Specifications 
adopted and approved are made a part hereof fully and completely as if attached hereto. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to acquire a copy of these Specifications and become 
familiar with all applicable Sections and Subsections.  Copies of these documents may be 
obtained from the Mississippi Department of Transportation, Post Office Box 1850, Jackson, 
Mississippi 39215-1850. 

 

- 386 -

Item # 9.



 

5.   LAYOUT AND CONSTRUCTION STAKING: The Engineer will provide benchmarks, 
control points, or reference lines as necessary for the location of the principal components of 
the project. From this information, the Contractor shall be responsible for performing the 
necessary computations, installing, and maintaining all necessary slope stakes, batter boards, 
grade stakes (including sub-grade and surface-grade stakes), and additional control points as 
necessary for the construction of the project.  

 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to check and prove all measurements prior to use 
during construction. 

 
The Contractor shall be held responsible for the preservation of all stakes and marks, and if any 
of the construction stakes or marks have been carelessly or willfully destroyed or disturbed by 
the Contractor, the cost of replacing them will be charged against him and will be deducted 
from the payment for the work. 

 
6.   QUALITY CONTROL:  The Contractor shall be responsible for providing materials which 

meet the requirements of the specifications contained herein.  Test Reports and/or Certification 
by the manufacturer or material supplier, properly notarized, shall be furnished to the 
Contractor and the Engineer for all materials supplied for the project. 

 
The Owner reserves the right to withhold payment for any work or materials which have not 
been approved by the Engineer, or certified in accordance with the specifications, contained 
herein. 

 
7.   UNDERGROUND UTILITIES:  The approximate location of known underground utilities is 

shown on the Construction Plans.  In addition to the utilities shown, there may also be 
additional underground utilities, which have not been detected.  It shall be the responsibility of 
the Contractor to notify the Owner and all utility companies with underground utilities and give 
notification of intent to excavate in the area of the project, and to contact the Mississippi One-
Call utility locator service at 1-800-227-6477 prior to excavation activities.  Failure by the 
Contractor to notify the Owner and said utility companies shall make the Contractor liable 
under State law for any damage incurred to underground utilities. 

 
The Contractor assumes all responsibility for any damage to underground utilities. 

 
8.   GUARANTEE:  The Contractor shall guarantee all work done under these Contract 

Documents for a period of one year from the date of substantial completion.  This guarantee 
shall include the repair, without cost to the Owner, of any defect due to design, materials, 
and/or workmanship.  Performance and payment bonds shall remain in effect during the 
Warranty Period.  Inspection will be held by the owner to ascertain any defects prior to release 
and final acceptance.   

 
 
 

- 387 -

Item # 9.



 

MOBILIZATION 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  Mobilization shall consist of moving all labor, equipment, supplies, and 

incidentals to the project site and removing same after other work under the contract has been 
completed. It shall also include all mobilization pre-construction costs which are necessary 
direct costs to the project and are of a general nature rather than directly attributable to other 
pay items. 

 
2.  MEASUREMENT:  Measurement for payment will be in accordance with the following 

schedule: 
 

(1) When five (5) percent of the original contract amount is earned from other bid items 
(exclusive of those listed as dependent items), fifty (50) percent of the amount bid for 
mobilization, or five percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, will be 
paid. 

 
(2) When ten (10) percent of the original contract amount is earned from other bid 
items (exclusive of those listed as dependent items), one hundred percent of the amount bid 
for mobilization, or ten (10) percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, 
will be paid. 

 
(3) Upon completion of all work, payment of any amount bid for mobilization in excess 
of ten (10) percent of the original contract amount will be paid. 

 
 
3.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Mobilization will be paid for at the contract lump sum price, which 

shall be full compensation for completing the work specified. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 388 -

Item # 9.



 

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work shall consist of maintaining local traffic at all times, except as 

provided herein or in other contract documents. It shall consist of constructing, maintaining in 
good condition, and removing temporary structures, approach roads, and other facilities 
required for maintenance of traffic and the furnishing of temporary materials therefore, unless 
otherwise indicated in the contract. 

 
This work shall include furnishing, erecting, maintaining in good condition, and removing all 
required construction signs, barricades, and temporary traffic stripe unless indicated on the 
plans or in the contract specifications. 

 
The applicable material requirements set out in the 700 sections of the Standard Specifications 
and the minimum requirements of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
shall apply to all materials used in the maintenance of traffic. 

 
The Contractor shall at all times so conduct his work as to insure the least possible obstruction 
to traffic. The Contractor shall provide for the safety and convenience of the general public and 
the residences along the road and the protection of persons and property. 

 
The Contractor shall provide, erect, and maintain all necessary barricades, suitable and 
sufficient lights, danger signals, signs, and other traffic control devices; shall provide qualified 
flagmen where necessary to direct the traffic; and shall take all necessary precautions for the 
protection of the work and the safety of the public. Roads or parts of the work closed to traffic 
shall be protected by effective barricades and obstructions shall be illuminated during hours of 
darkness. Suitable warning signs shall be provided to properly control and direct traffic. 

 
The Contractor shall erect warning signs in advance of all places on the project where 
operations may interfere with the use of the road by traffic, and at all intermediate points where 
the new work crosses or coincides with existing traveled roads. Such warning signs shall be 
constructed and erected in accordance with the provisions of the contract. 

 
All barricades, warning signs, lights, temporary signals, other protective devices, flagmen and 
signaling devices shall conform with the minimum requirements contained in the MUTCD 
published by the U.S. Government Printing Office current at the time bids are received. 

 
On all sections of a project which are coincident with an existing highway, road, or street and 
are open to traffic, the Contractor shall be fully responsible for the protection, maintenance, 
and replacement of all signs, route markers, traffic control signals, and other traffic service 
features existing on the work from the beginning of contract time or beginning of work, 
whichever occurs earlier, until final completion of work. 
 

- 389 -

Item # 9.



 

Prior to performing work on the project, the Contractor shall make the necessary arrangements 
to prevent damage or loss of signs or other traffic control devices by providing adequate 
protection, or by removing those which cannot be left in their existing positions, protecting 
them from damage, and reinstalling them at locations so that they will provide maximum traffic 
service. As soon as work, which conflicted with the original position of each device, has been 
performed, the devices shall be immediately reinstalled at their original positions or modified 
positions.  

 
The Contractor is solely responsible for all safety devices necessary for ensuring the safety of 
traffic through the construction zone and for compliance with the MUTCD part VI.  
 
A competent, trained, and experienced Traffic Safety Officer capable of reviewing and 
maintaining construction zone safety shall be designated by the Contractor prior to the 
commencement of the project. The Contractor’s Traffic Safety Officer’s duties shall include 
the following: 

 
1. Understand the requirements of the MUTCD and contract provisions. 
 
2.   Be responsible for assuring compliance of the Contractor’s maintenance and protection 

of traffic relative to the requirements of the contract provisions. 
 
3. Be responsible for maintaining current documentation of deficiencies with respect to 

the Contractor’s maintenance and protection of traffic operations. 
 
4. Be responsible for maintaining documentation on how and when the deficiencies were 

corrected. 
 

5. Hold Contractor’s traffic safety meetings. 
 

6. Be responsible for assuring that all deficiencies are corrected. 
 

7. Be responsible for coordinating maintenance of traffic operations with the Engineer. 
 
8. Be responsible for reviewing Contractor’s equipment location storage and operation 

relative to traffic safety and operation as required by the contract provisions. 
 
9. Be responsible for reviewing Contractor’s material location storage and handling of 

materials relative to traffic safety and operations. 
 

10. Be responsible for maintaining current documentation of deficiencies and 
corresponding corrections relative to equipment operation, equipment storage, and 
material handling and storage pertaining to traffic safety and operations. 

 
The Contractor shall also provide a suitable traffic vehicle, adequately marked and equipped, 
for the use of the Traffic Safety Officer. The Engineer shall be furnished with the telephone 
numbers where the Contractor’s Traffic Safety Officer and a substitute authorized to act in his 
absence, may be reached at all times when not on the project.  

 

- 390 -

Item # 9.



 

Within three weeks’ time, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a copy of each 
accident report for those accidents occurring within the limits of the project. In the event no 
accident report is available, the Contractor and the Engineer shall jointly attempt to describe 
the accident from sources or information that may be available. The Engineer or other 
appropriate personnel as required will analyze these reports to determine if corrective action is 
needed. 

 
In the event corrective action is indicated, the contractor shall proceed immediately with the 
same. 

 
The Contractor shall construct, erect, and maintain in good order all barricades and danger and 
warning signs specified or ordered. Flagmen shall be stationed at such points as may be 
deemed necessary. Movable construction signs shall be moved from each section as their use 
becomes inapplicable. 

 
Such signs and all other signs and devices of a temporary nature shall be in accordance with the 
plans, and the MUTCD, as applicable. 

 
2.  MEASUREMENT:  Progress payment will be made corresponding to the percent of 

construction completion as shown on the approved monthly estimate and verified by the 
Engineer. Specific traffic control devices for which there is a pay item listed will be measured 
and paid for per the unit specified. 

 
3.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Maintenance of Traffic will be paid for at the contract lump sum 

price, which shall be full compensation for completing the work specified. 
 

- 391 -

Item # 9.



 

CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Work under this section shall consist of, clearing, grubbing, removing and 

disposing of all things, including but not limited to, trees, concrete rubble, sidewalks, pipes, 
junction boxes, manholes, pipe, inlets, curb and gutter of all types, and existing pavements of 
all types and thickness within the limits of the project construction which require removal in 
order for the project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Drawings and 
Specifications contained herein. 

 
2.   CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS:  All objects, materials and all trees, vegetation, 

stumps, roots and other protruding or underground objects in the way of construction, and not 
designated to remain shall be cleared and grubbed. The Engineer must be notified prior to 
commencement of the clearing and grubbing operations. The Engineer may permit sound 
stumps to remain outside of the construction limits or in the area to be rounded at the top of cut 
backslopes provided they are cut off flush with or below the surface of the finish ground line. 
Stump holes and other holes from which obstructions are removed, except, in areas to be 
excavated, shall be backfilled with suitable material and thoroughly compacted as specified. 
All operations shall be conducted in such a manner as to prevent injury to anything that is 
designated to remain on site or damage to adjacent property. All clearing and grubbing must be 
completed and approved by the Engineer prior to the commencement of grading operations. 

 
3.   REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL:  All materials, including existing pavements of all types and 

thickness, and debris, in the way of construction and designated to be removed, shall be 
removed from the construction site. Areas required for disposal shall be acquired by, and shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor, unless the disposal area is provided by the Owner. 
Burning shall not be permitted without prior notification and approval of the City of Tupelo. 

 
The Contractor shall be responsible for accomplishing this work in full conformance with the 
requirements of local officials and the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 
(MDEQ). 

 
4.   MEASUREMENT:  Measurement for Clearing & Grubbing will be made corresponding to 

the percent of the item completed and approved by the Engineer. Individual items designated 
for removal for which there is a pay item shall be measured and paid for per the unit specified. 

 
5.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Clearing and Grubbing and removal of individual items shall be paid 

for as specified per each item, which price shall be full compensation for completing the work 
as specified.  

 

- 392 -

Item # 9.



 

EARTHWORK 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  The work covered by this section shall consist of the preparation of the 

embankment or excavation area, excavating, hauling excavation, spreading, compacting and 
finish dressing all areas to the alignment, grades and cross sections as shown on the Contract 
Drawings or established by the Engineer. 

  
 All suitable excavated material shall be placed by the Contractor in full embankment sections 

along the proposed centerline as shown on the plan profile sheets and constructed in 
accordance with these specifications. All clearing and grubbing necessary for the completion of 
this work shall be done in accordance with the clearing and grubbing specification. 

 
2.   GENERAL:  Excavation and embankment construction may begin after the required clearing 

and grubbing has been completed and approved by the Engineer, and after drainage structures 
required in advance of grading operations have been completed. 

 
Embankments will be constructed with suitable materials taken from the excavation areas, or 
from materials brought onto the site from an approved off-site source. Unsuitable materials or 
perishable materials such as rubbish, sod, brush, roots, loose stumps, logs, heavy vegetation, 
etc., shall not be incorporated or buried in any embankment.  Any material encountered that is 
deemed to be unsuitable for use in the work shall be removed and disposed of. The unsuitable 
material as defined in Section 203.03.7 of the Standard Specifications shall be removed and 
disposed of, as specified in Section 203.03.7 of the Standard Specifications. The area will then 
be backfilled with a suitable material, and compacted until the requirements, as specified 
herein, are achieved. Areas specified in the plans to be undercut will be assumed to be 
unsuitable and are to be disposed of by the Contractor. 
 
All areas of the site, which will receive embankment material, shall be completely broken up 
by plowing, scarifying, or disc-harrowing to a minimum depth of six (6) inches.  Areas 
discovered to be soft and yielding shall be brought to the attention of the Engineer. These areas 
shall be processed and compacted to a firm and unyielding layer. If adequate compaction 
cannot be obtained on this material, it shall be removed and replaced with suitable material.  

 
After an area has been fully and completely prepared to receive embankment material, the 
embankment shall be constructed of suitable materials placed in successive layers, parallel to 
the finished grade. Each layer is to be not more than eight (8) inches of loose material, before 
compaction, for the full width of the cross section.  Each layer of excavated material, so placed, 
shall be satisfactorily spread and compacted so as to construct an embankment which, after full 
compaction and shrinkage, will conform within reasonable tolerance to the lines, grades and 
cross sections as shown on the plans or otherwise designated. 

 
All excavation and embankment construction shall be carried on in such a manner as to insure 
adequate drainage in case of unexpected rainfall, and shall conform to the provisions of the 
Erosion Control specification. 

 
3.   COMPACTION OF EMBANKMENTS AND SUBGRADES:  Compaction of embankment 

material shall comply with Section S-203.09.4 of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for 
State Aid Road and Bridge Construction.  This section is copied in its entirety as follows: 

- 393 -

Item # 9.



 

 
“S-203.09.4—Compaction of Embankments.  All embankments material shall be at the 
moisture content determined to be proper for the particular material being placed so that the 
resulting work will be both dense and stable. 

 
It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to maintain the proper moisture content during 
compaction operations, and the Engineer may require moistening or drying as necessary, 
without additional compensation to the Contractor. 

 
The material shall be compacted until the required density, determined in accordance with S-
700.03 and S-700.04 has been attained and the embankment is stable. 

 
The specified value (SV) for density of basement soils is ninety-four (94) percent, and the 
specified value (SV) for density of design soils is ninety-six (96) percent. 

 
The unit of deviation (UD) will be one percentage point. 

 
If the contract does not include a layer of material above the subgrade, or if the top portion of 
the design soil is to be chemically or mechanically stabilized under the contract, the (SV) for 
density of the top six inches of the design soil is ninety-four (94) percent. 

 
The Contractor shall make allowances for shrinkage and compaction in the construction of 
embankment.” 

 
4.   TOLERANCES:  The allowable vertical tolerances for earthwork will be plus or minus one-

tenth foot in elevation and plus or minus five-tenths foot horizontally. 
 
5.   METHOD OF MEASUREMENT:  Structure Excavation will be measured by the cubic yard 

final   measure (FM) in accordance with Subsection 109.01 of the Standard Specifications. 
Select Borrow shall be computed for payment per cubic yard as measured along neat lines of all 
in-place and accepted work completed as shown on the construction details or as directed by 
the Engineer. Undercut areas shall be computed for payment per cubic yard (CY) as measured 
along neat lines of all in-place and accepted work completed as shown on the construction 
details or as directed by the Engineer. 

 
6.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Excavation and embankment, when completed and approved, will be 

paid for at the contract unit price per cubic yard, which shall be full compensation for 
completing the work as specified regardless of the material encountered.  

 

- 394 -

Item # 9.



 

 
SELECT BORROW MATERIAL 

 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Select Borrow Material shall be composed of a natural or manufactured 

mixture of soil binder and granular material. The soil binder shall be clay or silt or other 
materials, or combinations thereof having satisfactory cementing qualities. The mixture shall 
be homogenous in character and reasonably free of clay balls, vegetative material, or other 
deleterious substances that cannot be classified as serviceable, and shall be such that when 
properly compacted will form a dense mass.  

 
The gradation of the select borrow material shall be as follows: 
  

  Sieve Size  Percentage Passing 
  
  No. 10      100 
  No. 40    20-100 
  No. 60    15-85 

No. 200     6-40 
 

The material passing the No. 40 Sieve shall have a maximum plasticity index of 10 and a 
maximum liquid limit of 30.  

 
2.   TESTING:   All sampling and testing shall be made in accordance with applicable standard 

methods of AASHTO in effect on the date of advertisement for bids. 
 
3.   APPROVAL OF SOURCE:   Approval of sources for materials must be obtained prior to 

placement of materials on the project. Samples may be required.  
 
4.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:   This is a material reference specification. Payment for Select 

Borrow shall be made as specified under Earthwork specification.  
 

- 395 -

Item # 9.



 

GRANULAR MATERIAL (CRUSHED STONE) 
 
1.  DESCRIPTION:  This work shall consist of furnishing and constructing a Granular Material 

Crushed Stone base on a prepared foundation in reasonably close conformity with the lines, 
grades, and cross sections shown on the plans or established by the Engineer. 

 
2.  MATERIALS:  The Granular Material Crushed Stone shall consist of hard, durable particles 

free from adherent coatings, soft or disintegrated pieces, vegetation, or other deleterious matter. 
The gradation of the Granular Material Crushed Stone shall be as follows: 

 
    Sieve Size  Percentage Passing 
  
 (Crusher Run) 1”    100 
    3/8”    50-85 
    No. 4    35-65 
    No. 10    25-50 
    No. 40    15-30 
    No. 200    5-15 
 
 (Bedding Type 1) 4”    100 
    3-1/2”    90-100 
    2-1/2”    25-60 
    1-1/2”    0-15 
 
3.  CONSTRUCTION:  Construction operation requirements of the Granular Material Crushed 

Stone base shall be in accordance with Section S-304 of the Standard Specifications.  
 

The density of the completed Granular Material Crushed Stone base shall be equal to or exceed 
99% of the Standard Proctor Density. 

  
4.  METHOD OF MEASUREMENT:  Granular Material Crushed Stone shall be computed for 

payment per cubic yard (CY) as measured along neat lines of all in-place and accepted work 
completed as shown on the construction details or as directed by the Engineer. 

  
5.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Accepted quantities of granular material shall be paid for at the 

contract bid price per cubic yard (CY), which shall be full compensation for completing the 
work specified. No separate payment will be made for water necessary for the processing of the 
granular material. 

 
 
 
 
 

- 396 -

Item # 9.



 

 
TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 

 
1.0 DESCRIPTION:  The work covered by this section includes temporary slope protection, 

erosion, and sediment control. 
 
1.1 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS:  The Contractor shall comply with all rules 

and regulations governing the elimination and control of pollutants in stormwater 
discharges associated with construction activities as regulated by the Environmental 
Protection Agency and set forth in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit requirements. 

 
The Contractor is advised that he or his company, as the case may be, is responsible for 
compliance with all applicable State and Federal laws.  The Contactor shall submit a 
C.N.O.I to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality and shall prepare a 
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).The Contractor agrees to maintain 
inspection records, file required maintenance inspection report submittals, perform any 
required repairs, maintenance or additions to the erosion controls and requests that any 
previous contractor be released from the terms of the SWPPP.  Any additional required 
phasing plans shall be submitted to the State by the Contractor prior to the start of 
construction. 

 
The Contractor shall obtain a Notice of Coverage from the State prior to beginning any 
construction activities if required. 

 
1.2  REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall 

maintain records of checks and repairs on site.  Erosion control procedures shall provide 
that all erosion controls are inspected at least once every seven calendar days or as required 
by State regulations. Records shall be maintained on site and submitted to the State as 
required.  

 
The Contractor shall also maintain records of the following: 

 
1) The dates when major grading activities occur. 
2) The dates when construction activities, temporary or permanent, cease on a portion of 

the site. 
3) The dates when stabilization measures are initiated. 

 
 
2.0 MATERIALS 
 
 A. Mulches:  Oat or wheat straw, fiber mats, netting, bark, wood chips, or other suitable 

material reasonably clean and free of harmful weeds or materials. 
 
 B. Silt Barriers: Riprap berms or Hay or wheat straw bales free of harmful weeds. 
 
 C. Synthetic Filter Fabric:  Pervious sheet of woven propylene, nylon, polyester, ethylene 

yarn, 700x minimum, certified by manufacturer or supplier to be in compliance with 
applicable federal, state and local regulations. 

- 397 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 D. Wire Fence Reinforcing for Silt Fence:  Minimum 24" height, 6" x 6" by 14 gauge. 
 
 E. Posts for Silt Fences:   1-1/2" x 1-1/2" wood or 1.33 pounds per linear foot steel with 

minimum length of 48".  Steel posts shall have projections for fastening wire. 
 
 F. Stakes for Silt Barriers:  1" x 2" wood or equivalent metal by 36" long. 
 
 
3.0 SLOPE PROTECTION AND EROSION CONTROL 
 
 A. Do not burn-off ground cover. 
 
 B. Before existing soils are disturbed, provide erosion and sediment control. 
 
   C. Protect slopes immediately after completing rough grading.  Coordinate erosion and 

sediment control with earthwork so as to minimize duration of exposure of unprotected 
soils. 

 
 D. Temporary Protection of Erodible Soils:  Use methods necessary to prevent erosion and to 

control sediment, including any or all of methods listed below. 
 
 E. Mechanical Retardation & Runoff Control:  Mechanically retard and control rate of runoff 

from construction site.  Use temporary diversion ditches and berms to retard and divert 
runoff to protected drainage courses. 

 
   F. Sediment Basins:  When required, sediment basins shall be designed, constructed and 

maintained in accordance with best management practice standards found in the USDA 
Planning and Design Manual for the control of erosion, sediment and stormwater. 

 
 G. Borrow is not allowed in areas where suitable environmental controls are not possible. 
 
   H. Vegetation & Mulch:  Provide temporary protection on slopes when rough grading is 

completed or when enough soil is exposed to require protection to prevent erosion.  Protect 
soil by accelerated growth of permanent vegetation, temporary vegetation, mulching or 
netting.  For slopes too steep for stabilization by other means, stabilize by hydroseeding, 
mulching anchored in place, covering with anchored netting, sodding, or combination of 
these and other necessary methods for effective erosion control.  

 
 I. Silt Barriers:  Place rows of barriers, or install silt fencing securely anchored, or both to 

prevent soil erosion. 
 
 
3.1 MAINTENANCE: 
 

A. Check and repair, as necessary, all control measures weekly during dry periods and within 
24 hours after rainfall of 0.5" or greater.  During prolonged rainfall, check daily and repair 
damage. 

- 398 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 B. Maintain records of checks and repairs. 
 

A. Maintain erosion and sediment control features until Final Completion.  
 
3.2 CLEANING: 
 
 A. When the Work is complete, immediately remove materials used to aid erosion and 

sediment control. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

- 399 -

Item # 9.



 

PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  Work under this section shall consist of the establishment of permanent 

live vegetation or furnishing and placing of solid sod on all areas disturbed by 
construction, and the protection of downstream and adjacent property from siltation and 
sediment build up caused by grading operations and construction under this Contract. 

 
 The rates listed in the vegetation schedule are minimum application rates. It shall be the 

Contractors responsibility to apply additional quantities as necessary to obtain sufficient plant 
growth. 

 
The major items of work covered are ground preparation, the furnishing and incorporation of 
fertilizers and agricultural limestone, the furnishing and planting of grass seed, the furnishing 
and placement of vegetative materials for mulch, and/or the furnishing and placement of solid 
sod, and the maintenance and/or watering of this item until the project is accepted by the 
Owner. 

 
2.   TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL:  Temporary erosion control 

measures shall be furnished, installed, maintained, and removed if necessary for the purpose of 
removing suspended soil particles from the water passing through in accordance with the 
Contract Drawings and the Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control specifications contained 
herein. 

 
The Contractor shall maintain the erosion checks until sufficient vegetation is established to 
control erosion.  Measures, which are destroyed or deteriorate prior to adequate vegetation 
coverage, shall be replaced as necessary.  Unless otherwise specified, all erosion checks shall 
be removed or used elsewhere prior to acceptance of the project. 

 
3.   GROUND PREPARATION AND FERTILIZER: Ground preparation and the furnishing of 

fertilizer and agricultural limestone shall be accomplished in accordance with Sections 212 & 
213 of the Standard Specifications.  This item of work shall be accomplished on all areas, 
which have been disturbed and which will require seeding, solid sodding, or sprigging.  Ground 
preparation will not be measured for separate payment. Such construction shall be considered a 
necessary part of the work in completing the various planting and seeding items and is a 
responsibility to be assumed by the Contractor in accordance with such respective pay items. 

 
4.   SEEDING:  Seeding shall be accomplished on all designated areas which do not have 

adequate vegetation to prevent erosion or which have been disturbed during construction of the 
herein described work.  Seeding shall be accomplished in accordance with Section 214 of the 
Standard Specifications.  Seeding mixtures and rates of application shall be as shown in the 
vegetation schedule, or as directed by the Engineer. Seeding in front of established businesses 
or residences shall be accomplished by incorporating common bermuda grass seed at a rate of 
50 lb. per acre. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to maintain the seeds and establish a 
full coverage of live growth. 

 
5.   MULCHING:  Vegetative material for mulch shall be applied on all areas required to stabilize 

seeding during the maintenance and growing period.  This item shall be accomplished in 
accordance with Section 215 of the Standard Specifications.  

- 400 -

Item # 9.



 

 
6.   SOLID SOD:  Sod shall be supplied from an approved source capable of providing well-

rooted, healthy sod, free of diseases, nematodes and soil borne insects. Sod shall be uniform in 
color, texture, density, and free of weeds, undesirable grasses, stones, roots, thatch, and 
extraneous material: viable and capable of growth and development when planted. Approved 
Solid Sod shall be delivered to the site and placed as shown or directed to provide complete 
coverage of areas disturbed during Construction.  

  
The sod shall be cut transported and placed within 24 hours and shall be protected from sun, 
wind and dehydration prior to installation. Sod showing signs of deterioration or distress will 
not be allowed for use. Voids remaining between the sections of sod shall be filled to insure a 
smooth surface after completion of the solid sodding process. 

  
Areas to receive sod shall be graded to a smooth, free draining surface with a loose, uniformly 
fine texture. Where necessary, sod shall be staked (using approved methods) in drainage swales 
or on slopes greater than 3:1. Sod shall be laid to form a solid mass with tightly fitted joints. 
Joints in successive rows of sod shall be staggered. After placement, sod shall be rolled with 
proper equipment to provide a smooth surface free of irregularities and voids. Sod placed 
adjacent to existing lawn areas shall be recessed to provide a level and flush condition between 
new and existing lawn areas. 
 
Sod areas shall be maintained, including water, spot weeding, mowing, application of 
herbicides, fungicides, insecticides, and resodding until a full uniform stand of grass free of 
weed, undesirable grass species, disease, and insects is achieved. 
 
The type of solid sod used shall match that of existing sod located adjacent to the project work, 
unless otherwise directed. 

 
 Fertilizers or agriculture limestone will not be required for solid sod but may be applied at the 

discretion of the Contractor to insure satisfactory plant establishment and growth. 
 
7.   TOPSOILING:  Topsoiling shall be accomplished in accordance with Sections 211 of the 
Standard Specifications. 

- 401 -

Item # 9.



 

STORM DRAINAGE 
 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  This Section of the work shall consist of furnishing and laying all pipe and 

flared end sections to be used as storm drains to the lines and grades as shown on the Contract 
Drawings and specified herein. 

 
2.   MATERIALS: All storm drain materials shall be as indicated on the Construction Plans or 

approved by the Engineer. 
 

2.1  Reinforced Concrete Pipe – All reinforced concrete pipe of twelve (12) inch diameter (or 
equivalent arch) and larger shall be Class III, standard strength, conforming to Section S-
708.02.2 of the Standard Specifications. 
 
2.2  Reinforced Concrete Flared-End Section: - All reinforced concrete flared –end sections 
shall conform to Section S-708.04 of the Standard Specifications. 
 

 
2.3  High Performance Polypropylene Pipe- All high performance polypropylene pipe 
covered by these specifications shall be Advanced Drainage Systems HP –Storm Dual Wall or 
approved equal. 
 
2.4 High Density Polyethylene Pipe – All high density polyethylene pipe covered by these 

specifications shall be Advanced Drainage Systems N-12 Dual Wall or approved equal. 
 

2.5 Precast Concrete Box Culvert  - All precast concrete box culverts and headwalls shall 
conform to the design and dimensions shown on the plans, and the materials and 
manufacture of box sections shall meet  the requirements of AASHTO M259 or M273, as 
applicable.  

  
  
 
3.   PIPE INSTALLATION: 
 

3.1  Excavation - Trenches shall be excavated in whatever material encountered, to the line 
and grade as shown on the Contract Drawings or as staked by the Engineer in the field.  The 
width shall be sufficient to properly join the pipe and provide thorough compaction of the 
bedding and backfill material under and around the pipe.    

 
The bottom of the completed trench shall be firm for its full length and width and shall be 
carefully graded, formed, and aligned before the pipe is laid.  The bottom of the trench shall be 
rounded under each joint of the pipe to confirm to the shape of the pipe, and the bell holes shall 
be cut so as to allow the body of the pipe uniform contact and support throughout its entire 
length. 

- 402 -

Item # 9.



 

In Federal Register, Volume 54, No. 209 (October 1989), the United States Department of 
Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) amended its “Construction 
Standards for Excavation, 29 CFR, part 1926, Subpart P”. This document and subsequent 
updates were issued to better insure the safety of workmen entering trenches or excavations.  It 
is mandated by this federal regulation that excavations whether they be utility trenches, 
basement excavations or footing excavations, be constructed in accordance with the new 
OSHA guidelines.  It is our understanding that these regulations are being strictly enforced and 
if they are not closely followed, the owner and the contractor could be liable for substantial       
penalties. 

 
The Contractor is solely responsible for designing and constructing stable, temporary 
excavations and the shoring, sloping, or benching of the sides of the excavations as necessary 
to maintain stability of both the excavation sides and bottom. The contractor’s “responsible 
person”, as defined in 29 CFR Part 1926, should evaluate the soil exposed in the excavations as 
part of the contractor’s safety procedures. In no case should slope height, slope inclination, or 
excavation depth, including utility trench excavation depth, exceed those specified in local, 
state, and federal safety regulations. 

        
3.2  Sheeting, Bracing and Shoring - The Contractor shall be responsible for all                          
bracing, sheeting, and shoring, necessary to perform and protect all excavations as required for 
safety.  Materials used for this purpose shall be carefully withdrawn during backfill operations 
in such a manner as not to damage the pipe or move it from its correct line and grade. 

 
3.3  Dewatering - The Contractor shall perform all pumping and well pointing necessary to 
maintain the excavation in a dry state until the backfill operation is complete. 

 
      3.4  Bedding -  Bedding for all concrete pipe shall be a minimum of Class C conforming to the 

requirements of section S-603.04 of the Standard Specifications. For High Density 
Polyethylene Pipe, the bedding shall conform to the requirements of ASTM D-2321. 

        
3.5  Pipe Laying - The bottom of the trench shall be shaped as to give substantially uniform 
circumferential support to the lower fourth of each pipe.  Pipe laying shall proceed upgrade 
with the spigot ends of bell-and spigot pipe pointing in the direction of the flow.  Each pipe 
shall be laid true to line and grade in such manner as to form a close concentric joint with the 
adjoining pipe and to prevent sudden offsets of the flow line. As the work progresses, the 
interior of the pipe shall be cleaned of all dirt and superfluous material of every description. 
Where cleaning after laying is difficult because of small pipe diameter, a suitable swab or drag 
shall be kept in the pipe and pulled forward past each joint immediately after the jointing has 
been completed. Trenches shall be kept free of water and pipe shall not be laid when the 
condition of the trench or the weather is unsuitable for such work. 
 
3.6  Jointing - Reinforced concrete pipe joints shall be sealed with bituminous plastic cement 
supplied by the pipe manufacturer.  Joining ends shall be wiped clean and dry and the 
bituminous plastic compound shall be applied cold to the entire surface of tongues and grooves 
or the entire surface of bells and spigots.  Sections of concrete pipe shall be forced together 
with excess compound extruding both inside and outside the pipe.  Excess compound shall be 
removed from interior surfaces, and the exterior shall be furnished reasonably flush.   

- 403 -

Item # 9.



 

High Density Polyethylene pipe joints shall be assembled according to the manufacturer’s 
recommendations. Fittings shall not reduce the inside diameter of the tubing being joined by 
more than 5% of the nominal inside diameter.  Reducer fittings shall not reduce the cross-
sectional area of the smaller size pipe. 
 

 
4.  MEASUREMENT:   Pipe shall be measured per actual linear foot (LF) of pipe used for storm 

drain applications (pipe joint nominal length multiplied by number of joints, minus cutoffs). 
 
5.  BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Payment will be made under for each type of storm drain pipe 

specified per linear foot (LF).  
 

- 404 -

Item # 9.



 

MINOR STRUCTURE CONCRETE 
 
1.    DESCRIPTION:  The work under this section shall consist of the construction of reinforced 

concrete storm inlets, pipe collars, paved flumes, junction boxes, and other concrete minor 
structures including inlet grates. 

 
2.    MATERIALS:  Materials under this section shall conform to the following specifications: 
 

2.1  Concrete - All concrete used for construction of concrete minor structures shall be Class 
“B” Concrete as specified in Section 804 of the 1990 Edition of the Mississippi Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.  A mix design for Class “B” concrete shall 
be submitted to the Engineer for approval prior to commencement of concrete construction. 

 
2.2  Reinforcing Steel - All reinforcing steel used in construction under this section shall 
conform to Section 602 and Sections 711 and 805.02 of the Standard Specifications. 

 
2.3  Grey Iron Casting -  Grates and manholes for surface and storm inlets shall be grey iron 
castings, Neenah or approved equal. 
         

2.4  Precast Concrete Inlets -  Precast concrete inlets meeting the above specifications may 
be used in place of poured-in-place concrete inlets. 

 
3.    CONSTRUCTION:  Construction of all minor structures shall be in accordance with the 

locations, dimensions and details as shown in the Construction Plans or as directed.  All 
construction shall be in full accordance with specified sections as set forth above under 
materials specifications. 

 
 

- 405 -

Item # 9.



 

 
CONCRETE PAVEMENT 

 
1.    DESCRIPTION:  The work under this section shall consist of the construction of concrete 

paved flumes, island paving, and driveways on a prepared foundation in accordance with the 
specifications, and in reasonably close conformance with the lines, grades, thickness and 
typical sections shown on the plans or established by the Engineer.   

 
2.    MATERIALS:  Materials under this section shall conform to the following specifications: 
 

2.1  Concrete - All concrete used for concrete sidewalks, island paving, and driveways shall 
be Class “B” Concrete as specified in Section 804 of the Mississippi Standard Specifications 
for Road and Bridge Construction.  A mix design for Class “B” concrete shall be submitted to 
the Engineer for approval prior to commencement of concrete construction.  

 
2.2  Reinforcement - Concrete paved flume, island paving, and driveways shall be reinforced 
with 6”x6” 10 gauge wire mesh unless stated otherwise. All reinforcing steel used in 
construction under this section shall conform to Section 602 and Section 711 and 805.02 of 
the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. 

         
2.3  Concrete Expansion Joints -  ½ inch preformed expansion joint material required at 
locations as shown in the plans, or as directed by the Engineer. 

 
3.    CONSTRUCTION:  Construction of all concrete paved flumes, island paving, and driveways 

shall be in accordance with the locations, dimensions and details as shown in the Construction 
Plans.   

 
3.1 Foundation – The foundation shall be shaped and compacted according to the Earthwork 
and Granular Material (Crushed Stone) specifications to a level surface conforming to the 
lines, grades and sections shown on the plans or established by the Engineer. All soft or 
unsuitable materials encountered shall be removed and replaced with acceptable material at no 
additional cost. 
 
3.2 Forms – Forms shall be wood or metal and free of bulges, warps, and knots. They shall set 
to the required line and grade and rigidly held in place by stakes or braces. 

 
3.3 Placing Concrete – The concrete mixture shall be placed on the prepared foundation to 
the depth required to complete the pavement in one course. It shall then be vibrated and/or 
tamped and struck off with an approved straight-edge resting on the side forms and drawn 
forward with a sawing motion. The surface shall be given a Class 6 float finish as set out in 
Section 804 of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. 
Edges shall be rounded with an edging tool having a radius of ¼ inch unless otherwise 
specified. 

 
 
3.4 Joints – Joints shall be of the type and dimensions and at the locations specified in the 
plans. 
 

- 406 -

Item # 9.



 

3.5 Protection and Curing – Concrete shall be protected from premature drying by covering 
with wetted burlap covered by polyethylene, spraying with approved white pigmented curing 
membrane or other approved methods. The contractor shall protect the concrete from both 
public traffic and traffic caused by the contractor’s employees or agents. Any damage to the 
pavement prior to final acceptance shall be repaired or the pavement replaced.    

 
3.6 Cleanup – After completion of any section of sidewalk, island paving, and driveways, all 
forming material and any protruding edges of expansion material and concrete shall be 
removed. Backfill material shall be placed flush to the top edge of the structure (2” lower for 
areas receiving solid sod) and dressed to provide positive drainage. After initial settlement of 
backfill material has occurred, additional material shall be placed flush with top edge of 
structure (2” lower for areas receiving solid sod) prior to commencement of erosion control 
measures. 

 
4.   MEASUREMENT:  Concrete Pavement will be computed for payment per square yard as 

measured along neat lines.  
 

Reinforcing Steel will not be measured for separate payment. 
 
5.   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Payment for Concrete Pavement will be made at the contract unit 

price per square yard (SY), complete in place, which shall be full compensation for all 
materials, labor, and incidentals necessary for completing the work specified. 

 
Reinforcing Steel will not be paid for separately. 
Required backfill material will not be paid for separately. 
 

- 407 -

Item # 9.



 

SANITARY SEWERS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1.1  SCOPE 
 

The Contractor shall furnish all work, services, materials, and related items necessary to 
complete the work as shown on the construction drawings and described in detail by these 
specifications. 

 
1.2  LOCATION OF LINES 
 

The locations of all lines are indicated on the construction drawings.  In general, lines will be 
located on private property and installation will be made in accordance with easements grant-
ed by the landowners for this work.  If work is on private property, a signed easement shall be 
obtained before crossing private property.  The Owner is responsible for obtaining said 
easements, but it is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure easements are in hand prior 
to proceeding across private property. 

 
Existing power lines, telephone lines, trees, shrubbery, fences, water mains, gas mains, 
sewers, cables, conduits, ditches, embankments, buildings, outdoor signs, and other structures 
in the vicinity of the work, not authorized to be removed, shall be supported and protected 
from injury by the Contractor during the construction and until completion of the work 
affecting them.  The Contractor shall be liable for all damages done to such existing facilities 
and structures and he shall save the Owner harmless from any liability or expense for injuries, 
damages, or repairs to such facilities. 

 
Any delay, additional work, or extra cost to the Contractor caused by existing underground 
installations and above ground utilities and structures shall not constitute a claim for extra 
work, additional payment, or damages. 

 
The Contractor shall use maximum care to avoid damage to any facility, which is to remain in 
service in its existing location.  Any work required to maintain in service shall be done at the 
Contractor's expense. 

                                                                                             
The Owner reserves the right to change locations of pipelines as shown on the construction 
plans and to add or delete items of work.  Work performed at new locations or changes in 
construction plans shall be performed at unit prices indicated in the Contractor's Bid Proposal.  

 
Clearing and grubbing required to facilitate any item of work shall be performed.  Cleared and 
grubbed materials shall be disposed of by removing from the site.  Alternate means of disposal 
must be approved by the Owner and Engineer.  The Contractor shall assume all responsibility 
for the satisfactory disposal of all cleared and grubbed materials and no extra payment will be 
made for clearing and grubbing or the removal of materials. 

 
All fences cut in constructing the sewers shall be repaired in a timely manner to the original 
condition and appearance, or better, by the Contractor.  Where fences confine animals, 

- 408 -

Item # 9.



 

construct temporary fences as required and take the necessary measures to keep the animals 
safely confined during construction.  No extra payment will be made for fence removal and 
reconstruction and temporary fencing since these items are considered to be incidental to the 
sewer pipe work. 

 
1.3  MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 
 

All materials and workmanship shall be of the highest quality possible.  Any defects in 
materials will cause such materials to be rejected by the Engineer.  Contractor shall notify 
supplier and Engineer of any defective materials at the time of discovery. 

 
1.4  PERMITS AND CODES 
 

All work shall comply with local codes, ordinances, and regulations. 
 

All lines placed within the right-of-way of County, State-Aid, State Highway, or Railroads, 
shall be laid according to the instructions issued with the permit granted for this work by the 
governing authority. 

 
1.5  EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS 
 

The Contractor shall maintain in operating condition all active utilities, sewers, and existing 
improvements encountered in the construction of this project.  He shall repair to the satisfac-
tion of the Owner any surface or subsurface improvement damaged during the course of work, 
whether or not such improvement is shown on the construction drawings. 

 
1.6  SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
 

The Contractor shall provide and maintain all barricades, signs, and safety devices necessary 
to warn the public of the dangers of construction in progress.    

 
1.7  GUARANTY 
 

The Contractor shall guarantee all material and work for a period of one year from the date of 
final acceptance of his work.  The Contractor shall remove, replace, and repair all defective 
work during this period of time at no cost to the Owner. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 409 -

Item # 9.



 

PART 2 – GRAVITY SEWER PIPE LINES AND CONSTRUCTION 
 
2.1  SCOPE 
 

The work in this section consists of furnishing all materials, accessories, equipment, tools, 
transportation, services, labor and performing all operations necessary to complete and place 
into use the sanitary pipe lines. 

 
2.2  MATERIALS 
 

Except where ductile iron pipe is indicated on the plans, gravity sewer lines and fittings shall 
be SDR 35 PVC sewer pipe up to 15" diameter.  Gravity sewer lines greater than 15” diameter 
shall be SDR 26 PVC.  Ductile iron pipe may be substituted for PVC pipe materials. 

 
A. PVC Sewer Pipe and fittings shall be rigid poly vinyl chloride pipe in accordance with ASTM 

Specification D-1784, cell classification 1245-B, and ASTM D-3034.  No PVC pipe will be 
installed at a depth greater than 20 feet.  All PVC pipe used shall be formed with a bell for 
elastomeric gasket joints per ASTM 3212. The seals shall be per ASTM F-477.  All fittings 
and accessories shall have bell and spigot configurations identical to that of the pipe.  Wye 
and tee saddles will not be permitted without written authority from the Engineer for each 
specific instance. 

 
B.   All Ductile Iron Pipe shall be centrifugally case, manufactured in accordance with the 

American National Standards Institute/American Water Works Association Standards 
C151/C150 of Ductile Case Iron and shall be Class 50 minimum in accordance with ASTM 
A746.  All pipes shall have cement lining in accordance with AWWA C-104.  Except as 
otherwise specified or indicated, all ductile iron pipe shall have gasketed joints.  Where 
specified, all ductile iron mechanical joint pipe shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C111/A24.11 
and C110-A21.10.  Where connected to flange type valves, ductile iron pipe shall have 
flanged ends. 

 
All ductile iron fittings shall conform to the AWWA Standards, be of the same manufacturer 
as the ductile iron pipe and shall have a minimum 250 psi pressure rating plus a 100 psi surge 
allowance. 

 
Gate valves for low pressure applications (i.e. lagoon discharge structures) shall be American-
Darling AFC 00 double disc gate valves or approved equal.  Shear gates shall be M&H Type 
44 or approved equal. 
 
Fittings for ductile iron pipe shall be AWWA C-153 Compact Fittings and have either coal-tar 
epoxy lining in accordance with AWWA C-210 or cement lining in accordance with AWWA 
C-104 and bituminous coating outside, with mechanical joint ends in accordance with 
ANSI/AWWA C111/A24.11 unless specified differently on the Contract Drawings. 

 
 
 

- 410 -

Item # 9.



 

2.3  INSTALLATION 
 

PVC sewer pipe shall be installed in accordance with ASTM Standard D-2321 unless 
otherwise directed.  PVC pipe shall be installed within one year of the date of manufacture 
indicated on the pipe. 

 
Ductile iron pipe shall be installed in accordance with ASTM Standard D-2321, unless 
otherwise directed. 
 
Contractor shall provide safety fencing or other barricades as required to prevent public access 
to open trenches. 

 
2.3.1  ALIGNMENT 

 
The Contractor shall use a commercial grade laser specifically manufactured for setting a line 
and grade for the gravity sewer by using the laser beam coaxially through the center of the 
sewer being laid.  The laser beam projector is to be rigidly mounted to its support platforms, 
with a two-point suspension, or equivalent, assuring that all ground and equipment vibrations 
are kept to an absolute minimum.  The Contractor shall furnish all equipment, including 
equipment necessary to control atmospheric conditions in the pipe to keep line and grade to 
acceptable standards of accuracy.  Competent experienced people who have been properly 
trained to operate the equipment used must operate the laser beam system. 

 
2.3.2  LABORATORY TESTS 

 
All pipe and fittings used shall bear the stamp of approval of an approved testing laboratory as 
required by the Engineer.  Certification of each truckload of material may be required. 

 
2.3.3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
The Contractor shall excavate all trenches to the required depth for proper installation of the 
sewers at the locations and grades indicated on the drawings and staked in the field.  Trenches 
should be only of sufficient width to provide a free working space on each side of the pipe.  
Trenches excavated deeper than shown on the drawings shall be backfilled with an approved 
material and tamped solidly in place at no cost to the Owner. 

 
In paved areas prior to trenching, cut the pavement neatly on both sides of the trench to a 
width not greater than 12” wider than the trench width, 6” on each side.  Remove the surfacing 
for this width during excavation.  Ordinarily tunneling will not be allowed.  Cut bituminous 
paving with pavement cutter or other approved method.  Cut concrete paving by sawing.  
Provide the necessary equipment to load and haul away excavation as it is taken from the 
trench.  No stockpiling of Excavated Material will be permitted where the trench is to be filled 
with Select Borrow Material or Crushed Stone. 

 
Trenches shall be sheeted and braced as necessary to protect workmen and adjacent structures.  
Water shall be prevented from entering the trench while construction is in progress.  Under no 
circumstances shall the pipes be laid in water.  The Contractor shall pump or bail water from 
bell holes to permit proper jointing of pipes.  

- 411 -

Item # 9.



 

 
The pipe shall have uniform grade and support.  Final grading of trench bottoms shall be by 
hand tools to insure proper soil bearing for the pipe.  When in place, the pipe shall be checked 
for alignment and any section of the pipe found to have settled will be removed and re-laid at 
no cost to the Owner. 

 
Lay all sewer pipe, under all conditions in a dry trench, on an even, firm bed throughout the 
full length of the pipe, so that no uneven stress is placed on the pipe.  See Section 2.3.5 for 
bedding material requirements. 

 
Begin laying the pipe at the lowest point in the system and lay the pipe with bell end 
upstream.  Test each pipe for soundness, and then clean the interior and joint surfaces before 
lowering the pipe into the ground.  Lay the pipe in straight lines and on uniform grades 
between points where changes in alignment or grade are shown.  All types of pipe shall be 
joined in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations.  If flexible pipe is chosen, it 
shall be laid according to ASTM D-2321-74. 

 
Whenever possible, water mains shall be laid at least ten feet (10’), horizontally from any 
existing or proposed sewer.  Should local conditions prevent a lateral separation of 10 feet, a 
water main may be laid closer if: 
 

1) It is laid in a separate trench. 
2) It is laid in the same trench with the sewer, provided that the water main is located on 

an undisturbed earth shelf located on one side of the sewer. 
3) In either case the elevation of the bottom invert of the water main is at least eighteen 

inches (18”) above the top of the sewer.   
 

When it is impossible to obtain proper separation, both the water main and the sewer shall be 
constructed with watertight joints and pressure tested to assure water-tightness before 
backfilling. Pipe shall be located such that joints are a maximum distance from the water line. 

 
Where pipe is installed in encasements, suitable casing skids shall be attached to ensure proper 
line and grade.  Skids shall be fastened securely to the pipe with steel strappings, cables, or 
clamps, and shall be a minimum of 4 – 18” long and located at intervals necessary to prevent 
deflection of the carrier pipe. A minimum of 4 skid assemblies shall be used per encasement. 

 
2.3.4 CONNECTIONS 

 
The Contractor shall make all required connections to existing sewers, including manholes 
and service lines.  He shall carefully check the invert elevations of existing sewers to which 
connections are to be made to be sure they are free of debris and mud.  Connections shall be 
watertight and shall be tightly plugged at the ends of open lines. 

 
2.3.5 BACKFILLING OF SEWERS 

 
Backfilling of trenches shall be started after piping joints have been inspected and approved.  
The backfilling of sewer pipe shall conform to the Trench Detail and Pipe Bedding Detail 
provided in the Construction Plans. 

- 412 -

Item # 9.



 

 
 Trenching and excavation backfilling shall begin promptly after the pipe is laid. The bedding 

and haunching shall extend to the springline of the pipe. This material shall be brought up and 
tamped equally along each side of the pipe in such a manner as to avoid displacement of or 
damage to the pipe. Material required for bedding and haunching is covered under the 
standard details in the Construction Plans. The remainder of the backfill shall be as follows: 

 
Backfilling of the pipe trench where paving is not required, shall be accomplished by the 
placing of loose material free from large lumps, clods, rock or other objectionable material, 
which could cause large voids, in 12” lifts. The final grade of the backfill material shall be of 
sufficient height above the pipe to allow for settlement. As settlement occurs, additional 
blading shall be required to fill in settled areas as needed.  
 

In graveled areas, the top 6 inches of backfill shall be crushed stone placed the full width of 
the trench. As settlement occurs, additional blading and placement of crushed stone shall be 
required to fill in settled areas as needed. 

 
In areas to be paved, the backfill material (above bedding & haunching) shall be select 
granular material as specified in the Select Borrow Material Specification. Backfill shall be 
accomplished by placing and spreading material in lifts not to exceed 12” and compacted to 
95 % Standard Proctor Density. Backfill shall be performed to 15” below the paved surface. 
The remaining trench depth shall be filled with Crushed Stone as set out in the Granular 
Material (Crushed Stone) specification, and compacted to 95 % Standard Proctor Density. 
This material shall be maintained by blading as required for a smooth temporary riding 
surface. For final trench repair in asphalt areas, the crushed stone shall be excavated for a 
depth of 3 inches, or to a depth matching the surrounding asphalt (whichever is greatest) and 
filled with bituminous pavement and compacted. The finished surface shall be smooth and 
continuous with the existing asphalt. For final trench repair in concrete areas, the crushed 
stone shall be excavated for a depth of 6 inches and filled with concrete with a compressive 
strength of not less than 3000 lbs at 28 days. The finished surface shall be smooth and 
continuous with the existing asphalt. 
 
 
 
 
2.4  TRENCH STABILIZATION 

 
In areas where pipe trench subgrade is determined by the Engineer to be unstable, Contractor 
shall undercut to a depth as directed by the Engineer and backfill with crushed stone to the 
trench grade.  
 
2.5  MAINTENANCE OF STREETS AND TRENCHES 

 
The Contractor shall be required to maintain for one year all trenches that cross or run under 
rigid type paving, after the project is completed and accepted by the Owner.  Driveways, 
regardless of the type, shall be maintained for traffic at all times. 

 
2.6 CLEAN UP 

- 413 -

Item # 9.



 

 
The Contractor shall remove all silt, trash and debris from manholes and sewer as soon as pipe 
lying between manholes is completed and shall restore the site to a condition acceptable to the 
Owner.  Fertilizing and seeding shall be done in areas designated by the Engineer after 
settlement has occurred per the Erosion Control specification. 

 
2.7  INSPECTION 

 
When the sewer system is completed the Engineer, the Owner, and the Contractor or his 
representative shall inspect it.  All defective materials and workmanship shall be replaced at 
no cost to the Owner. 

 
The interior of the pipes shall be free from silt, trash, debris and other foreign material.  The 
pipe shall be checked for uniform alignment and grade by flashing a light from manhole to 
manhole or from manhole to cleanout.  If the view through the line does not show a vertical 
axis in full pipe diameter and the horizontal axis in at least ¾-pipe diameter, the pipe shall be 
removed and re-laid as necessary to make these requirements. 

 
If the flexible pipe is used, a deflection test will be performed.  The test shall be conducted 
after backfill and trench settlement (but not less than 30 days after installation) with an 
approved go/no-go 5% deflection testing mandrel.  The mandrel shall be pulled by hand 
without mechanical pulling devices. 

 
Test pipelines for infiltration/exfiltration using the air test method described in ASTM F1417, 
“Standard Testing Method for Installation Acceptance of Plastic Gravity Sewer Lines using 
Low-Pressure Air.” 

 
The air test procedure shall be as follows: 

1. Clean the section of pipe to be tested using an approved method. 
2. Plug all pipe outlets with suitable test plugs.  Brace each one securely. 
3. The seal at one end of the pipe section being tested shall have an orifice through 

which air can be injected into the pipe.  The air supply line shall contain an on-off 
air valve and a pressure gauge.  The pressure gauge shall have minimum division of 
0.10 psi and shall have an accuracy of +5%. 

4. If the pipe section being tested is submerged in water, insert a pipe probe, by boring 
or jetting, into the backfill material adjacent to the center of the pipe and determine 
the pressure in the probe when air passes slowly through it, which is the back 
pressure due to ground water submergence.  Increase all gauge pressures in the test 
by this amount.  Alternately, if the depth of pipe submergence below the ground 
water is known, gauge pressures may be adjusted by adding 0.433 psi for each foot 
of submergence. 

5. Add air slowly to the portion of the pipe installation under test until the internal air 
pressure is relaxed to 4.0 psi. 

6. Check exposed pipe and plugs for abnormal leakage by coating with a soap 
solution.  If any failures are observed, bleed off air and make necessary repairs. 

7. After an internal pressure of 4.0 psi is obtained, allow at least two minutes for air   
temperature to stabilize, adding only the amount of air required to maintain 
pressure. 

- 414 -

Item # 9.



 

8. After the two-minute period, disconnect air supply. 
9. When pressure decreases to 3.5 psi, start stopwatch.  Determine the time in seconds 

that is required for the internal air pressure to reach 2.5 psi.  These time intervals 
should then be compared with the time required by specification in the Low 
Pressure Air Sewer Test table in these specifications. 

10. If the time lapse is greater than that specified, the section undergoing test shall have 
passed, and the test may be discontinued at that time.  If the time is less than that 
specified, the line has not passed the test and the Contractor will be required to 
repair and prepare the line for retest. 

11. See following chart: 
 
 
 

- 415 -

Item # 9.



 

GRAVITY SEWER PIPE LEAKAGE TEST 
 
 
Pipe 

Diameter 
(in.) 

Minimu
m Time 
(min:sec) 

Length for 
Minimum 
Time (ft) 

Time for 
Longer 
Length 

(sec) 

          Specified Minimum for Length (L) Shown (min:sec)               

                                                    100 ft 150 ft 200 ft 250 ft 300 ft 350 ft 400 ft 450 ft 

4 3:46 597 .380 L 3:46 3:46 3:46 3:46 3:46 3:46 3:46 3:46 
6 5:40 398 .854 L 5:40 5:40 5:40 5:40 5:40 5:40 5:42 6:24 
8 7:34 298 1.520 L 7:34 7:34 7:34 7:34 7:36 8:52 10:08 11:24 

10 9:26 239 2.374 L 9:26 9:26 9:26 9:53 11:52 13:51 15:49 17:48 
12 11:20 199 3.418 L 11:20 11:20 11:24 14:15 17:05 19:56 22:47 25:38 
15 14:10 159 5.342 L 14:10 14:10 17:48 22:15 26:42 31:09 35:36 40:04 
18 17:00 133 7.692 L 17:00 19:13 25:38 32:03 38:27 44:52 51:16 57:41 
21 19:50 114 10.470 L 19:50 26:10 34:54 43:37 52:21 61:00 69:48 78:31 
24 22:40 99 13.674 L 22:47 34:11 45:34 56:58 68:22 79:46 91:10 102:33 
27 25:30 88 17.306 L 28:51 43:16 57:41 72:07 86:32 100:57 115:22 129:48 
30 28:20 80 21.366 L 35:37 53:25 71:13 89:02 106:50 124:38 142:26 160:15 
33 31:10 72 25.852 L 43:05 64:38 86:10 107:43 129:16 150:43 172:21 193:53 
36 34:00 66 30.768 L 51:17 76:55 102:34 128:12 153:50 179:29 205:07 230:46 
42 39:48 57 41.883 L 69:48 104:42 139:37 174:30 209:24 244:19 279:13 314:07 
48 45:34 50 54.705 L 91:10 136:45 182:21 227:55 273:31 319:06 364:42 410:17 

            
 
 
SPECIFICATION TIME REQUIRED FOR A 1.0 PSIG PRESSURE DROP FOR SIZE AND 
LENGTH OF PIPE INDICATED FOR Q = 0.0015, WHERE Q IS THE ALLOWABLE 
LEAKAGE RATE IN CU. FT./MIN/FT2 OF INSIDE SURFACE AREA OF PIPE. 
 
 
2.8   FLUSHING 
 

The completed gravity sewer lines shall be free of all mud, siltation, and other foreign matter 
deposited or collected during construction.  The lines shall be flushed prior to testing.  
Flushing shall be started at the upstream end of the completed system and shall not be 
permitted to enter into the system but shall be collected and disposed of in an approved 
manner.  Also mud and other solids shall be similarly collected and disposed of. 

 
 
 
 

- 416 -

Item # 9.



 

2.9   METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 

Sewer pipe line lengths shall be measured from the inside wall of the manhole, with the depth 
to be measured from existing grade to the pipe invert. 

 
When cutting paved areas, Crushed Stone backfill, Select Borrow Material, and Resurfacing 
Material will be measured in place, and paid for at the contract unit price. 

 
Trench stabilization shall be measured in cubic yards, and shall be based on the actual 
dimensions (depth, trench pay width, and length) excavated. 

  
2.10  BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 

Sewer Pipe Lines shall be paid for at the bid price per linear foot, and according to size.  
Material used for making repairs to paved surfaces shall be field measured when installed.  
The Contractor’s bid price shall be full compensation for completing the work as specified.  

 
Payment will be made under: 

  
 Sewer Pipe Line – per LF 
 Crushed Stone – per CuYd 
 Select Borrow Material – per CuYd 
 Bituminous Resurfacing – per SqYd 
 Concrete Resurfacing – per SqYd 
 
   
PART 3 - MANHOLES 
 
3.1  SCOPE 
 

This specification includes materials, equipment, and work necessary to construct sanitary 
sewer manholes at the depth, grade and location indicated on the drawings. 

 
3.2  MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Manholes shall be poured-in-place concrete or precast concrete manholes as indicated on the 
construction drawings.  Either type material may be selected and shall be used throughout the 
project. 
Precast manhole sections shall conform to ASTM Specification C-478.  Where required, the 
Contractor shall furnish laboratory test reports for precast sections used, showing that they 
conform to all requirements of these specifications. 

 
Mortar for masonry in sewer structures shall be a 1:3 cement-lime mix, provided that hydrated 
lime may be substituted for not to exceed 10 per cent, by weight of the cement. 

 
Manholes in non-traffic areas shall have a cast iron rim and cover assembly which meets the 
requirements of AWWA A-48.  The cover shall have two non-penetrating pick holes and shall 
not be sealed.  The casting shall be gray iron casting, free from defects affecting their strength 

- 417 -

Item # 9.



 

and appearance.  The clear opening shall be a minimum of twenty-one inches (21") in 
diameter and the cover and ring shall be machined to fit snug and not rattle. 

 
Street manholes (i.e., manholes in roadways subject to vehicular traffic) shall be Neenah 
Pattern R-1765 or equal, weighing approximately 365 pounds.  The casting shall be gray iron 
casting, free from defects affecting their strength and appearance.  The clear opening shall be a 
minimum of twenty-one inches (21") in diameter and the cover and ring shall be machined to 
fit snug and not rattle. 

 
The manhole steps shall be made of injection molded copolymer polypropylene encapsulating 
a 1/2” diameter grade 60 steel reinforcing rod.  The steps shall be of such cross-sectional area 
and configuration that they will withstand a single concentrated live load of 300 pounds.   

 
They shall be in conformance with ASTM Standard C-478.  Manhole steps shall be as 
manufactured by M.A. Industries, Inc., Peachtree City, GA, Press Seal Gasket Corp., or equal. 

 
Rubber gaskets shall be “O”-Ring or flat ring as manufactured by Press Seal Gasket Corp., 
Fort Wayne, IN; Hamilton-Kent Manufacturing Co., or equal, and shall conform to the 
requirements of the latest edition of ASTM Designation C-443.  Lubricants shall be as 
recommended by the gasket manufacturer. 

 
Manhole pipe seal gaskets for precast manhole units shall be “Kor-N-Seal” as manufactured 
by Kor-N-Seal Co., Milford, NH; “PSX” by Press Seal Gasket Corp., or equal. 

 
Preformed joint compound shall be “EZ Stik” as manufactured by Concrete Products Supply 
Co., Fort Wayne, IN; “Kent Seal No. 2”’; or equal.  Primer, when required for use with the 
preformed joint compound, shall be as recommended by the manufacturer of the preformed 
joint compound.  Install joint compound according to the manufacturer’s instruction. 

 
Sealer compound shall be “Drycon” as manufactured by IPA Systems, Inc., Philadelphia, PA; 
Tamm’s “Tamoseal”; or equal.  Sealer shall be field applied after construction. 

 
Cold joint bonding agent shall be “Octoblen” as manufactured by IPA Systems, Inc.,  
Philadelphia, PA; “Tamm’s Tammsbond”; or equal. 

 
Patching material shall be “Octocrete” as manufactured by IPA Systems, Inc.,  Philadelphia, 
PA; “Tamm’s Speed Crete Blue Line”; or equal. 

 
 
 
 
3.3  MANHOLE CONSTRUCTION 
 

Precast concrete sections shall be laid so that the axis of the manhole is vertical, and shall be 
constructed in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations. 

 

- 418 -

Item # 9.



 

The standard sizes for manhole bottoms, as shown on the plans, are based on a soil bearing 
pressure of 2000 psf; should a more yielding soil be encountered, the base shall be stabilized 
with sufficient bedding of coarse crushed stone to obtain the required bearing. 

 
Construct precast manholes as shown on the plans of precast units with a concrete bottom.  
Excavate hole and set bottom unit, leveling carefully.  Make joints between sections using 
preformed joint compound.  Joints shall be watertight.  Fit manhole cover frames in place on 
an adequate grout or grout beds and bricks riser.  Joints in brick risers shall not exceed 5/8” in 
thickness.  Plaster the brick exterior surface with a coat of plaster not less than 1/2” thick.  For 
pipe 30” in diameter and less make connection to manholes using manhole pipe seal gaskets. 

 
Install the manhole steps at 16” o.c. vertically.   The deepest step shall be located not more 
than 24” above the manhole invert. 

 
Install the cast iron frames and covers to the grade shown on the plans, set in a grout bed.  Lap 
grout up on ring vertical to one inch (1”) from the top.  In streets, set the manhole covers to 
one inch (maximum) above the street grade parallel to the plane of the street. 

 
Wherever concrete is applied to an existing concrete or masonry surface, apply a cold joint 
bonding agent between the surfaces according to the manufacturer’s instructions. 

 
Where necessary to fill voids, repair breaks, make patches, etc., clean and moisten the surfaces 
and use a suitable combination of patching agent and cold joint bonding agent with grout or 
concrete.  The use of brick or chunks of concrete will not be permitted. 

 
All visible leaks in manhole bottoms, barrels, and connections shall be stopped. 

 
Manhole walls shall be sealed against leaking by the application, on the complete interior and 
exterior surfaces, of a waterproofing coat.  Precast manholes shall also be sealed at ring joints.  
Pipe connections shall have a flexible connector for waterproofing; after pipe connections are 
made the flexible connector shall be grouted with non-shrink grout. 

 
The cast iron rings and covers shall be set at the exact finish grade indicated on the drawings.  
Manholes located out of yards shall extend to a minimum of 2 feet above the finished ground 
surface unless otherwise indicated on the plans.  Steps shall be set inside the manholes at 
sixteen inches (16") on center.  
 
The Contractor shall construct the manhole flow channels of concrete, of semi-circular section 
conforming to the inside diameter of the connection sewers.  The Contractor shall provide 
such channels for all connection sewers to each manhole.  Drop inlets shall be constructed as 
an integral part of the manhole as construction progresses. 

 
No backfilling of manhole excavation, above the top of the interior concrete fill, shall be 
performed until the waterproof coating has been cured for at least twenty-four hours and has 
been inspected and approved by the Engineer.  All defective coverage and leaks shall be 
corrected and improved as directed prior to backfilling. 

 

- 419 -

Item # 9.



 

As the backfill material is placed around the manhole it shall be carefully tamped to prevent 
excessive settlement. 

 
3.4   MANHOLE ABANDONMENT: Contractor shall plug all pipes entering and existing the   

manhole with concrete.  Then remove the cone section of the manhole and fill/compact with 
select backfill to the existing ground level. 

 
3.5   BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Sewer Manholes and Manhole Abandonment shall be paid for at 

the bid price per each, per size, which price shall be full compensation for completing the 
work as specified.  

 
Payment will be made under: 

 48” Manholes – per EA 
  Abandon Existing MH – per EA 
 
 
 
 
 

- 420 -

Item # 9.



 

ROCK RIPRAP 
 
1. DESCRIPTION: This work shall consist of furnishing and placing a protective covering of 

rock riprap where shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. 
  
2.    MATERIALS:  Aggregate for loose riprap shall consist of unhewn quarry stone as nearly 

rectangular in section as is practicable. The stone shall be dense, free of clay or shale seams, 
resistant to the action of air and water, and suitable in all other respects for the purpose 
intended. 
 
The gradation of the Rock Riprap shall be as follows: 
 
   Stone   Cumulative Percent 
  Weight   Lighter By Weight 
    200    100 
     80   50-85 
     40   15-50 
     10    0-15 
 
Geotextile fabric for use under riprap shall be Type V in accordance with Section 714.13.5 of 
the latest edition of the Mississippi Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.  

 
3.    CONSTRUCTION:  Prior to the placement of the rock riprap, the subgrade surface shall be 

shaped to the lines and grades indicated on the plans, or as directed and shall be approved by 
the Engineer or his representative. The rock riprap shall be installed to the full course 
thickness in one operation and in such a manner as to avoid serious displacement of the 
underlying materials. The rock riprap shall be placed in a manner that will ensure that the 
riprap in-place shall be reasonably homogenous with the larger rocks uniformly distributed 
and firmly in contact one to another with the smaller rocks and spalls filling the voids between 
the larger rocks. 

 
Dumping of the riprap onto the placement surface will not be allowed. Orange peel buckets, 
gradalls or other similar approved equipment shall be used in placement of the rock riprap and 
this equipment shall be operated so that the maximum drop of the rock onto the placement 
area is 3 feet. 
 
Geotextile fabric shall be installed in accordance with Section 815 of the Mississippi Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. 

 
4.    REMOVAL AND RESETTING OF EXISTING RIPRAP:  Existing riprap that is noted for 

removal shall be reset in areas designated for proposed rip rap. Removed riprap shall be 
carefully stockpiled on site and cleaned of any and all dirt and debris accumulation prior to 
resetting. Care shall be taken during removal and cleaning operations to ensure that materials 
do not escape the project limits through siltation or getting deposited in ditches or other water 
flow areas. Once the riprap is satisfactorily cleaned it may be placed in areas to receive riprap. 
Reset riprap shall be placed as set out above for new riprap and may be placed in combination 
with the new riprap. Geotextile fabric is required in all areas to receive riprap. 

  

- 421 -

Item # 9.



 

5.    BASIS OF PAYMENT:  Rock Riprap shall be paid for at the contract unit price per ton by 
actual weight. The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer, a statement-of-delivery ticket 
(Mississippi State Bureau of Weights and Measures certified scale) showing the weight to the 
nearest 0.1 ton for computing actual weight of placed and approved Rock Riprap. Such 
payment shall be considered full compensation for all materials, labor, equipment and 
incidentals necessary for completing the work as specified. Removal and resetting of riprap 
will be measured and paid for by the square yard of existing riprap area prior to removal. 
Geotextile fabric for use under riprap will not be paid for separately but will be included in the 
bid price for Rock Riprap. 
 

Payment will be made under: 
 

Rock Riprap (Size 200) – per TON 
       

- 422 -

Item # 9.



 

  
RECORD DRAWINGS 

 
1.   DESCRIPTION:  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining one (1) set of record or 

“as-built” drawings documenting any changes or additions to the plans and specifications, as 
well as the locations of all utility service connections.  These record drawings shall be returned 
to the Engineer as part of the project closeout procedures. 

 
No separate payment will be made for Record Drawings.  

 
 

- 423 -

Item # 9.



- 424 -

Item # 9.



- 425 -

Item # 9.



Paul Smithey Construction Company, lnc.

PO Box 357
Belden, MS 38826

Certificate of Responsibility Number

04370-MC

Bid To: City of Tupelo
71 East Troy Street
Tupelo, MS 38802

Bid For: Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
Tupelo, MS
(BlD # 2023-os9PW)

- 426 -

Item # 9.



MEDICAT PARK CIRCLE PIPE RETLACEI\/{ENT
crrY oF TTIPELO, MTSSTSSIPPT

BXDBOND

Knswalimenbytlresepre$s{rts,thatwe-theuadersigrg6, Paul smithey.c.onstructionco'' Inc' - , ,

as Principal. *i The Gray Casualty & Surety Company

as Surery. are hereby held and lirnl bourrd unto THEI CITY OF TUPELO, MI$SKSIPPL as OWNER in the Perul
q.m of Five percent o{ amount bide (5%)--.,. -- for the PaYrnent of which,

*"tt ar.,O t uty to U" made, rrye hereby jointly and severally bind ourselveq successors and assigns.

Signed, lhis day of December ?"03!-.

The Coudition of the abovc obligation is such that rvhereas the Principle has submitted to THE CITY OF TL?ELO,
MISSISSIPPI, a certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part of to enter into conlract in writing, tbr the

construction of:

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT

Now, therefore,

(a) If said BID shall be rejected. or in the altemate,
(b) If said BID shall be accepted and the Principle shall execute and deliver a contract in the Form

of Contracr afrached hereto (ploperty completed in accordance with said BtD) and shall furnish

a bond for his lbithtll perfbrmance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons

performing labor or fumishing materials in connection there,"vith, and shall in all other respects

perform the agreement created by the acceptancc of said B I D,

then this 6bligation shali be void, othenvise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood

and agreed thal the liabililv of rhe Surety for an.v and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount

olthis obligation as herein stated.

The Surety. for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in

no tvay impaired or affected b-v- any extension of the time within which the OWNER ma1'' accept such BID; and said

Suret).- does hereby waive notice of any such extension.

In Witness r.r,hereof, the Principal and the Surety have hereuntu set their hands and seals, and such of'them as are

corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto afllxed and these presents to be signed by their proper

o{.tjcers. the dav and year first set lorth above.
-4 i '4*i 

--: Paul Smithey Construction Co., lnc.

(L.s.)

The Gray Casuqllyl& rsulely gernpsny_
(.Surety)

By:
Cooper Vtl. Permenter, Attorney-in-FacVMS Resident Agent

IMPORTA]\t - Surory companies exeqrting bonds must appear on the Treasury Departrnent's most current

list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is

located.

[\I,

- 427 -

Item # 9.



State ofLouisiana
SS.

Parish ofJefferson
On this 4e day ofNovember,2022,before me, aNotary Public, personally appeared Michael T. Gray, President of The Gray Insurance
Company, and Cullen S. Piske, President of The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, personally known to me, being duly swom, acknowledged
that they signed the above Power of Attomey and affixed the seals of the companies as officers of, and acknowledged said instrument to be the
voluntary act and deed, oftheir companies.

Orleans Parish, Louisiana

U_ ,', r/*rHitiirul p efrU tfr,"t-
111 \,v! s il -
I ll .,v' lj

Leigh Anne Henican
Notary Public, Parish of Orleans State of Louisiana
My Commission is for Life

I, Mark S. Manguno, Secretary of The Gray lnsurance Company, do hereby certifii that the above and forgoing is a true and correct copy of a
Power of Attorney given by the companies, which is still in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and
affixed the seals ofthe Company this 20th day of Decembet , 2o2g

{bfi/4*r,o#
I, Leigh Anne Henican, Secretary of The Gray Casualty & Surety Company , do hereby certifi that the above and forgoing is a true and correct
copy of a Power of Attorney given by the companies, which is still in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have-set my hand
and affxed the seals of the Company this 20th day of December

Harris Madden Powell Stallings and Brown
12/12/2023 14:54 1775592020913

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY
THE GRAY CASUALTY & SURETY COMPANY

Bond Number: Bid Bond

GENERAL POWER OT' ATTORNEY

Principal: Paul Smithey Construction Co., Inc.

Project: Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, TIIAT The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, corporations duly
organized and existing under the laws of Louisian4 and having their principal offices in Metairie, Louisian4 do hereby make, constitute, and
appoint: Joseph Madden III, Richard L. Powell, Richard L. Powell Jr., Mark E. Harris, Keith W. Brown, Tona Jo Hunter, Cooper W.
Permenter, Daniel B. Dickens, and Ric Stallings of Memphis, Tennessee jointly and severally on behalf of each of the Companies named
above its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for and on its behalf and as its deed, bonds, or other writings
obligatory in the nafure of a bond, as suety, contracts of suretyship as are or may be required or permitted by law, regulation, contract or otherwise,
provided that no bond or undertaking or contract of suretyship executed under this authority shall exceed the amount of $25,000,000.00.

This Power of Attomey is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolutions adopted by the Boards of
Directors of both The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company at meetings duly called and held on the 26ff day of
June, 2003.

"RESOLVED, that the President, Executive Vice President, any Vice President, or the Secretary be and each or any ofthem hereby is authorized to
execute a power of Attorney qualifying the attorney named in the given Power of Attorney to execute on behalf of the Company bonds,
undertakings, and all contracts ofsurety, and that each or any ofthem is hereby authorized to attest to the execution ofsuch Power ofAttorney, and
to attach the seal of the Company; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of such officers and the seal of the Company may be affixed to any such Power of Attorney or to any
certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such Power of Attomey or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be
binding upon the Company now and in the future when so affrxed with regard to any bond, undertaking or contract of surety to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company have caused their olficial seals to be hereinto
affixed, and these presents to be signed by their authorized officers this 4th day ofNovember, 2022.

%;/tZ€2,
Michael T. Gray

President
The Gray Insurance Company

Cullen S. Piske
President

The Gray Casualty & Surety Company

Lei;h A.rre i-ie nicari
Notery Pubtic

Notary lD No.92653

S-ry- $ Lm*'t Ui eur te/'--

,2023

- 428 -

Item # 9.



MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI

BrD PROPOSAL (# 2023-0s9P!Y)

Proposal of (hereinafter called "BIDDE R"),

organized and of the'State of Mississippi, doing business as Q 0 a-Qltlia*_:

To the CITY OF TUPEI.O, MISSISSIPPI. (hereinafter called "OWNER").

In compliance with yoi-r Adverlisement for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes to perform all WORK for

MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT within the tirne set forlh herein. and at the prices stated

below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the

CONTRACT DOCUMET.T"TS of which tlris Proposal is a part.

By submission of this BID. each BIDDER ceftifies. and in the case of a.loint BID, each pafty thereto

cerlifles as to his own organization, that this BID has been arrived at independently, without consultation,

comrnunication. or agreetnent as to any rxatter relating to this BID with any other BIDDER or with any

corrpetitor.

BIDDER hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date specified in the NOTICE

TO PROCEED and to fully cornplete the project rvithin 60 consecutive calenclar days. BIDDER further
agrees to pay as liquidated damages, the sum of $5Q0 tbr each working day after applicable completion
dates per each phase of wor* as provided in the General Conditions.

BIDDER acknowiedges receipt of the following ADDENDUM:

*lnsefi "a corporation". "a partnerslrip", or "an individual" as applicable

- 429 -

Item # 9.



MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE REPLACEMENT
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSNSIPPI

BrD PROPOSAL (# 2023-os9PW )

The BIDDER agrees to perform all WORK for the construction of MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE PIPE

REpLACEMENT as described in the CONTRACT DOCUN.4ENTS and shown on the Construction Plans

fbr the following Unit Prices within the times specif-ied in the Contract Agreement subsequent to the date

specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED.

CONTRAC'T'_ MED1CAL PAI{K C{RCLE PIPE REPLACIMENT
UNIT PRICE IN TOTAL

ITEM DESCRIPTION OUANTITY \4iOITDS AND FIGURES PRICE

2.

3.

1. Nlobilization

Clearing and Grubbing

Removal of Concrete Pavement

Removal and Sah,age of
Ilusiness Sign

Erosion Control Measures

23 tt30.00
f, unV'fh r u -th o *s 

^ 
v fo u r

f)@ont

W
t|@los

aaL Ne Cce'}5l

5e. n
ftf,h Ttso Dollorc e*
Ninl*r,a u Js

s 23,*3o.oo

s*J9315_A1

s_)tr8l3.r0

s q.55s.a5

s-2,23A&

1L.S.

1 L.S.

260 S.Y.

3 Each

'uL
?;lln
ca.6

4. Removal o1'Concrete Curb 163 L. l-.

5. Removal of Pipe (AIl 'Il'pe) 299 L. F .

Removal o1'Drainage Structures 3 Each

7. Ilemoval of Server Line 140 t.. F. t q.?g
)i.P*ic* Dollcrs qrut;*grt'.Doll"r, ?t

9. 1 L.S.

s_qseau

s 1Qfi'|,So

W$JtilE,

- 430 -

Item # 9.



13.

14.

I 0. Structure Excavalion

IL SelectBorrou,Material

12. Crushed Stone

[i8"x54" Concrete
Arch Pipe

88''x5,1" Concretc
Flaled Flnd Section

15. 88"x5.1'' f leadu,all

16. Slotted Inlet

17. Junction Box'nvith
Grate Inlet

18. Concrete Pal'ins

19. Concrete Curb

20. Seu,er Manhole

8" [)uctile Iron
Server Pipe

22. Solid Sodding

23. 200# Rock Rip Rap

i,075 c.Y. t0.b{

1.100 c.Y.

200 c.Y.

280 r,.F.

1 EA.

I EA.

I EA.

I EA.

270 S.Y.

161 L.F.

2 EA.

27. Ll
finerilSe&*Dallm an)

$ 30.4 11. oo

$ ,3 $sb.oo

i''tYihL&L;-to

$e fc *co', bolleg .rA'wi5_1_+tLe
s$)$2,5a

s-SE:sor

21. I l0 L.F.

2.000 s.Y.

'ffi"e,$-ll4^!e

n_Jlt€.30

nt nh* ErE* ee*

Fi
0t

125'l-on

s-A52^n

213oo.oo
{d.rtv OAe1iAouiuU-firtc
Mvb sAfil!:oo

s2b2l.,;0

W.q tfrrdll+o-a)W s2l$Lto.oo

- 431 -

Item # 9.



21. ConstructionFencins 550 L.F, ,, 33
s*Q331,s2

25. Maintenance of Trafflc 1 L.S.

TOTAL OF BID rTEMS (1-25)

s roqr ffu
(TOTAL rN WORDS) a^L Fivc (-e r.zB

NOTE: BIDS shall include sales tax and a[1 other applicable taxes and fees.

ln case of discrepancies between unit price words and figures, words shall govern. In the case of
discrepancies between tlre total price listed and the total price computed using Quantity multiplied by Unit

Price (in words). the computed price as tabulated by the Engineer shall govern in determining the lowest

base bid.

Bidder agrees that Bids may not be withdrawn u,ithin ninety (90) days after the actual date of the opening

thereof. Should there be reasons why the contract cannot be awarded within the specif ied period; the time

may be extended by mutual agreement between the Owner and the Bidder.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Con-rpany

Signature

Title

Address Qo,Brp srl
Fn&t rr,, .< ? {-2/

id is by a Corporation)

ll. lqa, soEW*-uru*
fr+\ u,-ts

s vlbzfloS.os

?0,,|r5, ',lh.,t 0 ,f.1.o., Trt,

q;:T-

- 432 -

Item # 9.



BYRD ANTI-LOBBYII{G
AMENDMENT

Contractors rvho apply or bid for an award of S100,000 or more shall file the required

certification. Each tier certifies to tlre tier above that it will not and has not used Federal

appropriated funs to pay any person or organization tbr influencing or attempting to influence

an'ottcer or employee of anv agency, a Member of Congress. officer or employee of
Congress, or an enrployee of a Member of Congress in connection rvith obtaining any Federal

contract" grant, or any other a\4/ard covered by 31 U.S.C.$ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose

any lobbying with non-Federal fbnds that takes place in connection r.vith obtaining any Federal

award. Such disclosures are forrvarded tiom tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn rvill
forward the certification (s) to the awarding agency.

APPENiDX A, 44 C.F"R.I'ART 18 _ CERTIFICATION ITEGARDING
LOBBYING - REQUIRED FOR CONTRACTS OVER $100,000

Certification lor Contracts. Grants, Loans. and Cooperative Agreements

The ur-rdersigned certifies. to the best of his or her knou4edge and beliel. that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on

behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to
intluence an officer or employee of an agency. a Member ol' Oongress, an

ofllcer or employee of Congress. or an enrployee of a Member of Congress

in connection witl, the awarding of any Federal contract. the making of any

Fecleral grant, the rnaking of any Federal loan, the entering into of any

cooperative agreement. and the extension. continuation, renewal.

amendment. or modit'ication of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or

cooperative agreement.

Z. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have be en paid or will be

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

employee of any agenc,v, a Member of Congress, an c-rfficer or enrployee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection w-ith this

Federal contract. grant, loan, or cooperative agreentent, the undersigned

shall cornplete and submit Standard Fonn- LLL, "I)isclosure Fonn to Report
Lobbying," in accordance with its instrurctions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be

included in the alvard docurnents for all subaw'ards at all tiers (including
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreernents) and that alI subrecipients shall ceftify and disclose accordingly.

Tl-ris certification is a nraterial representation of fact upon which reliance u,as placed i,vhen this

transaction \,vas made or enterecl into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite fbr
rnaking or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31" U'S. Code. Any

person who fails to fi1e the required certification shall be subject to a civiI penalty of not less

than
- 433 -

Item # 9.



Sl 0.000 and not more than S100,000 lor each such failure.

The ContractorfZ C*s). ta.T+certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy

of each statement of its cdrtification and disclosure. if any. in adilition. the Contractor

understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 LJ.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies

fbr False Claims an<l Statenrents, apply to this certiflcation and disclosure, if an-v.

l1-htt- Lg
Date

-ontraitor' 
s Authori zed Offi ci al

Tit]e of Contractor's Authbrized Official

- 434 -

Item # 9.



Mandatorl,Addendum to
AllCity of Tupelo Contracts
October 28.2022

The City of Tupelo (TUPELO), despite any contrary provision contained in any contract

to which TIJPELO is a party, does not waive any rights, benefits, or prohibitions that may be

provided under any larv, statute(s), regulation(s). or poticies. All provisions to the contrar,v in

any contact to which "fUPELO is a party'are hereby null, void and deleted. Not intended to be

an exhaustive list, the fbllowing are eramples of such matters and shallbe exceptions to an,v

contrary provision(s) in any contract to u'hich T'UPELO is a party.

I. TUPELO does not indemnily or hold harmless any pafiy'
Miss. Const. Art, 4, $ 100; Miss AG Op.. Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG

Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 2002).

2. TUPELO does not tnake any warrant!.
Miss. Const. Art. 4, $ 

.l00; 
Miss AG Op', Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG

Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 2002).

3. TUPELO does not waive an.v claim; past, present. or litture'
Miss. Const. Art.4. $ 100; Miss AG Op;Clark (JLrne 7, 2002); Miss. AG

Op.. Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002).

1. 'ILJPELO cloes not u'aive its sovereign immunity. TijPELO shall only be

responsible fbr liability resulting frorn the aLltions of its officers. agents, and

employees acting within the course ancl scope of their official duties.

Miss. Code Ann. $ 1 l -46-1, et seq.

5. TIJPELO does not waive its Constitutional Eleventh (l1th) Amendment

immunitv.
11.S. Const. Amend. XI.

6. TUPELO does not agree to the application of lalvs of another state.

U.S. Const. amend XI; Miss. Code Ann. 1 I -l 1-3; Miss. Code Ann. I 1-45-

1; City of Jockson v. lfallace,l96 So. 223 (1940)

7 . TUPELO does not limit the tort liability of another party to the amount of the

contract or to any other set amount'
Miss. Const. Art. 4, $ 100; Miss AC Op.. Clark (Jr"rne 7, 20A4; Miss. AG

Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18.2002);Miss. AG Op', Hathom (May 28, 1992):

Miss. AG Op.. Davis (March 3. 1993).

8. 1'UPELO cloes not agree to waive warranties of merchantability. fitness for a

particular purpose, or any common larv rvarranties to which TLJPELO is entitled.

Miss. Const. Art .1, $ 100; Miss Code Ann. $ 75-2-719; Miss. AG Op."

Clark (June 7,2002): Miss. AC Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18' 2002).

- 435 -

Item # 9.



9.

10.

TUPELO does not agree that a party may represent. prosecllte or defend legal
actions in the name of TUPELO.

TUPELO may not and does not agree to the payment of attorney fees of a
"prevailing pafiy" r"rnless specifically authorized by statute. E.g. Miss. Code

Aruro. $ 3 1-7-309 (1972 as amended) payment of interest on outstanding invoice.
Miss AG Op.. Nowak.2009 WL 367665 (Miss.A.G.).

Provisions that limit the time for TUPELO to pursue legal actions are deleted and

void.
Miss. Const . Art. 4, $ 104; Miss. Const. Art. 4, $ 100; Miss Code Ann. $

l5-l-5; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7,2002); Miss. AC Op.. Chamberlin
(Oct, 18,2002).

TUPEI-O does not agree to submit to binding arbitration.
Miss. AG Op.. Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18,

2002).

I'UPEI-O will make payments for all amollnts owed under a contract agreement in

accordance with state larv.
Miss. Code Ann. $ 31-7-305.

TTJPELO advises fur all contracts entered into, the provisions of the contract
which will contain the commodities pLrrchased or the persona[ or professional
services provided, tlie price to be paid. and the term of the contract shall not be

deemed to be a trade secret or conlidential commerciai or financial information,
and shall be available for examination, copying or reprodrtction.

Miss. Code $ 25-61-9 (7).

TUPELO must comply with Mississippi public records larv. Itecords fi-rrnished to
public bodies by third parties which contain trade secrets or confidential
commercial or financial infotmation shall not be subject to inspection.
examination, copying or reproduction until notice to saiclthird parties has been

given, but such records shall be released within a reasonable period of time unless

the said third parties shall have obtained a court order protecting such records as

confldential.
Miss. Code $ 25-61-9 (l).

Data processing software obtained by TLJPEI,O under a licensing agreement that
prohibits its disclosure and which software is a trade secret as defined in Miss.
Code Section 75-26-3, and data processing softrvare produced by a public body
rvhich is sensitive must not be subject to inspection, copying or reproduction
under Mississippi public records larv. "sensitive" means only those portions of
data processing sottware. including the specifications and documentation, used to:
(a) Collect. process. store, and retrieve information which is exempt; (b) Control

11.

12.

li.

14.

15.

16.

- 436 -

Item # 9.



17.

and direct access authorizations and securify measures fbr automated systems; (c)

Collect, process, store, and retrieve infbrmation disclosure of which rvould require

a significant intrusion into the business of the public body.

TUPELO is prohibited from binding its successors in office to contracts,

including leases, rvhich result in taking away the successors' rights and powers

conferred by larv, unless there is specific statutory authority to enter into such

contract. In the absence ofspecific statutory authority, such contracts are

voidable by the successors in office.
MS AC Ops.. Barton (January 8.2014) and Barton (.luly. 15.2011)(both
relying on BiloxiFirefighters Assoc. v. City of Biloxi, 810 So.2d 589

(Miss. 2402).

TUPELO does not have the power to grant to any person. firm or corporation any

exclusive fianchise or any exclusive right to use or occupy the streets, highrvays,

bridges, or public places in such municipality for any purpose. TtiPELO cannot

grant, rener,v" or extend any such franchise. privilege or right. rvithout

corxpensation or fbr any longer period than twenty-five years.

Nliss. Code Anno. 2l'27-1

All contracts must be approved by the Cit1, 6'o,,n.il o1'TUPELO, sulrject to the

veto po\4,er of the Mayor o1'TUPELO.
MS AC Ops. 2012-00013

All payrnents shall be made by TLJPEI,O within fbrt1,-tive (,15) days of invoice,

unless disputed. In the case of a bona fide dispute, TLIPELO shall pay only the

amount of tlie invoice not disputed. Interest shall be paid at a rate of one and one-

half percent (1-%%) per month or portionthereof on the ur,paid balance from the

expiration of such forty-five-day period until such time as the warrant or check is

mailed or otherwise delivered to the vendor.
Miss. Code Anno. $3 I -7-305 ( 1972 as arnended)

Acknowledged and agreed:

18.

19.

20.

CITY
Date: Date: /2-20'23

- 437 -

Item # 9.



- 438 -

Item # 9.



- 439 -

Item # 9.



- 440 -

Item # 9.



- 441 -

Item # 9.



- 442 -

Item # 9.



- 443 -

Item # 9.



- 444 -

Item # 9.



- 445 -

Item # 9.



- 446 -

Item # 9.



- 447 -

Item # 9.



- 448 -

Item # 9.



- 449 -

Item # 9.



- 450 -

Item # 9.



- 451 -

Item # 9.



- 452 -

Item # 9.



- 453 -

Item # 9.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE December 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO REJECT BID # 2023-052WL – WEST 

JACKSON STREET (MADISON TO FRONT) OVERHEAD TO 

UNDERGROUND RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC UTILITIES AND/OR 

STREET LIGHTING FACILITIES JT  
  

 

Request:  

 

I recommend that you reject the following bid on Tuesday, January 2, 2024: 

 

Bid No. 2023-052WL – West Jackson Street (Madison to Front) - Overhead to Underground 

Relocation of Electric Utilities and/or Street Lighting Facilities – The sole bidder on this 

project, Reinhold Electric, did not have a Certificate of Responsibility in Mississippi at the time 

of the bid opening. Therefore, we are not able to accept their bid proposal. 

 

 

 

 
 

- 454 -

Item # 10.



- 455 -

Item # 10.



- 456 -

Item # 10.



- 457 -

Item # 10.



- 458 -

Item # 10.



- 459 -

Item # 10.



- 460 -

Item # 10.



- 461 -

Item # 10.



- 462 -

Item # 10.



- 463 -

Item # 10.



- 464 -

Item # 10.



- 465 -

Item # 10.



- 466 -

Item # 10.



- 467 -

Item # 10.



- 468 -

Item # 10.



- 469 -

Item # 10.



- 470 -

Item # 10.



- 471 -

Item # 10.



- 472 -

Item # 10.



- 473 -

Item # 10.



- 474 -

Item # 10.



- 475 -

Item # 10.



- 476 -

Item # 10.



- 477 -

Item # 10.



- 478 -

Item # 10.



- 479 -

Item # 10.



- 480 -

Item # 10.



- 481 -

Item # 10.



- 482 -

Item # 10.



- 483 -

Item # 10.



- 484 -

Item # 10.



- 485 -

Item # 10.



- 486 -

Item # 10.



- 487 -

Item # 10.



- 488 -

Item # 10.



- 489 -

Item # 10.



- 490 -

Item # 10.



- 491 -

Item # 10.



- 492 -

Item # 10.



- 493 -

Item # 10.



- 494 -

Item # 10.



- 495 -

Item # 10.



- 496 -

Item # 10.



- 497 -

Item # 10.



- 498 -

Item # 10.



- 499 -

Item # 10.



- 500 -

Item # 10.



- 501 -

Item # 10.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE December 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER # 1 FOR THE 

CENTRAL PUMPING STATION MODIFICATIONS (BID NO. 2023-040WL) 

JT  
  

 

Request:  

Approval of the attached change order: 

 

Central Pumping Station Modifications – Change Order # 1 – This change order shows a net 

decrease of $500,000.00 to modify the wet well from a square structure to a round structure. This 

modification reduces the need for shoring during construction and increases safety and efficiency 

for the contractor and saves money for the owner. This change order brings the new contract 

amount to $11,847,000.00.00 without adding any days to the substantial completion date. 

 

- 502 -

Item # 11.



- 503 -

Item # 11.


	Top
	Item # 1.	COU:MINUTES DECEMBER 19, 2023 JAN 2024
	ITEM-Staff-869a6df1513f4edeb209dfc0a8ad61f4 - 2023-12-27T125059.811 - Copy
	12-19-2023 Regular Revised 

	Item # 2.	FIN:BILL PAY JAN 2024
	Bill Pay 1-2-2024

	Item # 3.	FIN:  ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENDITURES
	ad approval 1-2-2024

	Item # 4.	FD: BID 2023-053FD 5000 SERIES PICKUP TRUCK JAN2024
	Bid #2023-053FD
	Bid Tabulation- 2023-053FD Fire Dept 5500 Series Prime Mover 12.12.23 (1)
	2023-Bid Package- Fire Department 5500 Truck signed

	Item # 5.	DDS:DEVELOPMENT CODE MULTIFAMILY DEC 2023
	DEV CODE - MULTIFAMILY 11-7

	Item # 6.	DDS:DEVELOPMENT CODE SIGNS DEC 2023
	DEV CODE - SIGNS 11-7

	Item # 7.	PW: CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD BID NO. 2023-022PW JAN 2024
	PW MEMO APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 BID NO. 2023-022PW
	CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 ENDVILLE RD BID NO. 2023-022PW

	Item # 8.	PW: MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAIN REPLACEMENT BID NO. 2023-060PW JAN 2024
	PW BID APPROVAL 2023-060PW MITCHELL ROAD CROSSDRAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT JAN 2024
	TOWNES CONST
	ENSCOR
	HODGES
	PATTON Contract Documents for Mitchell Road Crossdrains
	PATTON Bid Bond
	STE-BIL
	DNA UNDERGROUND
	PHILLIPS
	AUSBERN
	COOK & SON

	Item # 9.	PW: MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE DRAINAGE PIPE REPLACEMENT BID # 2023-059PW JAN 2024
	PW BID APPROVAL 2023-059PW MEDICAL PARK CIRCLE STORM DRAIN PIPE CULVERT REPLACEMENT PROJECT JAN 2024
	BID TAB
	SIGN IN SHEET
	T23-415 Bid Tab with Engineers Estimate
	Bid Tab Ltr Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
	AUSBERN
	COOK & SON
	ENSCOR
	EUBANK CONST
	HODGES
	PATTON Contract Documents for Medical Park Circle Pipe Replacement
	PATTON Bid Bond
	Smithey Const
	PHILLIPS
	STE-BIL
	Townes Const

	Item # 10.	TWL: BID NO 2023-052WL REJECTION - W JACKSON (MADISON TO FRONT) OH TO UG 2024-01-02
	2024-01-02 Bid 2023-052WL Rejection - W Jackson Street Ltng OH to UG
	2024-01-02 Bid 2023-052WL Rejection - W Jackson Street Ltng OH to UG

	Item # 11.	TWL: BID NO 2023-040WL - CHANGE ORDER 1 - MAX FOOTE JAN 2024
	2024-01-02 Bid 2023-040WL - Max Foote - Change Order 1
	2024-01-02 Bid 2023-040WL - Max Foote - Change Order 1

	Bottom

